
�
�

v1�2014�

AGENDA�
�

Meeting� Regeneration�Committee�

Date� Wednesday�26�November�2014�

Time� 10.00�am�

Place� Committee�Room�5,�City�Hall,�The�
Queen's�Walk,�London,�SE1�2AA�

�
Copies�of�the�reports�and�any�attachments�may�be�found�at:�
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/regeneration-committee�
�
�
Most�meetings�of�the�London�Assembly�and�its�Committees�are�webcast�live�at�
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/webcasts�where�you�can�also�view�past�
meetings.�
�
Members�of�the�Committee�
Gareth�Bacon�AM�(Chairman)�
Navin�Shah�AM�(Deputy�Chair)�
James�Cleverly�AM�

Len�Duvall�AM�
Murad�Qureshi�AM�

�

A�meeting�of�the�Committee�has�been�called�by�the�Chairman�of�the�Committee�to�deal�with�the�

business�listed�below.��
Mark�Roberts,�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�

Tuesday�18�November�2014�
�
Further�Information�
If�you�have�questions,�would�like�further�information�about�the�meeting�or�require�special�facilities�
please�contact:�Joanna�Brown/Teresa�Young,�Senior�Committee�Officers;�Telephone:�020�7983�6559;�
email:�joanna.brown@london.gov.uk�/�teresa.young@london.gov.uk�
�
For�media�enquiries�please�contact�London�Assembly�External�Relations;�Telephone:�020�7983�4283.�
If�you�have�any�questions�about�individual�items�please�contact�the�author�whose�details�are�at�the�
end�of�the�report.��
�
This�meeting�will�be�open�to�the�public,�except�for�where�exempt�information�is�being�discussed�as�
noted�on�the�agenda.��A�guide�for�the�press�and�public�on�attending�and�reporting�meetings�of�local�
government�bodies,�including�the�use�of�film,�photography,�social�media�and�other�means�is�available�
at�www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Openness-in-Meetings.pdf.��
�
There�is�access�for�disabled�people,�and�induction�loops�are�available.��There�is�limited�underground�
parking�for�orange�and�blue�badge�holders,�which�will�be�allocated�on�a�first-come�first-served�basis.��
Please�contact�Facilities�Management�on�020�7983�4750�in�advance�if�you�require�a�parking�space�or�
further�information.�



�

�
Certificate�Number:�FS�80233�

If�you,�or�someone�you�know,�needs�a�copy�of�the�agenda,�minutes�or�reports�
in�large�print�or�Braille,�audio,�or�in�another�language,�then�please�call�us�on�
020�7983�4100�or�email�assembly.translations@london.gov.uk.���
�

�
�



�

3�
�

Agenda�
Regeneration�Committee�
Wednesday�26�November�2014�
�
�

1 Apologies�for�Absence�and�Chairman's�Announcements��
�
� To�receive�any�apologies�for�absence�and�any�announcements�from�the�Chair.�

�
�

2 Declarations�of�Interests�(Pages�1�-�4)�
�
� Report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�

Contact:��Joanna�Brown,�joanna.brown@london.gov.uk�and�Teresa�Young,�

teresa.young@london.gov.uk,�020�7983�6559�

�

The�Committee�is�recommended�to:�

�

(a)�� Note�the�list�of�offices�held�by�Assembly�Members,�as�set�out�in�the�table�at�

Agenda�Item�2,�as�disclosable�pecuniary�interests;�

�

(b)�� Note�the�declaration�by�any�Member(s)�of�any�disclosable�pecuniary�interests�

in�specific�items�listed�on�the�agenda�and�the�necessary�action�taken�by�the�

Member(s)�regarding�withdrawal�following�such�declaration(s);�and�

�

(c)���� Note�the�declaration�by�any�Member(s)�of�any�other�interests�deemed�to�be�

relevant�(including�any�interests�arising�from�gifts�and�hospitality�received�

which�are�not�at�the�time�of�the�meeting�reflected�on�the�Authority’s�register�

of�gifts�and�hospitality,�and�noting�also�the�advice�from�the�GLA’s�

Monitoring�Officer�set�out�at�Agenda�Item�2)�and�to�note�any�necessary�

action�taken�by�the�Member(s)�following�such�declaration(s).�
�
�

3 Minutes�(Pages�5�-�46)�
�
� The�Committee�is�recommended�to�confirm�the�minutes�of�the�meeting�of�the�

Committee�held�on�16�September�2014�to�be�signed�by�the�Chairman�as�a�correct�

record.�
�

� The�appendix�to�the�minutes�set�out�on�pages�11�to�46�is�attached�for�Members�and�officers�

only�but�is�available�from�the�following�area�of�the�GLA’s�website:��
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/regeneration-committee��
�
�



�

4�
�

4 Summary�List�of�Actions�and�Action�Taken�by�the�Chairman�Under�
Delegated�Authority�(Pages�47�-�66)�

�
� Report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�

Contact:�Joanna�Brown,�joanna.brown@london.gov.uk�and�Teresa�Young,�

teresa.young@london.gov.uk,�020�7983�6559�

�

The�Committee�is�recommended�to:�

�

(a) Note�the�completed�and�outstanding�actions�arising�from�previous�meetings�

of�the�Committee,�and�

�

(b) Note�the�following�action�taken�by�the�Chairman�under�delegated�authority,�

namely:�

�

(i) The�letter�written�to�the�London�Legacy�Development�Corporation�

(LLDC)�and�to�officers�at�the�GLA,�seeking�further�information�arising�

from�the�discussion�by�the�Committee�at�its�meeting�on�16�September�

2014�on�stadium-led�regeneration,�following�consultation�with�the�

Deputy�Chair�and�Committee�Members;��

�

(ii) The�agreement�of�comments�on�the�London�Infrastructure�Plan�for�

submission�to�the�London�Assembly’s�Planning�Committee,�following�

consultation�with�the�Deputy�Chair;�and�

�

(iii) The�arrangements�for�a�site�visit�to�the�Old�Oak�Common�and�Park�

Royal�site�on�12�November�2014,�following�consultation�with�the�

Deputy�Chair.�
�
�

5 The�London�Legacy�Development�Corporation�(Pages�67�-�74)�
�
� Report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�

Contact:�Jo�Sloman;�scrutiny@london.gov.uk,�020�7983�4942�

�

The�Committee�is�recommended�to:�

�

(a) Note�the�report�as�background�to�a�discussion�with�invited�guests�regarding�

the�LLDC�and�regeneration�in�and�around�the�Queen�Elizabeth�Olympic�Park;�

and�

�
(b)� Note�the�summary�of�its�site�visit�on�15�October,�which�is�attached�as�

Appendix�1�to�the�report.�
�
�



�

5�
�

6 Regeneration�Committee�Work�Programme�(Pages�75�-�92)�
�
� Report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�

Contact:�Jo�Sloman;�scrutiny@london.gov.uk,�0207�983�4942�

�

The�Committee�is�recommended�to:�

�

(a) Agree�the�updated�work�programme�for�the�2014/15�Assembly�year.�

�

(b) Agree�to�use�the�meeting�slot�on�3�February�2015�for�a�site�visit�to�Smithfield�

Market�and�the�Farringdon�area.�

�

(c) Note�the�records�of�the�site�visits�to�West�Ham�United�FC�and�Manchester�

City�FC�(attached�as�Appendices�1�and�2�to�the�report�respectively).��

�

(d) Note�the�summary�of�the�informal�meetings�the�Chairman�and�Deputy�Chair�

held�with�Cargiant�and�Millwall�FC�(attached�as�Appendices�3�and�4�to�the�

report�respectively).�
�
�

7 Date�of�Next�Meeting��
�
� The�next�meeting�of�the�Regeneration�Committee�is�scheduled�for�7�January�2015�at�2.00pm�

in�Committee�Room�5,�City�Hall.�
�
�

8 Any�Other�Business�the�Chairman�Considers�Urgent��
�
�
�



This page is intentionally left blank



 

                                                                      

City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk
 
 v3/2014�

 

Subject:�Declarations
of
Interests�


Report
to:
 Regeneration
Committee




Report
of:

Executive
Director
of
Secretariat 



Date:
26
November
2014�



This
report
will
be
considered
in
public

 





1.
 Summary



�
1.1 This�report�sets�out�details�of�offices�held�by�Assembly�Members�for�noting�as�disclosable�pecuniary�

interests�and�requires�additional�relevant�declarations�relating�to�disclosable�pecuniary�interests,�and�

gifts�and�hospitality�to�be�made.�




2.
 Recommendations
�


2.1 That
the
list
of
offices
held
by
Assembly
Members,
as
set
out
in
the
table
below,
be
noted


as
disclosable
pecuniary
interests1;


2.2 That
the
declaration
by
any
Member(s)
of
any
disclosable
pecuniary
interests
in
specific

items
listed
on
the
agenda
and
the
necessary
action
taken
by
the
Member(s)
regarding


withdrawal
following
such
declaration(s)
be
noted;
and


2.3 That
the
declaration
by
any
Member(s)
of
any
other
interests
deemed
to
be
relevant

(including
any
interests
arising
from
gifts
and
hospitality
received
which
are
not
at
the


time
of
the
meeting
reflected
on
the
Authority’s
register
of
gifts
and
hospitality,
and


noting
also
the
advice
from
the
GLA’s
Monitoring
Officer
set
out
at
below)
and
any

necessary
action
taken
by
the
Member(s)
following
such
declaration(s)
be
noted.




3.
 Issues
for
Consideration�

�
3.1 Relevant�offices�held�by�Assembly�Members�are�listed�in�the�table�overleaf:�

                                                 
1�The�Monitoring�Officer�advises�that: Paragraph�10�of�the�Code�of�Conduct�will�only�preclude�a�Member�from�
participating�in�any�matter�to�be�considered�or�being�considered�at,�for�example,�a�meeting�of�the�Assembly,�
where�the�Member�has�a�direct�Disclosable�Pecuniary�Interest�in�that�particular�matter.�The�effect�of�this�is�
that�the�‘matter�to�be�considered,�or�being�considered’�must�be�about�the�Member’s�interest.�So,�by�way�of�
example,�if�an�Assembly�Member�is�also�a�councillor�of�London�Borough�X,�that�Assembly�Member�will�be�
precluded�from�participating�in�an�Assembly�meeting�where�the�Assembly�is�to�consider�a�matter�about�the�
Member’s�role�/�employment�as�a�councillor�of�London�Borough�X;�the�Member�will�not�be�precluded�from�
participating�in�a�meeting�where�the�Assembly�is�to�consider�a�matter�about�an�activity�or�decision�of�London�
Borough�X. 

�

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



        

�
 

Member
 Interest

Tony�Arbour�AM� Member,�LFEPA;�Member,�LB�Richmond�
Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM� Committee�of�the�Regions��
Gareth�Bacon�AM� Member,�LFEPA;�Member,�LB�Bexley�
John�Biggs�AM� �
Andrew�Boff�AM� Congress�of�Local�and�Regional�Authorities�(Council�of�

Europe)�
Victoria�Borwick�AM� Member,�Royal�Borough�of�Kensington�&�Chelsea;��

Deputy�Mayor�
James�Cleverly�AM� Chairman�of�LFEPA;�Chairman�of�the�London�Local�

Resilience�Forum;�substitute�member,�Local�Government�
Association�Fire�Services�Management�Committee�

Tom�Copley�AM� �
Andrew�Dismore�AM� Member,�LFEPA�
Len�Duvall�AM� �
Roger�Evans�AM� Committee�of�the�Regions;�Trust�for�London�(Trustee)�
Nicky�Gavron�AM� �
Darren�Johnson�AM� Member,�LFEPA�
Jenny�Jones�AM� Member,�House�of�Lords�
Stephen�Knight�AM� Member,�LFEPA;�Member,�LB�Richmond�
Kit�Malthouse�AM� Deputy�Mayor�for�Business�and�Enterprise;�Deputy�Chair,�

London�Enterprise�Panel;�Chair,�Hydrogen�London;�
Chairman,�London�&�Partners;�Board�Member,�TheCityUK���

Joanne�McCartney�AM� �
Steve�O’Connell�AM� Member,�LB�Croydon;�MOPAC�Non-Executive�Adviser�for�

Neighbourhoods�
Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM� �
Murad�Qureshi�AM� Congress�of�Local�and�Regional�Authorities�(Council�of�

Europe)�
Dr�Onkar�Sahota�AM� �
Navin�Shah�AM� �
Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM� Member,�LFEPA�
Richard�Tracey�AM� Chairman�of�the�London�Waste�and�Recycling�Board;�

Mayor's�Ambassador�for�River�Transport������
Fiona�Twycross�AM� Member,�LFEPA�

 

[Note:�LB�-�London�Borough;�LFEPA�-�London�Fire�and�Emergency�Planning�Authority;��
MOPAC�–�Mayor’s�Office�for�Policing�and�Crime]�

�
3.2 Paragraph�10�of�the�GLA’s�Code�of�Conduct,�which�reflects�the�relevant�provisions�of�the�Localism�

Act�2011,�provides�that:��
�

- where�an�Assembly�Member�has�a�Disclosable�Pecuniary�Interest�in�any�matter�to�be�considered�
or�being�considered�or�at��

�

(i)� a�meeting�of�the�Assembly�and�any�of�its�committees�or�sub-committees;�or��
�

(ii)� any�formal�meeting�held�by�the�Mayor�in�connection�with�the�exercise�of�the�Authority’s�
functions��

�

- they�must�disclose�that�interest�to�the�meeting�(or,�if�it�is�a�sensitive�interest,�disclose�the�fact�
that�they�have�a�sensitive�interest�to�the�meeting);�and��

�

Page 2



        

-� must�not�(i)�participate,�or�participate�any�further,�in�any�discussion�of�the�matter�at�the�
meeting;�or�(ii)�participate�in�any�vote,�or�further�vote,�taken�on�the�matter�at�the�meeting�

�

UNLESS�
�

-� they�have�obtained�a�dispensation�from�the�GLA’s�Monitoring�Officer�(in�accordance�with�
section�2�of�the�Procedure�for�registration�and�declarations�of�interests,�gifts�and�hospitality�–�
Appendix�5�to�the�Code).����

�

3.3 Failure�to�comply�with�the�above�requirements,�without�reasonable�excuse,�is�a�criminal�offence;�as�is�

knowingly�or�recklessly�providing�information�about�your�interests�that�is�false�or�misleading.�

3.4 In�addition,�the�Monitoring�Officer�has�advised�Assembly�Members�to�continue�to�apply�the�test�that�
was�previously�applied�to�help�determine�whether�a�pecuniary�/�prejudicial�interest�was�arising�-�

namely,�that�Members�rely�on�a�reasonable�estimation�of�whether�a�member�of�the�public,�with�

knowledge�of�the�relevant�facts,�could,�with�justification,�regard�the�matter�as�so�significant�that�it�
would�be�likely�to�prejudice�the�Member’s�judgement�of�the�public�interest.��

3.5 Members�should�then�exercise�their�judgement�as�to�whether�or�not,�in�view�of�their�interests�and�

the�interests�of�others�close�to�them,�they�should�participate�in�any�given�discussions�and/or�
decisions�business�of�within�and�by�the�GLA.�It�remains�the�responsibility�of�individual�Members�to�

make�further�declarations�about�their�actual�or�apparent�interests�at�formal�meetings�noting�also�

that�a�Member’s�failure�to�disclose�relevant�interest(s)�has�become�a�potential�criminal�offence.�

3.6 Members�are�also�required,�where�considering�a�matter�which�relates�to�or�is�likely�to�affect�a�person�

from�whom�they�have�received�a�gift�or�hospitality�with�an�estimated�value�of�at�least�£25�within�the�

previous�three�years�or�from�the�date�of�election�to�the�London�Assembly,�whichever�is�the�later,�to�
disclose�the�existence�and�nature�of�that�interest�at�any�meeting�of�the�Authority�which�they�attend�

at�which�that�business�is�considered.��

3.7 The�obligation�to�declare�any�gift�or�hospitality�at�a�meeting�is�discharged,�subject�to�the�proviso�set�
out�below,�by�registering�gifts�and�hospitality�received�on�the�Authority’s�on-line�database.�The�on-

line�database�may�be�viewed�here:��

http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/gifts-and-hospitality.��

3.8 If�any�gift�or�hospitality�received�by�a�Member�is�not�set�out�on�the�on-line�database�at�the�time�of�

the�meeting,�and�under�consideration�is�a�matter�which�relates�to�or�is�likely�to�affect�a�person�from�

whom�a�Member�has�received�a�gift�or�hospitality�with�an�estimated�value�of�at�least�£25,�Members�
are�asked�to�disclose�these�at�the�meeting,�either�at�the�declarations�of�interest�agenda�item�or�when�

the�interest�becomes�apparent.��

3.9 It�is�for�Members�to�decide,�in�light�of�the�particular�circumstances,�whether�their�receipt�of�a�gift�or�
hospitality,�could,�on�a�reasonable�estimation�of�a�member�of�the�public�with�knowledge�of�the�

relevant�facts,�with�justification,�be�regarded�as�so�significant�that�it�would�be�likely�to�prejudice�the�

Member’s�judgement�of�the�public�interest.�Where�receipt�of�a�gift�or�hospitality�could�be�so�
regarded,�the�Member�must�exercise�their�judgement�as�to�whether�or�not,�they�should�participate�in�

any�given�discussions�and/or�decisions�business�of�within�and�by�the�GLA.�

�
�

4.
 Legal
Implications




4.1 The�legal�implications�are�as�set�out�in�the�body�of�this�report.�




Page 3



        

5.
 Financial
Implications

�

5.1 There�are�no�financial�implications�arising�directly�from�this�report.�

�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:�None�

Contact�Officer:� Joanna�Brown�and�Teresa�Young,�Senior�Committee�Officers�

Telephone:� 020�7983�6559�
E-mail:� joanna.brown@london.gov.uk�and�teresa.young@london.gov.uk�

�

�

Page 4



������������������������������������������������������������������� �� �

�
�
City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk


�

MINUTES


�

Meeting:
 Regeneration
Committee

Date:
 Tuesday
16
September
2014

Time:
 10.00
am

Place:
 Committee
Room
5,
City
Hall,
The


Queen's
Walk,
London,
SE1
2AA

�
Copies�of�the�minutes�may�be�found�at:



http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/regeneration�




�
Present:

�
Gareth�Bacon�AM�(Chairman)�
Navin�Shah�AM�(Deputy�Chair)�
James�Cleverly�AM�
Len�Duvall�AM�
Murad�Qureshi�AM�
�
�

1 Apologies
for
Absence
and
Chairman's
Announcements
(Item
1)�



1.1� There�were�no�apologies�for�absence.�





2 Declarations
of
Interests
(Item
2)�




2.1� The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�

�

2.2� Resolved:





 That
the
list
of
offices
held
by
Assembly
Members,
as
set
out
in
the
table
at
Item
2,


be
noted
as
disclosable
pecuniary
interests.







Agenda Item 3

Page 5



Greater
London
Authority

Regeneration
Committee


Tuesday
16
September
2014


�

�
�

3 Minutes
(Item
3)�



3.1� Resolved:





 That
the
minutes
of
the
meeting
of
the
Regeneration
Committee
held
on
19
June


2014
be
signed
by
the
Chairman
as
a
correct
record.






4 Summary
List
of
Actions
(Item
4)�




4.1�� The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�

�

4.2� Resolved:





 That
the
completed
actions
arising
from
previous
meetings
of
the
Committee
be


noted.






5 Stadium-Led
Regeneration
(Item
5)�




5.1� The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�as�background�to�

putting�questions�to�the�following�invited�guests:�
�

• Dr�Paul�Brickell,�Executive�Director�of�Regeneration�and�Community�Partnerships,�

London�Legacy�Development�Corporation�(LLDC);�

• Mark�Donnelly,�Chief�Operating�Officer,�Queen’s�Park�Rangers�Football�Club;��

• Joe�Lyons,�Head�of�Community,�West�Ham�United�Football�Club�(substituting�for�the�

Executive�Director�of�Communications�and�Marketing);�and��

• Kim�Bromley-Derry,�Chief�Executive,�London�Borough�of�Newham.�
�

5.2� The�Chairman�welcomed�the�guests�to�the�meeting,�and�clarified�that�the�presence�of�Queens�

Park�Rangers�Football�Club�did�not�confer�Committee�approval�of�the�club’s�proposals�for�Old�

Oak�Common.�
�

5.3� The�Chairman�stated�that�the�Committee�had�launched�an�online�survey,�and�welcomed�views�

in�relation�to�new�or�planned�football�stadia.�
�

5.4� A�transcript�of�the�discussion�is�attached�at�Appendix
1.�
�

5.5� During�the�course�of�the�discussion,�Dr�Paul�Brickell,�LLDC,�agreed�to�provide�figures�relating�

to�numbers�of�local�employees�at�the�Olympic�Park;�including�those�employed�in�construction�

and�operational�roles,�and�those�in�apprenticeship�programmes.�

5.6� During�the�discussion�the�Committee�suggested�that�the�Chairman�write�to�the�LLDC,�

following�consultation�with�the�Deputy�Chair�and�Committee�Members,�requesting�

Page 6



Greater
London
Authority

Regeneration
Committee


Tuesday
16
September
2014


�

�
�

information�on�the�following�areas:�

• The�process�to�develop�the�management�contract�between�the�E20�Stadium�Partnership�

and�the�stadium�operators,�including�who�would�hold�the�operators�to�account;�and�
�

• Lessons�learned�by�the�LLDC�and�the�Olympic�boroughs�in�relation�to�local�communities�

accessing�job�opportunities�on�the�Queen�Elizabeth�Olympic�Park.�

5.7� The�Committee�also�suggested�that�the�Chairman�write�to�the�GLA�Planning�Team,�in�relation�

to�a�Mayoral�Development�Corporation�(MDC),�to�follow�up�on�issues�around�local�

employment�targets,�including�whether�the�GLA�expects�to�set�a�London-wide�or�local�

employment�target;�and�whether�there�are�plans�to�develop�a�strategy�to�ensure�local�jobs�for�

local�people�at�Old�Oak�Common.�

5.8� A�Member�requested�that�officers�consider�the�possibility�of�a�site�visit�to�Old�Oak�Common.�
�

5.9� Resolved:�



(a) That
the
report
and
discussion
with
invited
guests
regarding
stadium-led


regeneration
be
noted;




(b) That
the
recent
action
taken
by
the
Chairman
of
the
Regeneration
Committee,


Gareth
Bacon
AM,
under
delegated
authority
in
consultation
with
the
Deputy


Chair,
Navin
Shah
AM,
to
arrange
additional
visits
to
football
clubs
and


organisations
which
have
built
(or
have
plans
to
develop)
new
stadia
on


8
July,
2
September
and
15
September
2014
be
noted;




(c) That
the
summaries
of
the
site
visits
held
on
8
July
and
2
September
2014,


attached
as
Appendices
1
to
4
of
the
report,
be
noted;





(d) That
the
engagement
work
with
communities
that
is
being
undertaken
as
part


of
this
scrutiny
investigation,
including
an
online
survey
and
an
informal


round
table
discussion,
as
set
out
in
paragraph
4.3
of
the
report,
be
noted;


and




(e) That
authority
be
delegated
to
the
Chairman,
in
consultation
with
the
Deputy


Chair
and
Committee
Members,
to
write
to
the
LLDC
and
to
officers
at
the


GLA,
seeking
further
information
arising
from
the
discussion.







Page 7



Greater
London
Authority

Regeneration
Committee


Tuesday
16
September
2014


�

�
�

6 Mayor's
Regeneration
Fund
(Item
6)�



6.1� The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�
�

6.2� Resolved:�
�

(a) That
the
Committee
note
its
report,
Out
of
the
Ashes:
The
Mayor’s


Regeneration
Fund;
and




(b) That
the
recent
action
taken
by
the
Chairman
of
the
Regeneration
Committee,


Gareth
Bacon
AM,
under
delegated
authority,
in
consultation
with
the
Deputy


Chair,
Navin
Shah
AM,
namely
to
agree
the
Committee’s
report
on
the
Mayor’s


Regeneration
Fund
(attached
at
Appendix
1)
and
letter
to
the
Mayor


(attached
at
Appendix
2
to
the
report),
be
noted.






7 Regeneration
Committee
Work
Programme
(Item
7)�




7.1� The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�
�

7.2� Resolved:

�

(a) That
the
Committee
agree
its
updated
work
programme
for
the
2014/15


Assembly
year
and
agree
to
use
its
meeting
slot
on
15
October
2014
for
a
site


visit
to
the
Queen
Elizabeth
Olympic
Park
and
its
meeting
slot
on



16
December
2014
for
a
site
visit
to
the
Royal
Docks;




(b) That
the
summary
of
the
informal
meeting
the
Chairman
and
Deputy
Chair


held
with
Gavin
Poole,
CEO
of
Here
East
(iCity),
attached
at
Appendix
1
to
the


report,
be
noted;
and




(c) That
authority
be
delegated
to
the
Chairman,
in
consultation
with
the
Deputy


Chair,
to
agree
comments
on
the
London
Infrastructure
Plan
for
submission
to


the
London
Assembly’s
Planning
Committee.







8 Date
of
Next
Meeting
(Item
8)�




8.1� The�next�meeting�of�the�Committee�was�scheduled�for�Wednesday�26�November�2014�at�

10.00am�in�Committee�Room�5,�City�Hall.�





9 Any
Other
Business
the
Chairman
Considers
Urgent
(Item
9)�




9.1� There�was�no�other�business�the�Chairman�considered�urgent.�

Page 8



Greater
London
Authority

Regeneration
Committee


Tuesday
16
September
2014


�

�
�





10 Close
of
Meeting





10.1� The�meeting�ended�at�12.30pm.�





�
�
�
�
�
�
�
� � � �
Chairman�� � Date�
�
Contact
Officer:
 Joanna�Brown/Teresa�Young,�Senior�Committee�Officers;��

Telephone:�020�7983�6559;�email:�joanna.brown@london.gov.uk�/�
teresa.young@london.gov.uk�

�

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Appendix 1 
 

Regeneration
Committee




16
September
2014




Transcript
of
Item
5:
Stadium-Led
Regeneration


 

 

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��Right,�to�welcome�our�guests�then.��Paul�Brickell�is�here�from�the�London�

Legacy�Development�Corporation�(LLDC).��Welcome,�Paul,�thank�you�very�much�for�coming.��We�have�

Mark�Donnelly�from�Queen’s�Park�Rangers�(QPR).��We�thank�you�for�attending.��Joe�Lyons�is�a�last-minute�

substitute�because�Tara�Warren�[Executive�Director�of�Communications�and�Marketing,�West�Ham�United�

Football�Club]�was�unfortunately�taken�unwell�this�morning�I�understand,�so�thank�you�very�much�for�coming�

along,�Joe.��And�Kim�Bromley-Derry�from�the�London�Borough�of�Newham.�

�

The�main�item�for�discussion�today�is�the�role�that�sport�stadium�redevelopment�can�have�on�regeneration.��

One�thing�I�would�like�to�make�clear�to�members�of�the�public�particularly�today�is�that�the�presence�of�QPR�

here�today�is�not�meant�to�confer�any�precipitive�approval�of�any�bid�that�may�come�forward�for�a�Mayoral�

Development�Corporation�(MDC)�or�a�development�in�that�area.��There�are�particular�commercial�interests�in�

that�area�that�are�contesting,�I�understand,�QPR’s�role.��We�will�be�speaking�to�them�separately.��This�

Committee�has�no�remit�to�approve�of�disapprove�any�particular�application�on�any�particular�site.��We�are�

interested�in�the�theoretics�behind�sport�stadium�development,�therefore�I�do�not�want�anyone�to�give�a�

misleading�impression�that�we�are�not�treating�people�even-handedly.�

�

That�said,�we�will�move�into�the�main�item.��One�other�thing,�I�suppose,�is�the�investigation�that�we�are�

conducting�is�as�comprehensive�as�we�can�make�it,�and�we�have�done�a�number�of�site�visits�and�we�have�

spoken�to�a�lot�of�football�clubs�about�their�sports�stadium�redevelopment.��We�are�of�course�interested�in�the�

views�of�ordinary�residents�as�well�as�traders�and�businesses�and�things�and�there�is�a�survey�that�we�are�doing�

on�our�website,�which�I�would�encourage�people�to�look�at.��You�can�find�it�on�london.gov.uk,�it�is�being�

hosted�by�TalkLondon�and�it�is�the�impact�of�a�new�stadium.��If�you�do�that�search,�for�those�people�who�are�

watching,�then�hopefully�you�can�give�your�views�and�we�would�be�very�welcome�to�receive�them.�

�

OK,�moving�into�the�main�item�of�business,�the�first�question�really�is�aimed�at�West�Ham,�therefore�I�will�direct�

it�initially�to�you,�Joe,�and�then�latterly�to�you,�Kim,�as�well.��If�you�can�set�out�for�us�how�West�Ham’s�move�to�

the�Olympic�Stadium�will�add�value�to�the�regeneration�being�done�by�the�Olympic�Park?�

�

Joe
Lyons
(Head
of
Community,
West
Ham
United
Football
Club):��Obviously�I�am�standing�in�for�Tara�

and�I�think�it�is�probably�worth�noting�now�that�the�information�I�will�be�able�to�provide�today�will�focus�

heavily�on�the�Community�Sports�Trust’s�involvement�in�the�regeneration�plans.��I�suppose�the�difference�

between�the�community�outreach�programme�and�potentially�some�of�the�financial�implications�of�the�move�is�

more�focused�around�our�outreach�delivery�and�our�current�new�model�being�put�in�place�from�July�2013.��I�

have�personally�only�been�with�the�organisation�since�2013,�therefore�any�pre-agreements�or�any�pre-

development�work�from�the�Community�Sports�Trust�again�I�would�struggle�to�comment�on.�However,�I�

suppose�it�is�worth�noting�it�was�probably�the�reason�that�attracted�me�to�the�role�at�the�Community�Sports�

Trust�with�West�Ham,�because�of�the�unbelievable�exciting�opportunity�that�we�have�around�reshaping�some�of�

the�work�that�the�Community�Sports�Trust�has�done�in�the�community;�and�I�think�taking�it�further�in�terms�of�

working�with�the�local�community�groups�and�the�organisations�and�the�partners�that�we�should�be�working�

with.��Therefore�it�would�be�good�to�discuss�over�the�period�of�today�how�that�has�been�progressing�and�the�

levels�of�engagement�we�are�now�having�with�the�various�community�groups�and�organisations�in�East�London.�

Page 11



 

�

We�do�not�solely�just�work�in�Newham,�it�is�probably�worth�noting�that�now,�we�work�across�the�majority�of�

East�London�with�specific�boroughs�that�we�target,�across�some�of�the�pieces�of�work.�This�is�not�determined�

by�myself,�this�is�determined�by�funding�routes�and�Premier�League�investment�via�the�club,��so,�for�example,�

Tower�Hamlets,�Newham,�Barking�and�Dagenham,�out�towards�Southwark,�are�kind�of�the�main�area�of�focus�

strategically�for�us.��However,�then�I�suppose�we�can�work�wider�than�that�with�other�partners�but�in�terms�of�

some�of�the�funding�that�is�where�I�would�probably�concentrate,�which�fits�into�the�areas�of�regeneration�that�

we�need�to�be�able�to�produce.�

�

I�suppose�one�of�the�key�things�worth�noting�at�this�stage�is�that,�since�2012/13�the�Community�Sports�Trust�

has�I�suppose�doubled�in�size,�not�only�financially,�but�in�terms�of�reach�and�the�number�of�partners�that�we�

are�now�currently�working�with,�and�that�does�range�from�private�organisations�to�then�really�embedding�

ourselves�within�the�local�authorities�that�we�are�working�with.��Again,�making�sure�that�it�fits�into�our�key�aims�

and�objectives�as�a�trust,�which�are�very�defined.��As�and�when�--�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��Sorry�to�interrupt�you,�could�you�define�your�key�aims�and�objectives�as�a�

trust?�

�

Joe
Lyons
(Head
of
Community,
West
Ham
United
Football
Club):��Yes.��We�are�a�delivery�service,�

therefore�whenever�a�piece�of�work�that�comes�available�or�is�procured,�we�would�only�agree�to�it�if�it�fits�into�

one�of�four�key�aims.��Firstly,�being�to�break�down�the�barriers�in�sports�participation.��I�think�that�is�very�key�

for�us�and�I�think�it�fits�into�a�lot�of�national�and�local�objectives,�especially�following�on�from�the�Olympics�

around�sports�participation�in�14-plus,�so�the�whole�Sport�England�policy�is�now�set�around�that�age�group,�of�

which�we�are�supporting�through�a�number�of�our�programmes.�

�

I�think,�and�I�do�not�use�this�next�phrase�loosely,�creating�life-changing�opportunities,�I�think�the�club�and�the�

board�and�from�when�the�two�joint�chairmen�and�vice-chairman�came�in�2010,�were�very�clear�that�as�a�club�

with�a�reputation�of�being�a�community�club,�what�did�that�mean?��Therefore�it�was�interesting,�when�I�first�

came�in,�to�have�a�conversation�with�the�board�around�what�does�that�mean�for�them�in�terms�of�what�should�

we�be�delivering�for�them�as�an�outreach�provision,�for�me�it�is�very�easy.��You�can�summarise�it�by�looking�at�

the�local�young�people�predominantly,�however�vulnerable�adults,�vulnerable�community�groups,�and�trying�to�

use�what�is�the�power�of�sport�in�the�first�area,�and�secondly�football�more�for�us�against�other�clubs�who�

would�not�use�West�Ham’s�brand,�but�it�is�using�West�Ham’s�brand�as�a�very�powerful�vehicle�and�hook�to�have�

positive�change.��This�is�not�going�to�be�for�everyone,�however�I�think�we�have�a�huge�part�to�play�in�East�

London�around�creating�that�engagement,�which�has�one�aim�only,�it�is�around�creating�that�life-changing�

opportunity.��For�us,�the�example�of�that�would�be�potentially�social�mobility�within�young�people�locally�who�I�

suppose�wake�up�most�days�and�look�at�Canary�Wharf�and�never�have�an�opportunity�of�understanding�how�

they�could�even�get�to�work�in�an�area�like�that.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��Cynics�would�argue�that�West�Ham�already�has�a�brand,�it�is�already�in�the�

East�End,�why�does�West�Ham�need�to�be�in�the�Olympic�Stadium�to�do�this?�

�

Joe
Lyons
(Head
of
Community,
West
Ham
United
Football
Club):��I�think�the�Olympic�Stadium,�like�any�

other�move,�is�something�that�it�is�fantastically�exciting�and�I�think�for�me�at�the�moment,�and�I�cannot�say�this�

is�totally�related,�but�the�amount�of�investment�I�have�been�able�to�draw�down�privately�and�publicly�over�the�

last�15�months,�while�we�have�been�aggressive�to�try�to�draw�down�the�money,�it�has�been�well�received.��I�

think�it�is�an�opportunity�that�we�are�really�trying�to�utilise�and�when�I�say�“we”�it�is�from�the�Community�

Sports�Trust,�it�is�a�fantastic�story.��It�is�harnessing�what�was�an�unbelievable�Games,�is�a�fantastic�location,�of�

which,�as�a�stadia,�the�identity�for�some�young�people�who�do�not�have�any�constants�in�their�life,�is�fantastic.��

Now�I�am�not�saying�that�Upton�Park�does�not�have�that.�However�I�am�saying�that�the�Olympic�Stadium�will�

Page 12



 

be�something�incredibly�special�for�young�people�to�believe�in,�to�have�as�a�constant,�and�what�I�am�trying�to�

do�is�harness�that�via�our�economic�wellbeing�programme�and�delivery�models�and�utilise�that�power.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��Therefore�it�is�the�prestige�of�the�stadium,�you�think,�that�will�enhance�your�

capabilities�to�do�that�work?�

�

Joe
Lyons
(Head
of
Community,
West
Ham
United
Football
Club):��I�do�not�think�it�is�just�the�prestige�

of�the�stadium;�I�think�it�is�the�brand�of�the�club�that�obviously�has�a�very,�very�long�tradition�and�history,�and�

I�think�it�is�something�for�us�as�a�Community�Sports�Trust�to�embrace�and�to�use�as�a�Unique�Selling�Point�

(USP)�over�the�next�two�years.��To�really�just�try�to�deliver�more�and�more�activities�that�is�much�needed�across�

the�kind�of�inequality�levels�in�East�London�for�us,�and�I�am�sure�the�other�football�clubs�with�inequalities�in�

and�around�their�areas.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��OK.��I�would�like�to�bring�our�other�guests�in�as�well.�

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��Sorry,�just�before�we�move�off,�could�you�just�paint�some�pictures�of�what�those�activities�

are�and�the�ventures�you�want�to�venture�into�and�describe�some�of�the�activities�that�meet�those�two�

objectives�you�said.��What�were�the�other�two�objectives?�

�

Joe
Lyons
(Head
of
Community,
West
Ham
United
Football
Club):��The�other�two,�as�a�Community�

Sports�Trust,�the�reach�that�we�have�locally�in�East�London,�if�channelled�correctly�and,�I�use�the�word,�

ethically,�can�give�young�people�who�potentially,�at�the�age�of�anywhere�between�6-8�to�14-16�year�olds,�if�

they�are�good�enough�and�they�are�seen�as�having�a�huge�talent,��we�will�provide�an�appropriate�pathway�for�

them�to�come�and�have�an�opportunity�at�the�West�Ham�Academy.��Our�new�academy�integration�scheme�with�

the�Academy�Department�and�the�Community�Sports�Trust�is�set�up�where�there�is�a�pathway�in�and�out,�which�

supports.��Some�young�people�have�a�great�talent,�however�they�have�never�had�access�to�high-level�coaching�

or�tutoring.�We�would�then�give�them�that�environment,�and�a�safe�environment,�therefore�if�they�were�not�

quite�ready�for�the�academy�they�can�come�back�and�work�with�us�for�longer.�

�

Therefore,�in�terms�of�what�you�are�asking,�an�example,�some�of�the�Committee�Members�came�on�a�visit�and�

they�met�our�new�apprentices.��This�was�an�example�of�working�in�partnership�with�appropriate�and�specialised�

partners.�We�are�working�with�a�partner�called�Leadership�Through�Sport�Charity,�and�engaging�with�local�

young�people�who�are,�for�want�of�a�better�phrase,�sparky.�They�are�motivated,�they�are�keen,�they�have�a�lot�

of�energy,�however�they�cannot�see�how�to�get�out�of�potentially�an�E6�postcode�and�go�and�work�in�the�City�

as�a�finance�clerk�or�an�accountant;�because�we�all�know�the�recruitment�process�currently�within�huge�blue-

chip�firms�probably�would�not�even�honour�an�interview.�

�

What�we�have�done�is�we�have�broken�down�those�barriers�from�the�top�down�and�agreed�to�recruit�and�place�

15�of�those�apprentices�this�year.�This�will�grow�as�the�years�go�on,�and�therefore�when�we�talk�about�the�

social�mobility�barriers,�we�are�taking�local�young�people�from�East�London�and�placing�them�in�fantastic�jobs.�

That�is�a�life-changing�moment�for�them�and�something�that�we�then�enhance�in�them�as�peer�role�models,�

because�one�of�the�elements�is�around�their�sports�leaders�and�leadership�qualities,�and�working�with�then�a�

multitude�of�groups�and�young�people�locally�that�they�can�then�engage�with�and�well�motivate.��Therefore�it�

would�have�that�kind�of�family�tree�effect,�the�ripple�effect,�where�you�have�15�who�then�all�speak�to�15�young�

people�each�over�the�period�of,�I�think�we�are�working�for�15�months�with�them.��What�kind�of�impact�can�that�

have�locally�on�a�much�wider�number�of�young�people?��That�is�just�one�of�our�20�focused�programmes�on�

achieving�our�aims�and�objectives.�

�

Page 13



 

Len
Duvall
AM:��Sorry,�just�on�how�these�programmes�are�funded,�of�course�you�put�your�own�money�in,�

therefore�what�is�the�percentage�of�your�turnover�that�you�invest�in�these�activities,�just�to�give�a�flavour�to�

the�Committee,�therefore�what�would�that�be�and�what�comes�from�partners�who�fund�some�of�that?�

�

Joe
Lyons
(Head
of
Community,
West
Ham
United
Football
Club):��I�do�not�have�the�figures�for�

2012/13�or�2013/14.��In�terms�of�this�year,�we�have�independently�raised�£1.335�million.�

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��That�is�your�own�money�or�that�is�what�you�received�from�partners?�

�

Joe
Lyons
(Head
of
Community,
West
Ham
United
Football
Club):��This�is�just�how�it�is�broken�down�

from�a�percentage,�there�is�38%�that�is�-�again�the�figures�off�my�head�-�£490,000�is�via�the�club’s�Premier�

League�funding,�so�the�chair,�Karren�Brady,�would�authorise�the�allocation�of�this�money�via�the�football�clubs,�

and�this�could�change,�it�is�more�than�likely�going�to�increase�if�we�competitively�access�that�money.��It�is�

about�£492,000�this�year.��There�is�then�about�£420,000,�so�about�35%,�that�comes�from�working�with�local�

education�providers.��Again,�another�example�is�a�pathway�of�a�young�person�from�key�stage�2.�We�now�have�a�

pathway�where,�if�that�young�person�is�vulnerable,�if�that�young�person,�for�whatever�reason,�is�not�achieving�

well�through�the�local�provision,�then�we�will�provide�an�intervention�for�that�young�person�and�it�is�a�good�

story�for�one�person,�that�is�a�very�vulnerable�young�person�from�key�stage�2�right�through�now�to�

employment�via�the�higher�education�programme�that�we�are�starting�with�University�of�East�London�(UEL)�at�

foundation�degree�level�in�2015.���A�further�education�model�where�we�have�circa�100�young�people�currently�

engaged,�and�therefore�the�money,�the�£420,000�that�we�have�independently�raised�through�our�education�

partners,�now�provides�that�provision�for�those�young�people.�

�

The�other�funding�at�around�28%�is�then�driven�by�our�own�activities�working�with�funders,�like�Telematch�is�a�

good�example�where�we�are�a�subcontractor�of�Community�Links�in�East�London�and�we�deliver�--�I�think�our�

target�is�15�year-long�wraparound�end-to-end�provision�for�long-term�needs.�

�

Therefore�I�would�say�it�kind�of�comes�from�three�areas.��There�is�obviously�potentially�some�fundraising�

opportunities�that�we�can�do�that�would�then�always�come�back�in�and�as�a�charity,�I�think�it�is�worth�noting�

we�are�a�not-for-profit�charity.�Therefore�if�we�were�to�raise�£5�million�the�following�year,�because�of�the�

amount�of�investment�we�can�get,�that�will�all�be�recycled�within�our�community�outreach.�Therefore,�as�I�said,�

currently�there�are�about�20�programmes�and�as�and�when�more�programme�finance�comes�into�play�we�will�

work�with�our�local�partners�and�assess�where�the�need�is�based�on�our�aims�and�objectives�as�an�organisation�

and�under�the�mandate�of�the�club�and�deliver�those�as�far�as�we�can.��There�is�a�lot�of�need.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��Thank�you.��I�am�going�to�try�to�bring�in�other�guests.��Dr�Brickell,�same�

question�to�you,�I�realise�it�was�a�while�ago�that�I�asked�that�question�now,�it�is�how�you�see�West�Ham�moving�

into�the�Olympic�Stadium�adding�value�to�the�regeneration�that�was�begun�by�the�building�of�the�Olympic�

Park?�

�

Dr
Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
of
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,
LLDC):��Thank�

you,�Chairman.��If�I�could�just�briefly,�set�out�four�points�of�context�and�then�a�bit�of�detail.��The�four�points�of�

context�are�firstly�that�the�stadium�is�really�very�important,�however�it�is�only�one�part�of�the�constellation�of�

venues�and�parklands,�the�new�neighbourhoods�and�the�new�business�locations.,�Therefore�that�probably�sets�

it�quite�a�lot�apart�probably�from�other�stadium�projects,�and�the�trick�is�to�make�all�of�those�elements�work�

together,�that�is�the�first�thing�I�would�say.�

�

The�second�thing�I�would�say�is,�although�we�love�West�Ham�United�dearly,�they�of�course�are�only�a�part�of�

what�will�happen�in�the�stadium�and�there�will�be�athletics�in�the�stadium,�other�sports,�music,�other�cultural�

events,�and�they�will�range�from�the�international�to�the�very�local.��I�think�that�again,�the�trick�will�be�-�and�I�

Page 14



 

know�that�you�[you�refers�to�Joe�Lyons,�Head�of�Community,�West�Ham�United�Football�Club]�feel�this�too�-��

how�the�different�parts�work�together�and�feed�each�other�and�synergise�with�each�other�and�add�value�to�

each�other,�therefore�that�is�the�second�point.�

�

The�third�is�-�and�I�think�this�is�very�important�for�whatever�project�and�we�have�talked�about�this�a�lot�really�-�

but�everything�that�has�happened�in�the�Olympic�Park,�the�venues,�the�neighbourhoods,�is�set�in�long-term�

strategy.��Therefore�London�knew�why�it�wanted�to�have�the�Olympics,�it�knew�why�it�wanted�to�have�a�

stadium�in�Stratford�for�many�years,�and�therefore�really�in�that�sense�the�Olympic�Park�stadium�was�a�means�

to�a�broader�end.��We�have�again�talked�about�that�before,�the�bid�book�says,�as�you�know,�the�purpose�of�

having�the�Games�there�was�to�regenerate�the�entire�community�for�the�benefit�of�everyone�that�lives�there.�

Then�again�we�have�talked�about�the�ambition�the�local�authorities�have,�the�Mayor�has,�and�the�Government�

has,�for�convergence.��Which�is�within�20�years�of�the�Games�the�life�chances�of�East�Londoners�would�be�at�

the�London�average,�which�would�be�great�for�East�Londoners,�and�also�great�for�the�London�economy�and�for�

the�United�Kingdom�(UK)�economy,�and�we�can�unpack�that.��Therefore�the�stadium�is�a�part�of�a�bigger�

whole.��West�Ham�is�part�of�a�whole�in�the�stadium.��There�is�a�long-term�strategy,�therefore�in�that�sense�this�

was�not�stadium-led,�the�stadium�was�a�part�of�what�we�wanted�to�achieve.�

�

I�think�the�fourth�thing�that�the�stadium�in�a�way�illustrates�quite�well�is�that�the�key�has�to�be�about�the�

relationships�between�the�different�players.��This�is�particularly�pertinent�for�us�as�a�short�to�medium-term�

time-limited�development�corporation,�operating�in�the�midst�of�the�four�boroughs�with�businesses�and�very�

lively�communities�and�some�fantastic�institutions�already�there,�and�others�coming�in,�it�is�about�getting�those�

relationships�right.��Therefore,�as�you�know,�the�stadium�programme�is�a�joint�venture�between�the�London�

Borough�of�Newham�and�ourselves,�the�E20�LLP,�and�therefore�it�is�a�good�illustration�of�all�sorts�of�

relationships�that�are�happening�across�the�Park�that�are�important�for�the�long-term�future.�

�

Therefore�those�are�the�four�bits�of�context�I�might�give.��In�terms�of�the�details,�yes,�I�think�it�comes�down�to�

the�following�really:�jobs�have�been�an�absolute�priority�within�the�convergence�programme,�it�is�an�absolute�

priority�for�the�boroughs,�an�absolute�priority�for�us.��Jobs�and�apprenticeships,�and�we�have�been�very�

successful�at�local�employment,�very�successful�at�local�apprenticeships�in�all�that�we�have�done�so�far,�and�

every�time�I�hear�Joe�or�one�of�his�colleagues�speak�I�am�encouraged�because�they�all�so�clearly�share�that�

ambition.��I�think�Joe�makes�a�really�important�point�of�the�sort�of�thing�that�West�Ham�can�bring�in�addition,�

because�there�will�be�some�people�who�will�work�there,�there�will�be�some�apprentices�in�the�stadium,�however�

for�many�young�people�it�is�a�gateway,�it�is�a�different�way�of�opening�a�door�into�the�world�of�work�that�will�

appeal�to�some�who�would�not�have�found�other�routes,�and�I�think�that�whole�point�you�make�about�

progression�and�so�forth�is�really�important.�

�

I�think�another�big�area�that�we�would�look�to�is�health�and�healthy�living.��I�have�been�really�impressed�over�

the�last�few�months�by�the�general�practitioner�(GP)�practice�at�the�Sir�Ludwig�Guttmann�Centre;�that�is�the�

health�centre�in�the�Athletes�Village,�the�GP�practice�has�been�embedded�since�the�beginning�of�the�year�now,�

and�turns�all�the�words�we�have�had�about�a�GP�practice�using�the�Park�and�the�venues�in�order�to�help�people�

into�healthy�living�beginning�to�come�true.�Therefore�really�excellent�relationships�between�that�practice�and�

the�people�who�operate�the�Copper�Box�and�the�Aquatic�Centre,�Greenwich�Leisure�Limited�(GLL),�with�Active�

Newham,�who�are�working�on�the�Park�with�activities�in�the�parklands,�with�some�of�the�tenants,�London�Lions�

for�example,�the�basketball�team�that�is�at�Copper�Box,�and�with�ourselves.��Therefore�that�is�some�real�

practical�examples�of�how�does�the�local�National�Health�Service�(NHS)�work�and�grab�all�those�opportunities.��

Again,�I�can�see�that�once�West�Ham�is�embedded,�because�of�your�track�record,�we�will�have�all�sorts�of�other�

opportunities�that�will�come.�

�

Page 15



 

Therefore�jobs�and�health,�community�engagement�you�have�talked�about,�it�has�been�a�big�ambition�of�ours,�

realising�many�ways�to�get�local�people,�local�schools,�local�organisations,�very�active�on�the�park�and�in�the�

venues,�and�I�can�see�that�is�going�to�continue.��Jobs,�health�and�community�engagement.�

�

I�think�the�footfall�will�be�really�important�and�we�are�getting�fantastic�footfall�in�the�Park�already.��This�will�

add�very�significantly�to�that,�regular�large�numbers�of�people�coming.��That�will�be�very�important�for�the�

sustainability�of�the�businesses�at�Westfield,�in�Stratford�High�Street,�at�Hackney�Wick,�in�Stratford�Town�

Centre,�therefore�the�sustainability�of�those�businesses�again�feeds�through�into�local�jobs�and�I�think�that�will�

be�a�really�significant�addition�to�the�footfall,�particularly�in�the�winter�months.��We�have�yet�to�see�how�the�

South�Park�keeps�its�numbers�up�during�the�cold�days�of�winter,�however�there�will�always�be�people�going�to�

watch�West�Ham�on�the�weekend.�

�

Then�the�final�thing�I�would�say�is�it�is�-�and�I�am�not�sure�how�this�will�pan�out�-�but�it�is�something�about�

profile.��The�Games�itself�was�proof�to�us�that�it�would�wake�lots�of�people�into�coming�there,�it�was�in�the�

eyes�of�the�world,�it�woke�people�up�to�the�idea�that�this�would�be�a�great�place�to�bring�businesses�or�

institutions.�Plus�the�programme�of�Olympicopolis�that�we�have�with�University�College�London�(UCL),�the�

Victoria�and�Albert�Museum�(V&A),�the�other�institutions�coming,�businesses�coming�to�the�international�

quarter�and�so�forth,�I�think�just�keeping�the�profile�among�the�maximum�number�of�people�that,�this�is�a�place�

where�there�is�still�opportunity,�you�can�still�bring�your�business,�you�can�still�bring�jobs,�is�very�important.��

Therefore�I�think�those�sort�of�summarise�some�of�the�details�of�how�I�think�this�move�might�help.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��Thank�you�very�much�for�that.��I�think�your�opening�comment�about�it�being�

not�a�stadium-led�development�in�the�sense�that�certain�other�stadium�developments�are�is�a�fair�one�because�

it�was�much�more�an�Olympic�Park�and�it�was�always�intended�as�a�one�piece.��The�original�plan�of�course�was�

to�reduce�the�Olympic�Stadium�to�a�25,000-seat�stadium�with�an�athletics�track�around�it�to�be�used�primarily�

for�athletics,�and�then�to�try�to�find�an�extra�tenant�and�we�have�moved�obviously�some�way�from�that�since�

that�original�plan.��Critics�have�argued�that�was�always�the�wrong�plan�and�it�has�been�expensive�and�time-

consuming�to�get�to�where�we�are�now,�which�is,�I�personally�think,�probably�the�right�position.��How�essential�

is�it�to�the�wider�regeneration�plans�of�the�Park�to�have�a�Premier�League�football�club�in�the�stadium?�

�

Dr
Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
of
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,
LLDC):��I�think�

Kim�will�rehearse�this�and�probably�comment�more�on�the�history,�we�came�in�later.�However�clearly�the�reason�

that�the�Development�Corporation�-�or�the�Olympic�Park�Legacy�Company�(OPLC)�that�was,�took�the�stadium�

in�that�direction�was�that�they�felt�that�was�the�way�in�which�the�stadium�could�be�commercially�successful�in�

the�long�run,�therefore�there�was�that�element�to�it.��However,�also,�it�is�this�point�about�driving�activity,�

leveraging�jobs�and�leveraging�business�investment�in�the�area,�therefore�clearly�we�think�that�is�the�way�we�

took�it,�that�this�is�the�best�way�to�make�the�stadium�work�for�the�long-term�regeneration.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��The�commercial�success�of�the�stadium,�I�would�agree,�is�very�important�to�

the�ongoing�future�of�the�Park.��What�levers�do�you�have�to�ensure�that�the�stadium�remains�a�community�

asset�though?�

�

Dr
Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
of
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,
LLDC):��I�think�

that�might�be�something�that�you�want�to�pass�on�to�Kim,�but�at�the�very�heart�of�the�structure�is�a�joint�

venture�with�the�local�community.��I�almost�would�not�go�beyond�that�because,�whatever�happens�to�us,�that�is�

an�immense�driver�in�any�future�relationship,�a�significant�stakeholding�from�the�local�community�in�the�form�

of�the�local�authority.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��Okay.��Kim,�do�you�want�to�come�in�on�that?�

�

Page 16



 

Kim
Bromley-Derry
(Chief
Executive,
London
Borough
of
Newham):��Yes,�just�two�or�three�points�I�

would�say,�is�firstly�just�going�back�in�history.�I�think�that�the�council�has�been�committed�to�creating�Stratford�

as�a�metropolitan�hub�for�a�number�of�years�and�that�started�really�with�the�support�of�the�Jubilee�Line�

extension�and�its�own�investment�in�Stratford�Station.��Therefore�I�think�there�is�a�longer-term�vision�that�the�

council�had�around�Stratford�as�a�whole�and�obviously�subsequently�that�was�one�of�the�key�reasons�for�

backing�the�bid�and�wanting�to�ensure�that�there�were�some�sort�of�legacy�arrangements.��I�think�obviously�as�

the�authority�that�was�dealing�with�the�planning�and�the�licensing�of�the�Park,�we�built�that�in�to�all�the�

planning�applications�around�Westfield,�around�the�Olympic�Park,�around�legacy,�indeed�to�the�extent�that�the�

planning�application�dictated�some�of�the�pricing�arrangements�for�the�venues�on�the�Park.��Therefore�it�was�

something�that�we�thought�of�very,�very�early�on.�

�

In�terms�of�our�relationship�with�West�Ham,�it�pre-dates�the�Olympics�of�course,�it�pre-dates�the�Olympic�Park,�

because�obviously�it�is�a�club�that�is�firmly�embedded�in�the�council,�and�I�think�that�very,�very�early�on�we�felt�

that�the�original�proposals�for�the�stadium�were�not�the�right�proposals.�We�lobbied�very,�very�hard�for�

something�more�akin�to�Manchester�City’s�and�the�Commonwealth�and�subsequently�perhaps�the�Glasgow�

Games,�however,�if�you�want�to�start�to�deal�with�the�convergence�and�reverse�the�polarity�of�London�and�

have�footfall�and�economic�regeneration�in�East�London,�then�you�have�to�have�some�anchors.��Westfield�is�an�

anchor�for�that.��The�Olympic�Park�and�the�Olympic�Stadium�were�absolutely�going�to�be�one�of�the�anchors.��

We�would�argue,�and�we�certainly,�with�the�previous�owners,�felt�very�supportive�towards�them�in�terms�of�the�

football�stadium.���Obviously�with�the�new�owners�we�submitted�a�joint�bid�with�West�Ham�as�the�original�bid,�

which�won�the�process,�however�subsequently,�because�of�various�legal�challenges,�we�moved�on�to�a�second�

bid�process.��Therefore�we�always�felt�that�West�Ham�was�a�key�component�of�the�Olympic�Stadium�because�it�

created�financial�viability,�it�created�jobs.��The�original�plans�created�a�few�days’�athletics�a�year,�no�permanent�

jobs,�no�footfall�all�year�around,�and�therefore�very,�very�early�on�we�saw�West�Ham�as�a�very�key�component�

of�it.��Subsequently�we�have�been�able�to�bid�and�obviously�we�entered�into�a�subsequent�relationship�with�the�

LLDC,�however�we�still�felt�West�Ham�were�an�important�component�of�that.��I�think�that�on�several�counts,�

firstly,�West�Ham�had�shown�their�commitment�to�community�learning,�they�have�an�education�zone�in�the�

Boleyn�Ground�currently,�which�many�of�our�schools�use.��The�council�has�a�very�good�relationship�and�it�was�

inevitable�in�terms�of�the�stadium,�there�was�going�to�be�the�opportunity�for�learning�zones�in�the�stadium.�

�

We�also�felt�that�having�a�viable�business�that�was�an�all-year�around�business�meant�that�we�could�create�

permanent�jobs�and�use�that�as�an�opportunity�to�then�create�activity�during�the�rest�of�the�year.�

�

I�think�the�other�thing�we�would�say�is�there�was�a�real�commitment�in�our�earlier�bidding�process�from�West�

Ham�around�funding�a�community�trust�and�enhancing�their�community�offer,�which�was�always�part�of�the�

original�bid,�and�subsequently�it�has�become�part�of�the�subsequent�bids.�

�

For�us�though�it�is�another�part�of�the�jigsaw�in�terms�of�the�regeneration�of�the�whole�of�East�London�and�in�a�

sense�we�get�the�opportunity�now�to�help�regenerate�Green�Street�and�that�was�always�part�of�the�original�

plan.��For�us,�showing�that�there�was�a�legacy�benefit�for�the�whole�of�East�London�and�the�whole�of�Newham,�

not�just�Stratford,�is�really,�really�important.��Therefore�the�potential�regeneration�in�Green�Street�is�critical�for�

us.�

�

Also,�we�think�that�it�creates�other�opportunities�as�we�move�across�into�East�Ham�and�then�down�towards�the�

docks�as�well.��We�will�only�get�that�if�there�are�visitor�attractions�365�days�a�year,�therefore�hotels,�retail,�

hospitality,�as�well�as�sports�activities.��We�are�very,�very�keen�on�the�jobs�and�growth�agenda.��It�is�one�where�

you�will�transform�the�life�outcomes�of�the�residents�of�Newham�and�part�of�the�agreements�are�that,�75%�of�

the�jobs�in�the�stadium�will�be�targeted�towards�Newham�residents.��We�also�had�agreements�during�the�Games�

with�the�host�boroughs�around�jobs�targeted�towards�East�London�residents�and�that�continues�with�all�our�

relationships�with�the�LLDC�and�with�the�various�tenants�in�the�stadium.�

Page 17



 

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��Do�you�have�a�follow-up,�Len?�

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��Yes,�please.��Paul,�you�mentioned�earlier�on�about�relationships�being�crucial.��In�the�

continuing�regeneration�activities�in�the�years�to�come,�the�operators�that�you�are�out�doing�business,�trying�to�

look�for�at�the�moment,�I�presume�you�have�two,�I�do�not�want�to�get�into�the�details�of�that,�however�I�want�

to�get�some�idea�of�that�process�that�you�are�doing�about�what�you�envisage�these�operators�adding�in�value�

to�the�various�tenants�that�you�have�on�site.��Is�it�operators�just�for�this�stadium�or�is�it�operators�for�your�role�

in�relationship�to�the�other�stadia�that�exist�on�the�site?��What�are�the�components�of�this�and�maybe�you�can�

explain�where�Newham�come�into�that�issue,�what�is�it,�and�how�do�you�think�you�are�going�to�manage�their�

influence�on�it?��Is�this�stepping�back�from�your�role?��What�is�your�--�how�does�this�work?��Do�you�know�what�

I�mean?�

�

Dr
Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
of
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,
LLDC):��To�go�in�

order,�the�bidding�process�is�live�at�the�moment,�and�so�I�will�say�almost�nothing�about�it,�except�in�general�

terms;�it�is�for�the�stadium�plus�an�area�around�the�stadium�towards�the�south.��E20�Stadium�LLP�will�appoint�

shortly�an�operator.�

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��Which�is�you?�

�

Dr
Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
of
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,
LLDC):��That�is�us�

and�the�London�Borough�of�Newham�jointly.�

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��OK.�

�

Dr
Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
of
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,
LLDC):��The�

model�is�essentially�the�same�or�similar�to�the�Aquatic�Centre�and�the�Copper�Box�where�we�have�an�operator�

they�have�a�10�year�concession�to�operate�that;�that�is�GLL�--)�

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��However�that�is�a�contract,�is�it�not,�it�is�just�a�straightforward�contract?��That�is�not�a�

framework�of�activities�that�you�want�to�see�within�the�stadium,�is�it?��Is�it�a�pure�contract?�

�

Dr
Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
of
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,
LLDC):��It�is,�and�I�

was�going�to�say�that�obviously�we�have�another�operator/manager�for�the�parklands;�that�is�now�Cofely,�and�

that�is�how�we�worked�it�in�the�press�and�broadcast�centre�where�Here�East�are�in�there;�and�there�is�a�long�

lease�to�them,�as�tenants�on�a�long�lease.��Therefore�there�is�a�mixture�of�different�arrangements�and�that�is�

always�how�it�has�been�envisaged�to�be.�

�

I�mean�our�approach�for�all�of�those�has�been,�first�of�all,�to�build�into�contracts�the�key�things�we�want.�

Therefore�all�the�contracts�we�have�operated�so�far,�and�the�Stadium�Plus�contract�will�be�the�same;�they�are�

very�clear�about�what�we�want�in�terms�of�local�employment,�what�we�want�in�terms�of�apprenticeships,�what�

we�want�in�terms�of�community�engagement�and�what�we�want�in�terms�of�community�days.�Therefore�I�think�

the�stadium�will�be�the�same�as�the�other�venues�in�which�there�are�certain�days�that�are�set�apart�for�

community�use,�on�reduced�charge,�no�charge,�usually�in�the�other�venues.��That�is�very�clear�about�those�sorts�

of�things,�very�clear�about�London�Living�Wage,�you�know,�all�of�the�things�that�we�need�as�the�regenerative�

elements�of�that,�therefore�write�those�into�the�contract.��Be�really�clear�at�the�point�that�you�then�let�the�

contract�that�you�meant�it�when�you�wrote�it�in�the�contract�and�seek�to�build�the�relationships�that�are�going�

to�deliver�that.��The�world�is�littered�with�contracts,�not�our�part�of�the�world,�but�the�rest�of�the�world,�

contracts�with�high�ideals,�and��everybody�forgets�what�they�agreed.��Therefore�we�have�always�followed�

through,�whether�it�is�construction,�operation�of�a�venue�or�operation�of�the�parklands,�by�building�the�

Page 18



 

relationships�that�deliver�towards�those�targets,�and�then�very�practical�support.��Therefore�the�stadium�will�

not�be�any�different�from�those.�

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��Who�will�be�responsible�for�programming,�future�programming,�or�of�activities�within�the�

stadium.�Will�they�go�out�and�say�what�concerts�are�taking�place�or�is�that�somebody�else?�

�

Dr
Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
of
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,
LLDC):��Yes,�you�

know�more,�Kim�--�

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��And�can�you�explain�who�is�the�client�then,�is�it�E20�or�which�officers�they�use,�or�is�it�

Newham�officers�or�MDC�officers;�who�is�managing�this�contract?�

�

Kim
Bromley-Derry
(Chief
Executive,
London
Borough
of
Newham):��Just�to�go�back,�the�stadium�is�a�

joint�venture�for�103�years�between�LLDC�and�Newham,�it�is�35%�Newham,�65%�LLDC.��All�the�decisions�on�

the�stadium,�whether�it�be�construction,�operator�or�calendars,�are�joint�decisions�between�Newham�and�LLDC.��

Obviously�that�includes�the�Island�site,�which�includes�the�community�track�as�well.��Therefore�the�operator�

process�is�the�delivery�agent,�therefore�the�client�is�E20,�which�is�LLDC�and�Newham,�which�has�a�set�of�criteria�

around�activation�of�the�whole�Island�site�and�with�the�addition�of�the�South�Park.��They�will�be�responsible�

over�and�above�the�current�lease�agreements,�which�are�99�years�for�West�Ham�and�50�years�for�UK�Athletics,�

which�have�fixed�points�in�the�calendar.��Obviously�the�football�season�has�fixed�points,�although�there�may�be�

activity�between�matches.��That�is�something�for�the�operator�to�negotiate�with�one�of�the�tenants,�which�is�

West�Ham.�

�

There�are�also�20�days�of�athletics,�which�may�be�interspersed�with�other�activities�such�as�concerts�and�other�

events.��That�needs�to�be�negotiated�between�UK�Athletics�and�the�operator.��Therefore�they�are�responsible�

for�the�calendar�and�maximising�the�revenue�of�the�stadium�outside�the�standing�contracts�that�we�have.��

There�is�also,�as�part�of�the�community�use,�for�103�years,�a�minimum�of�10�days’�community�use�a�year�in�the�

stadium,�which�is�an�arrangement�with�Newham�Council.��Therefore�the�operator�will�need�to�negotiate�with�

Newham�Council�in�relation�to�those�10�days�as�well.��Their�real�task�is�to�maximise�the�operation,�the�

commercial�benefits�of�the�stadium,�to�have�a�relationship�with�the�tenants,�rather�than�public�bodies,�which�

probably�are�not�the�right�people,�to�have�relationships�with�the�set�of�tenants,�sports�tenants,�and�managing�

those�relationships.��Therefore�it�is�--��

�

Len
Duvall
AM:���Therefore�I�am�right�in�thinking�that�they�have�a�crucial�role�in�the�future�regeneration�

issue,�therefore�is�it�a�strong�client�or�a�soft�client?��Are�you�confident�enough�in�your�contract,�and�I�am�still�

unclear,�in�terms�of�who�is�on�the�day-to-day�management�of�this�contract,�however�of�course�we�want�them�

to�go�on�and�do�the�business,�however�there�is�a�framework�they�have�to�operate�within,�the�contract�

framework.�Therefore�who�is�it�that�is�going�to�hold�these�people�to�account?��I�am�a�simple�soul.��Do�I�come�

back�to�you�or�both�of�you�at�some�stage�if�some�things�start�to�go�wrong�in�future�years,�or�is�it�--�who�is�it�

that�is�going�to�be�managing�it?�

�

Kim
Bromley-Derry
(Chief
Executive,
London
Borough
of
Newham):��At�the�moment,�as�we�go�through�

the�development�process,�there�are�employees�of�Newham�and�there�are�employees�of�the�LLDC�who�work�

together�as�a�team�under�the�umbrella�of�E20.��Obviously�their�host�employers�are�still�LLDC�and�Newham,�

however�they�work�to�the�E20�board,�and�that�will�continue.�There�will�be�a�joint�team,�which�will�be�made�up�

of�officers�from�both�those�organisations�and�any�additional�officers�we�need,�who�will�be�the�client�side�with�

the�operator.��They�will�also�be�the�client�side�in�relation�to�any�other�work�that�is�going�on�in�relation�to�the�

stadium,�because�there�will�be�a�number�of�relationships�in�relation�to�the�stadium.�

�

Page 19



 

What�is�likely�to�happen�as�we�move�towards�stadium�operation�is�that�we�will�develop�that�team.��It�will�be�a�

small�team,�it�does�not�need�to�be�a�huge�team,�because�we�need�to�optimise�the�efficiencies�of�it.��However�

they�will�be�the�client�side�and�they�will�directly�report�back�to�the�two�chief�executives,�one�of�the�LLDC�and�

one�of�Newham,�who�ultimately�will�be�reporting�back�to�the�E20�board,�which�is�made�up�of�Newham�Council�

representatives�through�Newham�Legacy�Investments,�which�is�the�company�that�we�have�set�up,�and�also�the�

LLDC�Board.�Therefore�there�will�be�a�governance�arrangement�through�those�two�organisations.��Certainly�in�

terms�of�the�agreement�we�have,�there�is�a�governance�structure�that�links�into�that.��Therefore�I�think�that�the�

operator�will�report�directly�to�whoever�the�LLDC�and�Newham�decide�is�going�to�be�their�point�of�contact�at�

the�point�of�appointing�an�operator.��We�have�not�decided�that�yet,�however�we�will�be�deciding�that�over�the�

next�six�to�nine�months.�

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��However�it�is�a�crucial�appointment,�is�it�not?�

�

Kim
Bromley-Derry
(Chief
Executive,
London
Borough
of
Newham):��Absolutely.�

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��For�future�activities.��Chair,�we�might�want�to�follow�up�on�some�further�information,�not�

commercial�confidentiality�stuff,�about�that�process,�and�about�the�importance�of�that�outside,�we�will�seek�

some�further�information�from�you.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��Yes,�with�the�agreement�of�Members,�I�think�what�we�will�do�is�we�will�write�

to�the�appropriate�parties�after�the�meeting�in�consultation�with�the�Deputy�Chair,�if�that�is�convenient�to�do�

that.�

�

I�would�like�to�move�on�now,�if�I�can,�and�bring�Mark�Donnelly�in,�because�you�have�been�waiting�very�

patiently�indeed�while�we�talk�about�other�projects.��I�would�like�to�ask�you�about�QPR’s�plans�and�why�you�

have�chosen�Old�Oak�Common�as�a�place�to�build�a�new�stadium?�

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��Essentially,�hearing�

some�of�the�sort�of�general�discussions�around�the�Olympic�Park�and�the�sort�of�consistent�approach�and�very�

holistic�approach�to�the�development�and�the�need�to�have�certain�anchors�and�for�the�sort�of�long-term�

place-making�of�the�area,�very�much�focused�around�homes�and�jobs�and�education,�so�the�community,�that�is�

exactly�the�principle�that�we�are�looking�to�try�to�bring�to�Old�Oak�Common�and�to�our�masterplan.�

�

I�will�just�take�a�step�back.��At�QPR�we�have�been�in�Hammersmith�and�Fulham�for�very�nearly�100�years.��We�

have�existed�in�the�local�area�in�Brent�and�Ealing�for�sort�of�35�years�of�that.��Therefore�we�are�very�much�a�

local�community�club�and�that�is�something�that�you�heard�from�Joe�about�West�Ham,�how�important�that�is.��

We�are�very�much�attached�to�our�roots.��We�are�the�kind�of�club�that�you�have�granddad,�the�dad�and�the�

son,�all�come�along�on�a�Saturday,�and�it�is�passed�from�family�to�family.��Out�of�our�fan�base,�a�significant�

proportion�of�that�fan�base�live�in�Hammersmith�and�Fulham,�Brent�and�Ealing;�therefore�we�are�very�much�

attached�to�our�local�environment�and�we�have�very�close�roots�throughout�that�community�from�the�club�

itself,�and�also�through�our�community�trust.�

�

QPR�as�a�club,�we�have�an�18,000-seat�stadium,�we�are�by�far�the�smallest�stadium�in�the�Premier�League�and�

we�would�be�the�fifth�smallest�stadium�in�the�championship.�Therefore�the�rationale�for�QPR�as�a�football�club�

to�continue�to�thrive�and�to�try�to�survive�long�term,�within�the�ever-increasing�world�of�football,�as�the�

demands�on�the�clubs�increase,�we�need�to�move�to�a�new�stadium�to�thrive�and�to�survive�long�term�in�any�

kind�of�Premier�League�level�or�even�championship�level.�

�

Therefore�we�have�been�looking�at�sites�for�well�over�five�years.��As�I�said,�we�are�very�much�wedded�to�our�

local�base�and�we�have�been�looking�in�Hammersmith�and�Fulham�throughout�that�period.��We�have�looked�

Page 20



 

very�closely�at�two�other�sites�and�we�have�done�a�lot�of�preparatory�work�and�we�are�dealing�with�the�local�

authority�and�for�various�reasons�we�did�not�get�support�to�move�forward�on�those�other�two�sites.�

�

We�were�then,�about�two�to�two�and�a�half�years�ago,�steered�towards�Old�Oak�Common.��There�was�an�

emerging�sort�of�masterplan�and�vision�that�was�emanating�from�the�Greater�London�Authority�(GLA)�and�the�

Mayor,�very�much�working�with�Hammersmith�and�Fulham,�Brent�and�Ealing.��Initially�it�was�around�transport�

and�the�whole�opportunity�that�potentially�High�Speed�2�(HS2)�and�Crossrail�may�bring�to�that�area.��However�

it�was�very�much�looking�at�a�masterplan�for�this�area.��Really�what�you�have�seen�Stratford�and�the�Olympics�

leave�as�a�legacy�in�East�London,�West�London�desperately�needs�a�similar�large-scale�project,�and�as�the�plans�

have�developed,�and�as�we�have�looked�at�this,�we�think�there�is�a�real�opportunity�at�Old�Oak�Common�and�

the�surrounding�area�to�deliver�a�project�almost�bigger�than�the�Olympic�Park�in�terms�of�legacy.��We�are�

talking�about�24,000�homes�and�over�50,000�jobs�created�in�that�wider�area.�

�

QPR�as�a�club,�we�obviously�started�this�as�a�stadium�project�and�it�has�grown�into�an�ambition�to�lead�the�

overall�masterplan�and�work�with�the�local�authorities�and�the�GLA�and�the�Mayor�to�really�deliver�this�

masterplan�and�deliver�the�vision�for�the�whole�area.��Why�Old�Oak�Common,�well�I�think�there�is�really�no�

other�suitable�site,�I�think�the�implication�for�the�club�is,�if�we�are�not�able�to�deliver�this�at�Old�Oak�Common,�

we�have�some�very�hard�decisions�to�make�as�a�club.��I�think�it�would�be�very�uncomfortable�for�the�club�to�

move�out�of�its�boundary,�it�would�be�deeply�unpopular.��About�nine�years�ago�there�was�discussion�about�one�

of�the�previous�ownership�groups�talking�about�either�moving�out�or�ground-sharing�with�Fulham,�therefore�I�

think�all�of�those�options�have�been�looked�at,�and�there�was�a�huge�backlash�from�our�fans�against�any�

alternative�that�did�not�involve�staying�local,�staying�within�Hammersmith�and�Fulham.�

�

I�think�Old�Oak�Common�is�remarkably�similar�to�Stratford�as�a�site.��It�is�a�very�difficult�site.��It�is�surrounded�

by�railway�lines�and�railway�infrastructure.��It�has�a�canal�running�through�the�middle�of�it�and�at�the�moment�it�

is�an�industrial�site.��Some�very�successful�businesses�are�located�there.��However�the�employment�density�is�

pretty�low�for�the�size�of�the�area�that�the�businesses�currently�occupy.��Therefore�we�think�it�needs�a�

comprehensive�regeneration,�it�needs�a�catalyst,�which�something�like�a�football�stadium,�as�you�have�heard,�

can�really�come�forward�and�bring�early�development.�

�

HS2�undoubtedly�could�bring�forward�transformation�and�regeneration,�however�you�are�looking�at�that�being�

20�years�plus�really�before�that�is�delivered.��I�think�a�football�stadium�can�act�as�that�catalyst.�It�can�help�

overcome�some�of�the�significant�infrastructure�challenges�that�site�would�have�to�bring�forward�as�a�

development,�and�create�a�place�where�people�would�like�to�live�and�create�an�environment�that�provides�jobs�

and�community�facilities.��Therefore�I�think�that�we�strongly�feel�that�a�stadium�is�absolutely�at�the�heart�of�

bringing�forward�that�regeneration,�it�can�really�bring�it�forward�a�lot�earlier�than�any�other�form�of�

development,�and�it�will�really�become�part�of�that�place-making.��As�you�know,�we�are�working�with�the�team�

that�delivered�the�Emirates�and�the�regeneration�around�Arsenal,�and�I�think�you�are�going�to�have�to�look�at�

some�of�the�examples�of�successful�stadium�regeneration�place-making�to�see,�in�a�reasonably�short�space�of�

time,�that�a�stadium�can�help�really�transform�an�area�and�bring�forward�a�lot�of�housing�and�a�lot�of�jobs.�W�

are�very�aware�of�what�a�disparate�fan�base�we�have,�and�therefore�we�want�to�bring�forward�an�

accommodation�mix,�which�befits�our�fan�base�and�really�meets�the�needs�of�a�wide�range�of�people.�Therefore�

clearly�there�is�going�to�be�a�strong�need�for�affordable�housing�in�the�area,�and�a�whole�mix�of�tenures,�to�

create�a�genuine�mixed-use�community,�which�the�club�is�at�the�heart�of�it.��That�is�why�we�think�Old�Oak�

Common�really�is�a�massive�opportunity.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��What�do�you�see�as�the�risks�of�moving�the�club�to�Old�Oak�Common?�

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��I�think�the�risk�of�any�

stadium�project,�a�stadium�is�a�complex�thing�to�get�planning,�to�build,�and�a�significant�financial�investment�

Page 21



 

just�to�develop�the�project,�and�our�shareholders�have�already�committed�significant�funds,�over�£5�million�to�

the�process�so�far,�and�we�know�how�much�it�will�take�to�get�to�planning�and�then�to�try�and�put�the�land�

together.��It�is�a�major,�major�project,�therefore�clearly�the�financial�risks�are�significant.��It�really�is�a�big�ask�to�

pull�that�project�together.�

�

Clubs�and�supporters�are�quite�traditional�and�our�fans�have�been�coming�to�Loftus�Road�for,�as�I�say,�nearly�

100�years,�therefore�they�know�the�stadium,�they�are�very�familiar�with�it�and�they�love�it.�It�is�a�very�old-

fashioned�stadium�in�a�lot�of�ways,�it�is�quite�unique�almost�now,�if�you�look�around�many�of�the�other�Premier�

League�grounds,�we�are�one�of�the�last�remaining�traditional�old�stadia.��We�are�in�the�heart�of�a�community,�in�

a�residential�area�now,�therefore�I�think�moving�that�and�creating�a�new�environment�obviously�carries�a�risk�for�

the�club�in�terms�of�its�supporters,�and�you�have�to�make�sure�that�you�can�bring�those�supporters�along�on�

that�journey�with�us,�making�sure�they�are�fully�engaged�in�the�process�and�they�have�their�say�in�what�their�

new�stadium�and�home�will�look�like.�

�

Obviously�the�further�you�move�away�from�your�fan�base,�I�think�that�increases�the�risk�significantly.��You�have�

alienation�and�the�most�extreme�result�is�obviously�Wimbledon�and�Milton�Keynes�(MK)�Dons,�you�kill�the�

original�plan�and�they�had�to�restart�again.��I�think�all�of�those�are�the�risks�attached�to�it.��However,�I�think�the�

opportunity�and�the�ambition�to�lead�that�legacy�project,�I�think,�outweighs�all�of�that�from�our�club’s�

perspective�certainly.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��You�touched�on�Loftus�Road�and�obviously�you�have�been�there�for�100�

years,�or�the�best�part�of�100�years.��What�are�you�going�to�leave�behind?��What�is�going�to�happen�to�Loftus�

Road�if�and�when�QPR�moves�to�Old�Oak�Common?�

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��I�think�that�is�the�

second�part�of�the�legacy�and�the�place-making�and�the�regeneration�that�we�can�do.��Loftus�Road,�as�I�said,�is�

in�a�heavily�densely�populated�area.��White�City�has�a�mix�of�environments�already�and�has�some�areas�with�

some�challenges,�therefore�I�think�there�is�an�aspiration�for�a�long-term�plan�for�White�City�and�how�to�

potentially�look�at�regenerating�parts�of�White�City.��I�think�Loftus�Road�can�form�part�of�that�regeneration�as�

well.��The�obvious�thing�is,�obviously,�housing�and�accommodation�to�be�provided�on�Loftus�Road.��Again,�it�

can�be�done�very�sensitively�and�with�a�really�strong�view�on�the�legacy�of�the�club�and�the�legacy�of�the�

community�that�the�football�club�has�left�behind.�

�

Therefore�I�think,�and�QPR�think,�it�will�be�however�long�it�will�take�to�build�a�new�stadium,�five�or�six�or�seven�

or�eight�years’�time,�whenever�that�is,�however�I�really�think�that�can�kick-start�a�regenerative�effect�on�White�

City.��We�are�already�seeing�in�that�area�some�huge�development�projects�around�Westfield�and�the�British�

Broadcasting�Corporation,�however�they�do�not�really�come�and�touch�right�on�the�edge�of�the�White�City�

estate,�which�is�where�some�of�the�major�issues�are�in�that�area.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��Whenever�there�is�a�regenerative�plan�agreed�for�a�particular�area,�there�will�

be�people�that�will�gain�and�people�that�will�potentially�lose�out.��These�things�do�tend�to�get�quite�polarised�

sometimes�in�terms�of�a�debate.��I�do�not�really�want�to�get�into�the�merits�or�otherwise�of�your�proposed�

scheme�or�alternative�proposed�schemes,�and�obviously�we�are�aware�that�there�are�others.��What�have�you�

done�as�a�club�to�canvas�the�views�of�local�residents�and�your�supporters,�to�get�their�views�as�to�whether�it�is�

the�right�thing�that�you�are�proposing�to�do?�

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��Consultation�is�going�

to�play�a�big�part�throughout�the�process.��We�have�already�done�a�couple�of�major�pieces�of�consultation.��We�

have�surveyed,�we�have�a�database�of�90,000�supporters,�of�which�nearly�40,000�of�those�are�in�Hammersmith�

and�Fulham,�Brent�and�Ealing,�and�so�we�have�asked�them�about�plans�for�a�new�stadium,�“Are�you�

Page 22



 

supportive?��Where�should�it�be?��We�are�looking�at�Old�Oak�Common�as�an�option.��What�are�your�views�on�

that?”��First�of�all�we�had�a�significant�response,�we�had�nearly�9,000�survey�results�come�back,�which�for�a�

survey�of�this�nature,�we�were�absolutely�delighted�with,�and�it�was�overwhelmingly�positive,�over�85%�were�

strongly�supportive�of�our�plans�and�strongly�supportive�of�the�plans�to�relocate�to�Old�Oak�Common.��

Therefore�we�know�that�within�our�---�there�are�always�then�questions�about�what�does�the�stadium�look�like,�

what�is�the�capacity,�what�facilities,�where�am�I�going�to�sit,�and�all�of�the�rest�of�those,�which�obviously�will�

come�further�down�the�line�and�we�will�go�out�and�we�will�re-consult�with�our�fans�and�we�will�have�working�

groups�and�forums�with�all�the�different�fan�groups�that�we�have.��We�know�that�we�have�strong�support�from�

the�QPR�supporter�base,�which�is�really�important�to�us.�

�

We�are�just�now�in�the�middle�of�another�significant�consultation�exercise.��We�have�sent�leaflets�out�to�50,000�

local�businesses�and�residents�in�the�wider�area,�again�across�the�three�key�boroughs.��We�have�had�a�very�

good�response�to�that�so�far,�and�again,�out�of�the�responses�that�we�have�had,�we�have�had�over�80%�

supportive�of�our�plans,�and�over�85%�supportive�of�the�plan�to�locate�the�stadium�within�the�masterplan�at�

Old�Oak�Common.��Again,�we�think�that�is�overwhelming�support�from�the�exercise.�

�

This�week�we�are�running�a�public�exhibition,�again�spread�across�the�three�boroughs,�so�yesterday�and�today�

it�is�at�Loftus�Road,�and�then�it�moves�to�Ealing�and�then�to�Brent�towards�the�weekend.��We�have�displays�of�

our�plans�and�we�have�members�of�the�project�team�there�to�talk�to�members�of�the�public�and�businesses�who�

want�to�go�along�and�ask�questions,�and�opportunities�there�to�fill�out�a�survey�and�to�fill�out�responses�and�

questions,�and�we�will�collate�all�of�that�information.��The�consultation,�I�think,�closes�at�the�end�of�

September/beginning�of�October,�we�will�collate�all�of�that�and�then�we�will�respond�within�our�masterplan�

thinking,�based�on�the�results�of�that�consultation.��Then�we�will�expect�to�go�out�for�further�consultation�

before�we�submit�a�planning�application.�

�

Navin
Shah
AM
(Deputy
Chair):��Yes,�Mark,�you�mentioned�that�you�want�to�transform�the�area.��Can�you�

tell�us�the�kind�of�vision�you�are�promoting,�you�have�to�sort�of�show�what�kind�of�place�you�want�to�create�in�

Old�Oak�Common?�

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��Yes,�we�think�the�

opportunity�is�significant,�therefore�it�is�a�large-scale�plan,�we�are�talking�about�a�masterplan�that�

demonstrates�the�opportunity�to�deliver�24,000�homes�and�the�opportunity�for�commercial�space�that�would�

deliver�over�50,000�jobs�within�the�area.��Very�much�at�the�heart�of�it�obviously�we�would�see�a�stadium�and�

we�would�see�that�really�forming�a�key�part�of�the�community.��In�some�ways�it�is�sort�of�going�back�100�years.��

100�years�ago�every�football�stadium�was�located�in�the�middle�of�its�fan�base�and�it�was�within�densely�

populated�areas.��20�or�30�years�ago�there�was�a�move�to�move�to�more�out-of-town�football�stadia�in�big�

retail�parks,�with�massive�car�park�spaces�around�them�and�people�would�all�drive�in�and�maybe�not�the�best�

transport�links.�

�

We�think�Old�Oak�gives�us�a�chance�to�kind�of�go�back�100�years�and�really�become�a�key�part�of�that�local�

community.��Therefore�it�would�be�the�stadium,�however�as�part�of�the�stadium�we�see�a�real�mixed-use�offer.��

The�stadium�would�be�more�than�just�football,�as�every�stadium�is,�and�you�have�heard�the�plans�for�the�

Olympic�Stadium,�it�will�be�much�more�than�just�a�football�tenant.��Therefore�again�with�the�stadium�you�can�

have�a�whole�variety�of�uses,�from�corporate�for�conferencing,�community�days,�other�sports,�entertainment,�

weekend�events,�and�you�can�have�regular�calendar�events�around�the�stadium,�around�the�spaces�you�create�

within�the�stadium.�

�

I�have�worked�at�a�number�of�other�venues�before,�looking�at�things�like�education,�training,�adult�education.��

Because�you�have�the�space�within�the�stadium�that�is�designed�to�accommodate�that,�it�cries�out�for�providing�

that�sort�of�education�opportunities.�

Page 23



 

�

Around�the�stadium,�we�very�much�see�hotels,�hotels�work�incredibly�well�alongside�corporate�business�with�

stadia;�therefore�we�see�the�opportunity�for�a�number�of�hotels�around�the�stadium.��I�have�previously�worked�

at�the�O2�and�I�have�seen�the�impact�of�a�venue�with�bars�and�restaurants�around�it�and�creating�an�

entertainment�type�district.��Again,�we�have�a�population�living�close�by�with�24,000�homes,�you�have�a�

catchment�area�of�50,000�to�60,000�people.��You�need�to�create�places�where�they�can�socialise,�provide�local�

schools,�provide�local�health�care�trusts,�community�facilities,�leisure�facilities,�therefore�we�see�very�much�as�

part�of�our�masterplan�thinking�all�of�that�will�be�delivered�as�part�of�a�wider�masterplan.�

�

However�we�think�the�kick-start�for�all�of�that�is�the�stadium�and�the�stadium�becomes�the�key�delivery�and�

the�key�sort�of�asset�within�the�centre�of�that�wider�area.��You�also�obviously�need�the�transport�and�the�

infrastructure�in�place�to�make�it�a�place�where�people�can�get�to,�and�where�they�can�get�around,�and�that�is�

going�to�be�a�key�part�of�the�delivery�as�well.�

�

Navin
Shah
AM
(Deputy
Chair):��Very�briefly,�can�you�also�tell�us�whether�there�is�any�other�focus�than�

delivering�the�football,�which�is�your�main�business?�

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��Obviously�the�club,�we�

are�a�football�club,�and�the�football�stadium�is�a�key�part�of�that.��I�think�an�anchor�tenant�is�-�and�we�heard�

from�the�Olympic�legacy�discussion,�an�anchor�tenant�is�really�important�to�a�big�masterplan�development.��It�is�

very�difficult�to�deliver�the�scale�of�residential�without�some�kind�of�place-making�and�without�having�that�

reason�why�people�would�want�to�live�in�a�new�area.��Therefore�we�think�football�clearly�is�at�the�heart�of�that.��

As�I�said,�we�feel�very�strongly�it�is�more�than�a�stadium,�we�think�it�has�to�be�-�you�have�to�design�it�and�build�

it�very�much�for�multi-use�activity,�and�whether�that�is�other�sports,�there�are�obviously�a�number�of�other�

sports�that�could�use�a�stadium,�we�would�be�very�-�in�our�current�design�thinking�we�would�make�sure�that�we�

have�that�flexibility�where�you�could�accommodate�rugby�or�any�other�sport�that�would�need�a�major�stadium.�

�

Again,�I�have�seen,�working�in�other�venues,�you�have�the�summer�season�where�you�have�entertainment,�you�

have�music,�you�have�concerts,�you�have�whole�weekend�events�in�and�around�using�the�stadium,�as�part�of�a�

wider�programming�around�it.��You�have�a�lot�of�corporate�business�and�I�think�that�again,�you�have�the�facility�

there�to�really�bring�in�corporate�business�and�again�I�think�that�is�providing�employment�and�it�is�providing��

that�animation�on�non-match�days,�because�I�think�the�worst�thing,�if�you�have�an�example�where�you�build�a�

stadium�and�it�is�not�integrated�into�the�wider�area�and�the�masterplan�and�it�is�not�busy�on�non-match�days,�

you�have�a�real�big�cold�building�within�the�middle�of�a�development,�which�is�not�great�and�that�will�not�be�a�

success.�

�

Therefore�we�are�very�conscious�that�we�will�find�uses�throughout�the�stadium�for�a�whole�wide�range�of�

different�things,�including�I�would�expect�us�to�have�a�very�similar�arrangement�where�we�have�a�number�of�

guaranteed�community�days.��We�already,�in�our�very�limited�facilities�that�we�have�at�Loftus�Road,�we�already�

have�an�education�facility,�we�have�a�classroom,�we�can�only�provide�one�area�because�we�just�do�not�have�any�

other�areas.��We�are�able�to�provide�kids�the�opportunity�to�play�on�the�pitches�as�a�culmination�of�a�school�

sports�programme�and�a�community�programme.��We�have�adult�education�and�health�programmes�and�

everything�else,�which�we�would�come�and�do�at�the�stadium,�however�you�just�have�so�much�more�capacity�

and�flexibility�to�do�that�in�new�facilities.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��All�right.��

�

Murad
Qureshi
AM:��Mark,�you�have�comprehensively�covered�the�areas�that�I�was�going�to�question�you�on.��

However,�just�some�points�of�detail.��Firstly,�when�you�talk�about�Old�Oak�Common,�you�do�not�necessarily�

mean�the�goods�yards,�do�you?��Do�you�mean�north�of�the�canal�side�of�the�station?�

Page 24



 

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��Yes,�as�part�of�a�wider�

masterplan,�you�look�at�the�whole�area.��In�that�whole�area�there�is�a�whole�transport�question�around�HS2�and�

Crossrail,�which�is�probably�a�whole�series�of�discussions�in�their�own�right.��However,�if�you�are�looking�at�a�

long-term�vision�of�a�wide-scope�masterplan,�then�you�are�potentially�looking�at�what�you�could�do�across�that�

whole�area.��Specifically,�the�stadium�is�in�the�northern�section,�correct.�

�

Murad
Qureshi
AM:��I�just�say�that�because�it�is�important�when�people�think�about�the�transport�investment�

and�the�stadium�that�they�are�not�competing.��They�are�actually�sitting�side-by-side�and�there�is�actually�the�

canal�in�between�the�two�places.��That�is�what�is�going�to,�hopefully,�help.��I�have�seen�some�of�your�

consultations�in�the�local�papers�like�The�Gazette�this�week�and�I�am�sure�you�will�get�various�views�on�that�

front.��You�are�quite�right.��The�advantage�of�a�stadium-led�development�is�that�it�is�a�landmark�to�which�

gravitates�a�lot�of�the�interest�and�kudos�of�living�by�it.�

�

Can�I�just�come�back�to�what�you�said�about�the�housing?��We�just�need�to�be�a�bit�more�forward�there�in�

terms�of�the�composition�and�the�numbers.��Could�you�take�us�to�that�in�a�bit�further�detail?��This�will�be�new�

housing�in�derelict�W12�that�has�not�seen�the�light�of�day�for�a�long�time.��We�have�to�get�it�right.�

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��Yes,�absolutely.��It�will�

be�new�housing.��Obviously,�the�exact�nature�of�that�type�of�housing�and�discussions�with�the�local�authorities�

and�the�GLA�about�the�mix�of�tenure�and�the�mix�of�form�of�housing�are�conversations�that�need�to�be�had.��I�

cannot�really�pre-empt�that�or�give�views�or�give�estimates�on�where�we�think�figures�would�be.�

�

However,�we�think,�absolutely,�it�has�to�be�a�genuine�mixed-use�community.��We�have�wealthy�Malaysian�

shareholders.��They�have�been�absolutely�adamant�from�day�one:�this�is�not�and�this�cannot�be�and�will�not�be�

successful�if�you�have�an�aim�to�build�a�development�of�high-value�overseas�investment-owned�properties.��

That�could�not�be�further�from�what�we�want�to�deliver�here.�

�

London�is�incredibly�diverse�and�has�a�wide�range�of�communities�living�within�small�pockets�and�they�are�very�

close�to�each�other�already.��That�is�something�that,�absolutely,�we�want�to�replicate�at�Old�Oak.��I�think�you�

will�see�a�wide�range�of�different�types�of�accommodation,�types�of�price�range�and�types�of�ownership�mixed�

within�that.�

�

Murad
Qureshi
AM:��You�are�right�to�emphasise�your�presence�in�Hammersmith�and�Fulham,�but�do�not�

forget�that�QPR�did�start�in�what�is�an�old�bit�of�the�City�of�Westminster�in�Droop�Street.��I�am�sure�you�do�

keep�a�presence�down�there,�I�am�reassured.�

�

There�has�been�a�change�of�regime�there�and�I�think�there�will�be�a�set�of�different�demands�on�the�housing.��

To�what�extent�are�you�going�to�be�responsive�to�that�now�that�you�are�clear�that�Old�Oak�Common�is�going�to�

be�your�new�home?�

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��Look,�we�will�work�

very�closely�with�all�the�local�authorities�that�have�an�interest�in�the�area�and�with�the�GLA�and�the�Mayor�and�

we�will,�absolutely,�deliver�on�what�their�ambitions�are.��Obviously,�it�always�has�to�come�back�to�a�commercial�

viability�issue,�but�within�that�framework�we�are�absolutely�committed�to�delivering�a�good�mix�of�affordable�-�

and�again,�exactly�what�that�mechanism�looks�like�and�how�that�fits�together,�again,�is�very�difficult�to�give�

exact�details�on�because�we�have�not�got�into�that�level�of�discussion�with�the�authorities,�and�we�do�not�have�

a�sense�of�what�they�want.�

�

Page 25



 

Murad
Qureshi
AM:��Moving�away�from�housing�to�community�facilities,�are�the�sports�facilities�you�are�

going�to�be�building�going�to�be�accessible�to�local�communities?�

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��Yes,�absolutely.��That�

is�very�much�the�plan.��Again,�using�the�stadium,�as�I�said,�the�stadium�will�be�open�to�the�community.��What�

that�will�look�like�and�how�it�can�be�managed�is�detail�down�the�line,�but�we�would�envisage�that,�as�Loftus�

Road�is,�as�very�much�part�of�the�community.��At�Loftus�Road,�we�do�things�with�Hammersmith�and�Fulham�

and�jobs�fairs�and�things�like�that.��All�of�those�sorts�of�activities�we�would�look�to�do�in�the�new�stadium.�

�

There�is�also�then�the�knock-on,�as�you�say.��We�are�looking�at�this�part.��One�of�the�options�we�are�

considering�is�doing�more�leisure�facilities,�sports�facilities.��One�of�the�legacy�projects�at�Arsenal�was�a�third-

generation�(3G)�football�pitch.��That�is�a�fantastic�asset�to�the�community�and�that�will�see�very�high�usage.��

Again,�all�of�those�things�would�be�things�that�are�under�active�consideration.��As�we�continue�to�work�through�

the�masterplan�and�have�further�discussions�with�the�planners�and�the�authorities�as�to�what�they�would�like�to�

see�within�it,�then�we�can�seek�to�firm�up�those.�

�

However,�yes,�at�the�moment,�it�very�much�is�a�good�leisure�scheme�with�facilities�that�the�community�can�use,�

as�well�as�other�leisure�facilities,�bars�and�restaurants.�

�

Murad
Qureshi
AM:��That�is�interesting�because�yesterday,�when�we�went�on�a�site�visit�to�the�Manchester�

City�football�ground,�we�saw�the�playing�facilities�being�built�right�under�the�stadium,�literally.��Is�that�what�

you�are�going�to�do?��Is�that�the�leisure�facilities?�

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��I�am�not�sure�we�have�

quite�that�much�money.��Those�facilities�are,�I�would�say,�by�far,�the�best�in�the�world.��I�think�£200�million�is�

the�rumoured�cost�of�that�facility.��It�is�absolutely�incredible.��I�was�at�the�Premier�League�yesterday�and�I�

heard�it�described�as�‘the�Disneyworld�of�football’.��I�think�it�is.��I�do�not�think�you�will�see�that�level�of�facility�

replicated�probably�anywhere�else�in�the�world�maybe,�apart�from�around�some�of�the�World�Cup�venues�in�

Qatar,�perhaps.��It�has�to�come�down�to�a�commercial�viability�question,�ultimately.��With�any�development�of�

this�scale,�that�has�to�drive�things.�

�

We�are�building�a�training�ground�within�Ealing�already.��We�have�a�long-term�agreement�with�Ealing�to�deliver�

that.��The�facilities�around�the�stadium�will�be�very�much�community-led�rather�than�specifically�what�the�club�

needs�and�how�the�club�will�then�develop.�

�

Murad
Qureshi
AM:��It�was�interesting�yesterday.��We�gained�the�impression�-�or�I�certainly�did�-�that�City�

was�going�to�take�over�the�world�with�--�

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��They�may�well�do.�

�

Murad
Qureshi
AM:��--�New�York�Football�Club�and�Melbourne�Football�Club�also�being�based�there.��That�

was�an�interesting�insight.�

�

You�mentioned�the�local�facilities�in�Ealing�at�Warren�Farm�[Sports�Centre].��There�has�been�a�bit�of�hesitation�

there.��Are�you�confirming�that�you�are�still�committed�to�that�and�that�is�--�

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��Yes,�we�continue�to�

work�very�closely�with�the�council�on�--�

�

Page 26



 

Murad
Qureshi
AM:��They�have�been�dilapidated�for�a�long�time�and�people�do�want�to�see�those�facilities�

used.�

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��Yes.��We�have�had�

fairly�well-documented�and�lengthy�planning�issues�with�a�judicial�review�that�we�now�have�through.��We�are�

working�closely�with�Ealing�on�the�programme�and�we�look�forward�to�delivering�that�within�the�short-term�or�

medium-term�future.�

�

Murad
Qureshi
AM:��Julian�Bell�[Leader,�Ealing�Council]�can�be�reassured�that�you�are�still�committed�at�the�

council�level?�

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��Yes,�we�have�

reassured�him�personally�and,�yes,�you�can�happily�--�

�

Murad
Qureshi
AM:��OK.��We�are�glad�to�confirm�that.��Just�finally,�it�was�interesting,�actually,�that�QPR�did�

move�into�Olympic�Stadium�-�well,�White�City�-�and�then�moved�back�out.�

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��It�did,�yes.�

�

Murad
Qureshi
AM:��I�am�sure�you�have�learned�from�all�that.�

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��We�did�not�last�there�

very�long.��It�was�too�big�for�our�needs�at�the�time.�

�

Murad
Qureshi
AM:��Yes.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��It�was�rather�a�different�order�of�Olympic�stadium,�I�think.�

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��Yes,�of�course.�

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��Really�to�Paul�and�to�Kim�[Bromley-Derry]�first,�lots�of�claims�are�made�about�employment�

opportunities.��You�have�an�interest�from�a�borough�perspective.��We�have�experience�of�the�Olympics�in�terms�

of�jobs�claims,�some�with�successes,�some�not.��In�that�sense,�post-Olympics�on�jobs,�you�could�tell�us�what�

local�jobs,�if�we�stick�to�the�five�boroughs�-�of�course,�the�job�market�is�wider�than�that,�but�five�boroughs�

principally�-�was�one�of�the�tasks�to�change�those.��I�am�presuming�the�new�operator’s�contract,�if�I�was�

looking�at�it,�I�would�see�somewhere�where�you�are�asking�that�operator�to�collate�statistics�about�those�local�

issues.�

�

Dr
Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
of
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,
LLDC):��Yes,�

absolutely.�

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��Tell�us�what�the�local�job�claims�are.��How�many,�roughly,�more�down�to�the�numbers,�do�the�

boroughs�think�they�are�recruiting�on�the�refurbishment�of�this�stadium�in�terms�of�the�construction�that�is�

taking�place�at�the�moment?�

�

Dr
Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
of
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,
LLDC):��Yes,�I�can�

tell�you�the�actual�figures.��In�fact,�I�think�we�just�provided�them�to�someone�else.�

�

However,�can�I�just�take�a�step�back�to�the�transformation?��We�were�really�clear�that�our�task�as�the�relevant�

corporation�was�always�to�push�hard�on�local�jobs.��The�Olympic�Delivery�Authority�(ODA)�achieved�a�certain�

Page 27



 

amount�and�the�London�Organising�Committee�of�the�Olympic�and�Paralympic�Games�(LOCOG)�achieved�a�

certain�amount�with�temporary�jobs.��We�were�always�clear�that�we�were�to�use�that�as�a�base�and�move�

beyond�it.�

�

Our�first�task�was�the�transformation�of�the�Park�and�the�other�venues,�in�fact.��In�the�end,�we�had�30%�local�

employment,�which�well�outstripped�what�had�previously�been�achieved.��It�was�pretty�good.��It�outstripped�

our�targets.��The�thing�about�the�construction�contracts�there�is�that�we�focused�very�hard�on�apprenticeships.��

We�ended�up�with�60�apprentices,�which�is�twice�as�many�as�you�would�imagine�for�a�contract�of�that�size.�

�

We�carried�that�through�to�the�venues�and�the�management�of�the�Park.��Obviously,�that�is�a�different�kind�of�

job.��The�skillsets�are�much�easier�to�achieve.��We�are�achieving�much�higher�-�you�will�get�them�but�I�can�send�

them�to�you�-�with�about�three�quarters�or�75%�and�at�the�Copper�Box,�at�one�point�had�90%�local�

employment.��We�have�very�high�levels�of�local�employment,�as�you�would�expect,�with�very�strong�

apprenticeship�programmes�running�all�the�way�through�that.��Again,�we�can�send�you�the�latest�figures�on�

those.�

�

As�I�indicated�earlier,�that�comes�from�being�really�clear�as�the�commissioning/contracting�authority�that�we�

mean�to�set�targets�in�contracts�and�then�push�those�all�the�way�through,�being�really�clear�with�ourselves,�

being�really�clear�with�contractors,�operators�or�tenants,�and�then�providing�very�practical�support.�

�

As�you�know�-�and�we�have�talked�about�this�probably�here�before�-�in�the�construction�business,�

apprenticeships�are�tough�because�contracts�often�are�not�long�enough�to�accommodate�a�full�apprenticeship.��

The�nature�of�the�subcontracting�structure�means�that�you�quickly�get�down�to�businesses�that�cannot�hire�an�

apprentice.��We�work�with�apprenticeship�training�agencies,�particularly�K10�[an�construction�apprenticeship�

scheme],�that�have�hired�the�apprentices�and�then�threaded�them�through�contracts.��That�has�worked�very�

well.��We�are�now�at�the�point,�because�we�are�starting�to�build�our�first�neighbourhood�at�Chobham�Manor,�

where�some�of�those�apprentices�are�moving�into�work�on�those�neighbourhoods�and�elsewhere.��We�have�a�

very�good�track�record�and�we�have�learned�a�lot�about�working.�

�

On�the�construction�of�the�stadium,�Balfour�Beatty�is�the�contractor,�as�you�know,�and�that�is�in�full�flow.��We�

are�probably�at�about�peak�workforce�on�that.��We�have�similarly�worked�very�hard.��There�are�good�numbers�

of�apprentices.��The�percentage�of�local�employment�is�around�25%.��That�is�our�target�or�just�slightly�under,�

actually.��The�target�groups,�such�as�women,�we�are�doing�OK,�I�would�say.��We�meet�our�targets�but�we�are�

not�as�high�as�with�transformation,�which�I�think�we�always�expected�because�the�skillsets�are�very�specialised�

in�the�stadium�work.��Obviously,�quite�a�lot�of�the�transformation�work�was�specialised,�but�there�was�also�

much�more�general�work.��We�are�guardedly�optimistic�that�we�will�see�through�the�construction�works�with�

good�levels�of�local�employment�and�apprenticeships.�

�

Once�we�get�then�to�operating,�we�are�back�in�the�territory�that�we�found�with�GLL�and�Cofely�and�the�

operators�and�contractors�in�the�venues�in�the�Park.��We�would�expect�really�very�high�levels�of�local�

employment�and�high�levels�of�apprenticeships.��We�have�written�that�into�the�contract.�

�

Our�approach�has�always�been,�as�a�development�corporation,�not�to�try�to�do�job�brokerage�ourselves�but�to�

work�with�the�boroughs.��That�is�the�basis�of�the�success.��Actually,�we�still�work�with�six�boroughs.��We�are�still�

working�with�Barking�and�Dagenham.��The�way�it�will�break�out�is�that�as�we�take�the�stadium�forward�into�end�

use,�the�focal�point�will�be�Newham�Workplace�as�the�job�brokerage.��They�will�be�the�spearhead�of�local�jobs,�

but�we�will�also�work�with�the�other�boroughs.��It�is�the�approach�we�have�also�taken�with�the�other�boroughs.��

If�you�think�of�the�jobs�in�Here�East,�at�the�Press�and�Broadcast�Centre�in�Hackney,�it�is�Hackney’s�job�

brokerage�that�is�spearheading�that�really,�with�other�boroughs�following�in�behind.��I�am�optimistic.�

�

Page 28



 

Len
Duvall
AM:��We�might�wish�to�follow�up�about�lessons�learned�and�see�that�--�

�

Dr
Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
of
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,
LLDC):��Yes,�I�can�

certainly�get�you�the�latest�numbers.�

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��That�is�quite�important�for�future�stadium�developments.��Newham�has�invested�a�lot�in�

terms�of�job�brokerage�and�in�the�issues�of�getting�people�match-fit�and�learning�lessons.��You�have�also�

assumed�some�of�the�benefit�issues.��How�many�of�your�hard-to-reach�groups,�those�whom�you�can�shift�off�

benefits�into�the�world�of�work,�have�you�managed�to�succeed�with�in�terms�of�the�Olympics�or�is�that�at�very�

early�stages�yet�in�terms�of�your�own�borough?�

�

Kim
Bromley-Derry
(Chief
Executive,
London
Borough
of
Newham):��In�terms�of�the�actual�Olympics�

and�Paralympics,�we�are�quite�clear�about�the�figures.��Just�over�10%�of�the�workforce�on�the�Park�were�

Newham�residents�and�many�of�them�would�have�been�because�our�jobs�brokerage,�Workplace,�targets�the�

hardest�to�reach.��I�think�our�figures�were�that�75%�of�those�were�the�hardest�to�reach�groups.�

�

In�terms�of�subsequent�arrangements,�as�Paul�said,�on�the�Park,�it�depends�where�on�the�Park�we�are�talking�

about.��If�it�is�in�Newham,�which�obviously�is�quite�a�large�part�of�the�Park,�the�LLDC�asks�contractors�to�work�

through�Workplace,�our�jobs�brokerage,�in�the�same�way�as�it�does�for�Hackney,�Tower�Hamlets�and�others�in�

those�areas.�

�

At�the�moment,�over�the�last�year�our�figures�are�several�hundred.��I�think�the�issue�is�that�when�we�are�in�

construction�mode�it�is�much�more�difficult�because�of�the�training�time�lag�in�terms�of�skills.��However,�what�

we�are�focusing�on�are�the�hardest�to�reach�and�we�are�asking�for�those�to�be�prioritised�in�the�same�way�as�

apprenticeships�are�really�important�in�terms�of�hard-to-reach�young�people.�

�

In�terms�of�all�the�subsequent�contractual�arrangements,�for�the�operator,�it�is�in�the�contract�that�75%�of�the�

employees�will�need�to�be�Newham�residents�and�they�need�to�be�sourced�through�our�jobs�brokerage.��

Obviously,�what�we�need�to�do�is�make�sure�our�jobs�brokerage�can�gear�up�to�it.��We�have�started�to�do�that�

with�construction�as�well�and�certainly�we�fund�a�range�of�training�courses.��Actually,�Balfour�Beatty�was�

talking�to�us�in�the�last�week�around�jobs�which�required�one�or�two�weeks’�training�for�people�to�be�able�to�

use�equipment,�and�whether�our�jobs�brokerage�could�fund�those�in�order�for�them�to�be�able�to�employ�our�

local�people.��We�are�doing�that.��We�are�really�optimistic�that�at�peak�operation�over�50%�of�people�working�

on�the�Park,�will�be�Newham�residents.�

�

Certainly,�in�the�stadium,�we�are�focusing�on�75%.��That�really�is�the�target.��Indeed,�one�of�the�reasons�for�our�

investment�in�the�stadium,�as�I�said�right�at�the�start,�was�jobs�and�growth.��What�we�are�encouraging�the�LLDC�

to�do,�is�to�look�at�long-term�jobs�on�the�Park�rather�than�short-term�construction�jobs.��It�is�an�interesting�

balance�for�the�Park.��Actually,�there�may�well�be�lots�of�short-term�construction�jobs,�but�what�is�the�legacy�

afterwards?��Our�view�is�that�actually�there�is�lots�of�space�outside�to�build�housing.��The�Park�should�be�

absolutely�focused�on�long-term�jobs,�commercial�developments,�entertainment,�hospitality�and�sport.��That�

creates�long-term�jobs.��Housing�can�be�developed�in�all�the�other�space�in�east�London.��That�is�the�debate�

we�have�with�the�LLDC�and�their�planners�all�the�time.�

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��OK,�Mark,�you�have�heard�what�has�happened�in�the�past.��I�suppose�traditionally,�when�we�

have�seen�mixed�developments�across�London,�even�large-scale�ones,�we�have�tended�to�view�them�as�jobs�for�

the�London-wide�market.��Has�anyone�from�the�GLA,�in�terms�of�your�discussions�with�planners�and�others�

with�whom�you�have�come�into�contact,�ever�said�to�you,�“We�need�to�get�local�jobs�here�in�this�scheme”,�or�

have�you�heard�QPR’s�point�of�view,�“We�would�like�to�recruit�local�labour”?��What�are�the�conversations�that�

have�taken�place�at�these�very�early�stages?��We�are�at�the�early�stages,�are�we�not,�of�your�--�

Page 29



 

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��We�are�at�an�early�

stage,�yes.�

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��Can�I�just�clarify�the�role�that�you�are�doing�at�the�moment?��Amongst�the�planning�exercise,�

you�are�an�interested�party�and�a�partner�with�the�GLA�on�a�masterplan.��In�the�ultimate�development,�you�do�

not�have�any�interest�in�the�housing�element�or�have�you�or�are�you�still�considering�that�as�an�organisation?�

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��We�have�some�land�

interests�in�the�area.��The�ultimate�delivery�of�that�masterplan�and�how�you�deliver�the�housing,�or�whether�

you�bring�in�other�developers�and�your�partners�and�you�sell�it�off,�is�way�beyond�the�thinking.��Where�we�are�

at�the�moment�is�delivering�that�masterplan.��As�part�of�that�masterplan,�you�have�an�understanding�of�what�

the�financials�look�like�and�the�long-term�viability.�

�

Probably�the�answer�to�your�question�is�both�of�those.��As�an�employer�and�as�an�active�member�of�the�

community,�we�would�proactively�say�that�we�want�to�employ�a�significant�number�of�local�people�and�provide�

jobs�for�local�people.��I�know�the�mantra�“local�houses�and�local�jobs�for�local�residents”�is�actually�something�

that�all�the�project�team�really�strongly�believes�in.��The�stadium�itself�would�be�a�significant�job�generator�

moving�from�Loftus�Road�to�a�new�stadium�with�the�associated�corporate�business�around�that�and�hotels.��

The�net�increase�in�jobs�that�a�stadium�alone�would�provide,�would�be�significant.��I�daresay�we�will�certainly�

get�into�discussions�with�the�planners�and�local�authorities,�on�what�commitment�you�could�make�to�how�many�

of�those�would�be�local�residents�within�Hammersmith�and�Fulham,�Brent,�Ealing�and�others.��That�would�be�a�

conversation�we�would�be�very�open�to.�

�

On�jobs�across�the�wider�development,�again,�we�would�look�to,�hopefully,�provide�a�wide�range�of�jobs�within�

that.��Again,�how�you�commit�to�that�with�the�authorities�and�what�level�of�commitment�we�can�make,�as�an�

interested�party�to�the�masterplan�as�to�exact�numbers,�but�we�would�work�very�closely�with�that.��It�is�

certainly�a�focus�for�both�parties.�

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��Am�I�right�in�thinking�that�your�move�to�this�area�will�require�a�great�deal�of�help�and�

support�from�GLA�and�local�authorities�to�make�this�happen?��Is�it�reasonable,�then?��In�your�contract�for�

building�a�new�stadium,�if�you�are�successful,�you�could�voluntarily�just�do�that.��You�could�say�a�percentage.��

However,�it�sounds�like�the�conversation�that�we�might�have�is�that�you�would�welcome�the�conversation�and�

then�the�authorities�-�whether�the�GLA�or�the�local�authority,�whoever�determines�this�-�is�going�to�say�to�you,�

“We�think�a�percentage�of�those�jobs�should�be�local”.��Do�you�want�to�be�prescribed�because�there�is�an�

acceptance�that�you�are�going�to�get�some�public�authority�support�for�this�move�if�it�happens?��Part�of�that�

acceptance�is�that�you�would�accept�a�responsibility�to�employ�local�labour�in�a�traditional�area�of�construction�

which�is�difficult.��You�have�heard�your�colleagues,�who�have�wrestled�with�it�where�it�has�been�very�pro�about�

the�public�subsidy�that�has�gone�in�that�we�expect�local�jobs.��What�is�it�to�be,�voluntary�or�a�prescription�in�

terms�of�that?�

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��The�best�solution�

would�be�a�voluntary�agreement.��Again,�for�exact�numbers�and�what�that�looks�like,�it�is�very�difficult�to�give�

any�specifics�as�we�sit�here�today.��However,�yes,�I�would�fully�expect�with�our�planning�team�and�with�the�

authorities�we�would�welcome�those�sorts�of�discussions�and�I�am�sure�there�will�be�a�consensual�agreement.�

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��OK.��There�is�a�question�that�we�need�to�follow�up�-�but�not�from�the�people�that�are�before�

us,�Chair�-�to�the�GLA,�whether�it�is�the�planners�who�have�given�evidence�to�the�Planning�Committee�here�or�

whether�it�is�GLA�Land,�about�its�issue�around�job�creation.��I�do�not�think�we�have�ever�imposed�issues�around�

where�jobs�come�from,�but�the�pressure�on�localities�including�west�London�is�that�there�are�hard�pockets�from�

Page 30



 

Westminster�outwards�of�people�needing�jobs.��We�have�never,�I�do�not�think,�ever�said�-�even�on�Nine�Elms�-�

that�we�would�like�to�see�some�local�job�creation.��We�just�might�want�to�ask�questions�of�those�officers�about�

where�they�see�it.��Is�it�a�London-wide�issue�or�is�this�project�of�some�significance�in�terms�of�what�they�are�

asking�and�that�requires,�because�an�MDC�is�involved,�whether�there�is�a�job�issue�and�what�the�GLA’s�stance�is�

on�that.��If�we�could�follow�that�up�outside�the�Committee,�I�would�be�grateful.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��Yes.��We�could�do�that�through�the�usual�channels.��In�consultation�with�the�

Deputy�Chair,�we�will�get�a�letter�out�which�all�Members�will�see.�

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��Thank�you.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��We�need�to�move�on�again.��Murad,�you�were�going�to�ask�about�changing�

the�local�area?�

�

Murad
Qureshi
AM:��Sorry,�which�question�was�that�again?�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��Question�4.�

�

Murad
Qureshi
AM:��Four?��Sorry.��I�have�gone�back.��OK.��Sorry,�I�have�messed�the�order�up.��Gareth,�has�

most�of�that�not�been�answered?�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��No.��We�were�going�to�talk�about�-�you�can�rephrase�it�-�the�football�

ground,�if�you�like,�because�that�has�not�been�dealt�with.�

�

Murad
Qureshi
AM:��Yes,�that�is�true.��Joe,�and�I�will�address�it�to�Kim,�you�were�both�there�when�we�went�

around�to�Upton�Park.��Your�plans�for�regeneration�there�clearly�are�critical�for�local�businesses�along�Green�

Street.��Can�you�just�elaborate�on�to�what�extent�those�decisions�have�already�been�made�and�to�what�extent�

the�club�will�still�be�around�in�that�immediate�neighbourhood�of�Upton�Park?�

�

Kim
Bromley-Derry
(Chief
Executive,
London
Borough
of
Newham):��Obviously,�there�is�a�whole�set�of�

masterplanning�arrangements�that�have�been�in�place�and�frameworks�around�Green�Street�and�Barking�Road.��

With�the�decision�for�West�Ham�to�take�up�the�tenancy�at�the�Olympic�Stadium,�we�had�already�been�in�

conversations�with�West�Ham�about�what�the�legacy�might�be.��They�were�very,�very�receptive�and�they�were�

very,�very�keen�to�deliver�a�legacy.��The�issue�for�us�was�around�ensuring�that�the�developments�were�

completely�compatible�with�what�was�already�there,�and�we�obviously�have�a�vibrant�economy�in�Green�Street.��

We�obviously�needed�to�be�mindful�of�what�the�loss�was�as�well�as�what�the�gain�was�going�to�be.�

�

Certainly,�there�are�three�or�four�things.��Firstly,�there�is,�like�the�rest�of�London,�a�shortage�of�housing.��We�

felt�that�this�should�be�a�mixed-use�development�and�that�it�needs�to�create�connectivity�between�Barking�

Road�and�the�rest�of�Green�Street�and�create�a�vibrant�new�centre�for�that�area.��As�soon�as�the�club�had�

identified�a�purchaser,�we�sat�down�with�our�planning�team�to�look�at�how�the�development�could�complement�

everything�else�that�was�already�there,�and�also�create�the�ability�to�upgrade�some�of�the�public�realm�in�that�

area�as�well.�

�

Three�or�four�things�are�critical,�though.��Obviously,�there�is�a�green�space�in�the�middle�of�Upton�Park.��It�is�a�

very�important�part�of�the�mixed-use�development�that�there�is�green�space�in�the�new�development.��We�are�

also�keen�that�the�housing�complements�the�housing�that�is�already�there�and�is�sympathetic�to�that,�but�also�

creating�that�retail�connectivity�between�the�Barking�Road�shops�and�the�Green�Street�shops�with�a�much�more�

viable�local�centre.�

�

Page 31



 

Certainly�the�club�was�very�receptive�to�that.��The�club�has�been�working�with�us�all�along�on�that�and�there�is�

a�real�general�agreement�about�what�needs�to�be�seen�there.��Galliard�Homes�have�absolutely�picked�that�up�

and�are�working�very�closely�with�our�planners�and�with�the�club�to�ensure�we�can�deliver�that�vision.�

�

Murad
Qureshi
AM:��The�other�thing�we�picked�up�-�and�Karren�Brady�[Vice�Chairman,�West�Ham�United�

Football�Club]�was�actually�quite�honest�-�was�that�there�are�a�lot�of�businesses�that�want�to�see�the�club�

moved�on�in�some�ways,�particularly�along�Green�Street.��The�retail�presence,�though,�will�be�enhanced�and�the�

council�is�changing�shop�frontages�and�things�like�this.��Is�that�what�you�are�talking�about?�

�

Kim
Bromley-Derry
(Chief
Executive,
London
Borough
of
Newham):��Part�of�the�plan�is�-�you�are�

absolutely�right.��Interestingly,�because�of�the�previous�bid�with�West�Ham,�we�had�been�talking�to�local�

businesses�for�four�years�and�local�residents�for�four�years�before�the�sale�of�the�ground.��It�is�absolutely�

critical�that�we�do�not�put�those�other�businesses�out�of�business.��You�are�right�that�their�general�consensus�

is,�“When�is�the�club�going�to�move?”��It�blights�match�days�in�terms�of�the�local�economy.��Most�of�the�

businesses�were�very,�very�keen�to�hear�the�plans.�

�

The�other�side�of�that�is�absolutely�making�sure�it�is�complementary�and�not�in�competition.��Certainly,�there�

are�gaps�in�retail�in�that�area�and�Galliard�Homes�are�working�with�us�to�make�sure�that�it�is�gaps�that�we�fill�in�

terms�of�retail�in�that�area,�rather�than�just�replicating�what�is�down�the�road.��With�Green�Street,�there�is�a�real�

potential�to�do�that.��The�other�side�of�it�is�enhancing�the�market�facilities.��There�are�questions�of�us�in�terms�

of�how�we�contribute�to�improving�that�streetscape�as�well.��It�is�really,�really�important.�

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��Can�I�just�come�in�on�the�back�of�that?��Are�you�telling�me�that�Boleyn�Arms,�in�terms�of�its�

loss�of�trade,�you�are�going�to�protect�as�a�community�asset�and�it�is�not�going�to�be�turned�into�flats?��It�is�

quite�well�known�to�West�Ham�supporters.��It�is�quite�a�traditional�pub.��It�probably�survives�on�match-day�

trade.��Goodness�knows�what�it�is�like�during�the�summer.��Where�do�you�stand�on�those�issues,�then,�with�this�

vibrant�shopping�area�and�all�the�rest�of�it?�

�

Kim
Bromley-Derry
(Chief
Executive,
London
Borough
of
Newham):��I�think�it�is�true�to�say�that�not�

100%�of�people�want�to�see�West�Ham�go�or�businesses�go.��That�was�a�balanced�comment.��The�majority�--�

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��I�am�glad�you�said�that�but,�seriously,�should�the�Boleyn�Arms,�in�terms�of�its�historical�

nature�and�its�relationship�with�the�club,�not�be�protected�as�a�pub�and�should�you�not�seek�to�protect�that�if�

it�is�about�vibrancy?��With�the�nature�of�pubs�closing�and�the�precarious�nature�of�it�-�I�am�not�sure�what�the�

Boleyn�Arm’s�issues�are�-�and�in�terms�of�the�relationship�with�the�club,�should�that�not�be�protected�by�your�

council?�

�

Kim
Bromley-Derry
(Chief
Executive,
London
Borough
of
Newham):��It�is�an�interesting�question�that�

we�are�looking�at�with�Galliard�Homes�-�how�to�actually�protect�some�of�the�current�businesses.��Certainly�in�

terms�of�our�conversations�with�the�club,�there�are�issues�about�what�the�fans�who�currently�go�to�those�

various�outlets�are�going�to�do�in�Stratford.��What�are�they�going�to�do�elsewhere?��It�is�also�true�of�the�

supporters�club�as�well�and�we�are�having�conversations�with�West�Ham�about�how�you�replicate�the�

supporters�club.��It�is�unlikely�that�people�will�go�to�the�Boleyn�Ground�and�then�travel�on�to�Stratford.��It�is�

less�likely,�anyway.��We�are�having�all�those�conversations.��We�are�not�against�protecting�those�arrangements,�

but�I�would�say�we�are�still�in�early�discussions�and�in�early�discussions�with�Galliard�Homes,�who�are�the�critical�

developers�in�this,�around�how�we�protect�the�whole�area.�

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��Sorry,�you�do�not�need�to�discuss�it�with�Galliard.��You�are�the�planning�authority.��You�have�

the�right�to�protect�so�that�a�pub�stays�on�that�site�forever�and�a�day,�if�you�feel�able�to�do�that.��I�have�just�

pointed�out�one�pub.��I�am�not�arguing�for�the�Queen’s.��I�might�make�an�argument�for�the�Central,�but�there�

Page 32



 

are�also�some�places�in�Plaistow�that�are�going�to�have�some�difficulty.��However,�the�issue�is�what�the�council�

is�thinking�about�some�of�those�traditional�places�where�the�heritage�is�just�as�strong�in�terms�of�where�the�

ground�is.��If�the�ground�is�moving�and�all�the�rest�of�it,�what�do�you�do�about�those�other�bits�that�have�

significance?��We�have�talked�about�the�protection�of�pubs�in�terms�of�other�scrutiny�bodies.�

�

I�am�just�thinking,�but�it�is�a�planning�authority�issue�about�a�negotiation�with�a�housing�developer�and�what�

they�are�going�to�do�in�the�area,�is�it�not,�unless�you�are�telling�me�that�they�have�bought�it�and�they�are�going�

to�turn�it�into�flats?��I�do�not�think�they�are.�

�

Kim
Bromley-Derry
(Chief
Executive,
London
Borough
of
Newham):��I�do�not�know�whether�they�have�

or�they�have�not.��However,�what�I�would�say�is�that�from�a�Newham�perspective,�we�are�one�of�those�local�

authorities�that�have�been�lobbying�local�government�on�the�protection�of�pubs�and�we�are�certainly�not�anti-

pub�in�any�sort�of�way.��Obviously,�we�have�quite�strong�licensing�arrangements�in�relation�to�those�pubs,�as�

you�will�be�aware.��We�are�lobbying�hard�to�make�sure�that�we�protect�pubs.��We�have�not�made�a�decision�on�

that�particular�pub,�but�certainly�we�have�lobbied�hard�to�protect�other�pubs�in�the�borough�as�well.��I�am�not�

saying�no.��It�is�obviously�a�decision�for�the�council�a�bit�nearer�the�time.��However,�if�we�feel�that�is�an�

appropriate�intervention,�we�would�consider�it.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��OK.��It�is�an�interesting�diversion�that�we�have�taken�into�discussing�--�

�

Murad
Qureshi
AM:��Drinking�pubs�for�West�Ham�fans,�yes!�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��--�the�merits�of�West�Ham�fans’�locals,�which�is�good.��I�need�to�move�on,�

Murad.��I�am�sorry.�

�

Murad
Qureshi
AM:��OK.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��Navin,�you�wanted�to�come�in?�

�

Navin
Shah
AM
(Deputy
Chair):��Yes,�I�will�come�to�my�question,�but�just�on�the�last�bit�of�that,�it�is�more�

than�just�pub�protection.��There�is�this�serious�argument�about�how�you,�as�the�authority�and�that�developer�

and�whatever,�can�actually�have�a�framework�which�will�work�to�solve�the�problem�of�the�negative�impact�on�

existing�amenities,�businesses,�traders,�et�cetera.��That�is�really�about�local,�whether�heritage�or�other,�business�

values.��How�you�look�after�that,�I�think,�is�an�issue.�

�

Kim
Bromley-Derry
(Chief
Executive,
London
Borough
of
Newham):��I�would�agree.��There�is�the�fact�

that�there�are�several�hundred�new�houses�being�built,�which�creates�additional�trade�for�the�area,�and�the�fact�

that�we�are�ensuring�that�in�the�planning�arrangements�any�retail�development�on�that�site,�is�complementary�

to�the�rest�of�Green�Street.��There�is�the�issue�about�footfall�in�the�area�and�that�is�why,�from�the�pub�down�

through�to�Green�Street,�we�are�quite�keen�on�connectivity�to�ensure�that�actually�all�those�assets�are�able�to�

benefit�from�it.��Inevitably,�when�something�like�this�happens,�you�cannot�keep�everyone�happy�all�of�the�time.��

It�is�quite�a�significant�move�from�one�place�to�the�other�and�it�is�a�balanced�view,�but�certainly�it�is�something�

that�we�take�into�account�as�part�of�the�planning�process.�

�

However,�it�is�still�really,�really�early�days�in�that�process.��We�are�still�probably�a�year�away�from�any�planning�

application�and�any�planning�decisions�because�of�the�detailed�work�that�is�being�done�by�Galliard�Homes�and,�

obviously,�the�timeline�we�have�in�terms�of�West�Ham�moving�out�and�moving�into�the�new�stadium.��It�is�not�

something�we�need�to�rush�to�do,�but�it�is�something�we�need�to�address�as�part�of�that�process.��I�agree.�

�

Page 33



 

Navin
Shah
AM
(Deputy
Chair):��I�have�two�comments�about�social�regeneration�aspects�when�we�look�at�

regeneration.��This�is�a�broad�question�to�all�the�guests.��Who�have�you�identified�as�the�local�communities�in�

terms�of�stakeholders�and�various�organisations�around�both�the�Olympic�Park�and�Old�Oak�Common?��Do�you�

want�to�start?�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��Yes,�if�you�would�like�to�start�off,�that�is�fine.�

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��As�part�of�our�project�

team,�we�are�working�with�a�series�of�social�and�economic�consultants�who�are�looking�at�that�whole�

framework�around�that.��There�are�a�large�number�of�community�groups�in�our�area�with�various�different�

interests�and�things�that�they�are�looking�to�protect,�from�the�Scrubs�to�local�resident�groups�to�partner�

alliances�of�businesses.��We�have�all�of�those.��We�have�invited�them�all�as�part�of�our�consultation�for�

meetings�and�to�feed�into�that�process.��We�are�very�conscious�of�working�with�all�those�local�community�

groups�and�understanding�what�their�issues�and�needs�and�desires�would�be�for�the�regeneration�of�the�area.��

We�obviously�have�a�large�number�of�local�stakeholders�as�well�in�terms�of�political�stakeholders,�transport�

stakeholders�and�also�the�existing�businesses.��We�are�keen�to�work�with�the�existing�businesses�to�look�at�

relocation�and�to�work�with�them�to�find�alternative�premises�and�to�protect�the�employment�of�those�existing�

businesses.��There�is�a�whole�series�of�different�work�strands�which�will�go�on�and�cover�those�various�different�

interest�groups,�but�we�are�looking,�if�we�have�not�already,�to�meet�and�discuss�and�consult�with�all�of�those.�

�

Navin
Shah
AM
(Deputy
Chair):��Are�you�looking�at�or�have�you�actually�developed�a�governance�

framework�to�reflect�those�local�communities�and�partnerships�that�you�would�surely�want�to�generate?�

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��Yes.��It�is�probably�

slightly�early�in�our�process�to�look�at�a�full�governance�framework.��We�are�very�much�in�a�consultation�

process�at�the�moment.��We�have�identified�as�many�of�the�local�community�groups�as�we�can�and�we�think�we�

have�them�and�have�made�contact�with�all�the�ones�we�are�aware�of.��Obviously,�if�there�are�any�of�the�local�

community�groups�that�we�have�not�made�contact�with,�we�would�be�delighted�to�hear�from�them.��That�is�

part�of�the�reason�why�we�are�doing�this�public�exhibition�and�have�made�the�plans�very�public�on�a�dedicated�

website�for�the�development.��Yes,�we�have�tried�to�identify�all�the�different�interest�groups�that�we�can�and�

we�are�in�the�process�of�meeting�with�them,�consulting�with�them�and�getting�their�feedback.�

�

Navin
Shah
AM
(Deputy
Chair):��This�is�slightly�outside�of�what�might�technically�be�termed�‘community�

stakeholders’.��Have�you�engaged�with�local�schools,�for�example,�and�other�educational�institutions?�

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��Yes.��As�part�of�what�

we�do�as�a�club,�we�have�very�strong�relationships�with�local�schools.��On�a�day-to-day�basis,�we�work�with�

over�50�schools�in�the�five�boroughs�surrounding�our�area�through�the�community�trust.��One�of�the�key�

strands�of�the�community�trust�is�our�education�programme,�providing�sport�programmes�from�primary�school�

to�secondary�school�and�multisport�programmes.�

�

Specifically�in�terms�of�the�education�needs�of�the�masterplan�and�what�those�would�be,�again,�we�are�still�

trying�to�shape�and�formulate�our�views.��It�is�clear�that�there�will�be�educational�needs�and�there�will�be�gaps�

within�the�local�provision,�given�the�size�of�the�development�we�are�talking�about.��We�will�work�closely�with�

the�local�authorities�and�the�GLA�to�make�sure�that�education,�health�and�other�community�assets�are�provided�

as�part�of�that.�

�

Navin
Shah
AM
(Deputy
Chair):��Do�you�want�to�comment�in�terms�of�your�work�at�the�Olympic�Park�as�

well�as�Upton�Park�and�the�proposals?��How�have�you�identified�your�local�communities�and�a�potential�

governance�and�management�structure?�

Page 34



 

�

Joe
Lyons
(Head
of
Community,
West
Ham
United
Football
Club):��In�partnership�with�the�club�-�

obviously,�this�is�part�of�the�regeneration�team�-�we�have�developed�a�strategy�within�the�trust�that�is,�for�want�

of�a�better�word,�a�virtual�environment�where�it�creates�hub�and�satellite�sites.��Working,�again,�across�all�of�

our�outreach�from�east�London,�predominantly�in�Tower�Hamlets,�out�towards�some�of�the�Home�County�areas�

in�Essex,�we�can�mobilise�any�one�of�our�strands�of�work.�

�

It�could�be�something�like�a�health�provision,�working�with�the�local�clinical�commissioning�groups�(CCG)�across�

the�borough.��This�does�not�have�to�be�based�around�a�stadium.��For�example,�young�people�potentially�cannot�

move�from�one�postcode�to�another�postcode.��We�cannot�expect�young�people�from�East�Ham�or�Beckton�to�

then�travel�all�the�way�over�to�Stratford�for�a�youth�engagement�programme.��We�could�be�putting�them�at�a�

certain�amount�of�risk�in�terms�of�other�local�issues�such�as�gangs�and�crime.�

�

What�we�have�developed�over�the�last�15�months�is�a�hub�model�which�will�in�essence�be�representative�of�the�

areas�we�want�to�work�in.��This,�again,�is�incorporated�working�with�the�local�community�stakeholders�and�the�

local�community�groups.��For�example,�in�Upton�Park,�which�some�of�you�came�to�see,�you�saw�the�social�

prescription�or�the�community�prescription�programme.��Just�because�the�club�is�being�relocated�from�Upton�

Park�to�the�Olympic�Park,�that�provision�will�still�remain�and�we�will�be�working�closely�with�other�GP�surgeries,�

for�example,�looking�at�where�we�can�base�it.��There�will�be,�hopefully,�a�position�for�us�in�the�Park�working�in�

partnership�with�some�of�the�providers.��We�will�look�to�develop�it�out�into�Tower�Hamlets�and�out�into�the�

other�areas�of�Newham.��It�is�just�one�example�of�how�whilst,�yes,�for�the�community�support�trust�the�location�

of�the�stadium�is�important,�we�are�looking�then�at�that�virtual�model.��Can�it�go�on�a�national�or�an�

international�basis�as�well?��It�is�trying�to�take�our�message�and�our�core�values�far�wider,�in�consultation�with�

the�local�community�groups.�

�

Navin
Shah
AM
(Deputy
Chair):��In�terms�of�local�communities,�obviously,�where�you�are�in�something,�you�

have�heard�that�as�well�through�the�Planning�Committee�and�current�examination-in-public�of�the�London�

Plan.��One�of�the�major�factors�or�challenges,�as�well�as�opportunities,�we�have�is�in�terms�of�the�huge�diversity�

that�London’s�communities�present.��It�obviously�is�a�major�aspect�within�the�area.��Do�you�have�any�special�

programmes�or�initiatives�in�terms�of�engaging�with�those�hard-to-reach�communities�and�generally�in�terms�of�

black�and�ethnic�minority�communities?�

�

Joe
Lyons
(Head
of
Community,
West
Ham
United
Football
Club):��Whilst�it�is�hard�not�to�pinpoint�or�

focus�on�one�certain�group�-�for�example,�Asian�communities�based�across�East�London�-�what�we�are�trying�to�

do�is�create�an�environment�that�does�not�classify�against�certain�needs.��Your�postcode�and�some�of�the�

deprivation�locally�will�predetermine�the�engagement�and�the�work�that�you�are�in�need�of�and,�again,�the�

social�mobility,�youth�engagement,�anticrime�work�that�we�are�doing�in�a�huge�partnership�with�the�Mayor’s�

Office�for�Policing�and�Crime�(MOPAC),�the�local�authorities�and�the�youth�offending�services.�

�

If�I�was�to�pinpoint�something�that�we�are�doing�with�a�heavy�focus�around�Asian�community�groups,�we�have�

just�set�up�a�partnership�across�east�London�where�we�are�trying�to�engage�with�some�of�the�local�Asian�

football�community�groups.��Historically,�that�has�not�been�in�place�across�West�Ham�and�has,�I�suppose,�been�

led�from�the�new�Football�Association�(FA)�strategy�around�Asians�in�football.��We�are�proactively�now�really�

trying�to�engage�with�the�Asian�groups�and�focus�on�whatever�they�need.�

�

What�we�do�not�want�to�be�seen�as�is�this�Premier�League�brand�going�into�a�local�Asian�football�community�-�

the�Bangladesh�Football�Association�(BFA)�is�one�that�springs�to�mind�and�we�are�really�working�closely�with�

them�-�and�coming�in�as�West�Ham�United�with�our�brand.��This�cannot�be�about�us�just�working�with�them�for�

one�objective,�ie�a�player�pathway.��We�are�setting�up�long-term�education�and�strategic�work�with�not�only�

the�BFA�but�all�the�other�local�Asian�community�groups�where�education,�coach�education�for�their�staff�and�

Page 35



 

integration�within�our�academy�and�our�framework�is�something�that�is�really�important�and�something�that�

has�been�really�well�received�from�them.��Potentially,�previously,�you�could�just�be�seen�as�going�in�and�trying�

to�get�the�top�talent�players,�which�ultimately�is�not�going�to�serve�any�purpose.��It�is�about�real�integration�at�

a�lower�level�and�community�cohesion,�for�want�of�a�better�word.��Not�just�working�with�the�Asian�communities�

but�potentially�the�Afro-Caribbean�communities�and�we�have�been�working�with�some�of�the�Tamil�groups.�

�

Do�I�see�it�as�our�role�in�terms�of�then�creating�that�integration?��I�think�we�have�a�part�to�play.��Can�we�pull�

together�a�community�sports�forum�that�again�brings�us�for�what�we�can�provide,�which�goes�back�to�health,�

education,�employment�and�the�overall�economic�wellbeing�of�the�communities�we�work�with?�

�

Kim
Bromley-Derry
(Chief
Executive,
London
Borough
of
Newham):��The�key�is�looking�at�this�whole�

development�as�a�multi-layered�approach:�community,�club,�elite.��Certainly,�one�of�the�key�planks�of�this�is�

community�activation�and�community�participation.��That�may�be,�for�example,�ensuring�that�you�have�all-

year-round�access�to�the�community�track�for�community�support�and�community�activation.��That�links�then�

into�clubs�like�the�Newham�and�Essex�Beagles�and�moving�their�base�there�so�that�you�have�club�activity.��Also,�

you�can�then�showcase�elite�sport�in�the�Olympic�Stadium,�which�creates�the�aspiration�and�the�engagement�at�

the�club�and�community�level.��This�really�does�create�that�opportunity.�

�

A�lot�of�the�work�that�we�and�the�LLDC�have�been�doing�is�engaging�with�local�communities�about�how�we�use�

these�facilities�and�how�we�engage�that�aspiration�and�enthusiasm.��West�Ham�is�a�brand�that�helps�with�that,�

but�there�are�other�brands�such�as�the�elite�athletes�who�perform�in�the�stadium�and�the�relationship�we�will�

have�with�UK�Athletics.��We�are�also�doing�the�same�in�terms�of�part�of�the�operator�contracts�that�will�be�

around�community�activation�around�music,�support�around�the�concerts�as�well�and�also�all�the�other�facilities.��

You�have�to�do�it�at�three�levels.�

�

Then�you�also�have�the�spinoffs.��For�example,�Newham�and�Essex�Beagles�are�moving�into�the�community�

track�as�their�base�gives�us�the�opportunity�to�create�a�cricket�academy�in�their�current�base,�which�we�are�

working�with�Essex�County�Cricket�Club�on.��That�will�create�mass�participation�in�terms�of�cricket�in�east�

London�as�well.��Again,�that�is�targeted�at�the�local�communities,�but�obviously�we�hope�it�acts�as�a�conduit�

into�club�and�then�elite�sport.�

�

It�is�something�we�have�worked�with�West�Ham�on.��How�do�we�engage�more�communities�in�football�so�that�

ultimately,�not�only�can�we�use�it�for�things�like�community�prescription,�which�is�just�healthy�living,�but�also�

how�do�we�actually�create�a�conduit�for�people�to�just�participate�and�then�move�on�into�elite�sport?��It�is�one�

of�the�unique�aspects�of�this�development�that�was�always�part�of�the�thinking�from�day�one�and�obviously�

now�the�challenge�is�for�us�all�to�realise�that�as�a�partnership.�

�

Navin
Shah
AM
(Deputy
Chair):��Paul,�do�you�want�to�come�in?�

�

Dr
Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
of
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,
LLDC):��I�suppose�

it�is�to�endorse�what�you�have�both�said,�really,�which�is�that�there�is�in�Stratford�and�around�the�Park�-�

Hackney�Wick,�Bow,�Leyton,�Waltham�Forest�and�so�forth�-�a�really�well-developed�network�of�relationships.��

Actually,�the�task�of�grappling�with�this�beast�of�the�Olympics�has�helped�that�grow.��As�far�as�we�are�

concerned,�the�relationship�with�local�authorities�is�key.��They�know�their�communities.��They�have�rich�

networks�that�they�use.�

�

However,�we�have�also�developed�our�own�direct�relationships�that�have�worked�quite�well.��For�example,�we�

have�now�a�Park�Panel,�which�is�a�formal�structure�of�local�residents�and�some�businesses�that�are�there�to�

think�about�both�the�physical�development�of�the�Park�and�the�future�of�the�neighbourhoods�and�also�about�

what�goes�on�there.��We�have�the�Youth�Panel,�which�is�becoming�a�youth�board�and�has�been�running�for�

Page 36



 

four�or�five�years�with�fantastic�generations�of�young�people.��That�is,�again,�about�the�physical�changes�and�

also�increasing��what�happens�in�the�Park�and�venues�and�in�the�neighbourhoods.��We�have�the�Built�

Environment�Access�Panel,�which�has�some�experts�but�also�a�large�number�of�local�people,�thinking�about�

how�that�Park�and�the�venues�look�if�you�have�a�disability�or�are�in�some�other�way�disadvantaged.��Those�are�

some�formal�structures.���

�

We�have�informal�residents’�groups�from�the�points�of�the�compass�around�the�Park�with�whom�we�talk�about�

these�things.��Then�there�are�actually�a�whole�slew�of�very�practical�relationships�and�practical�project�work�

with�schools�in�a�very�lively�schools�network�around�the�Park�and�more�broad�community�organisations,�clubs�

and�so�forth.�

�

I�alluded�to�this�earlier�in�terms�of�people�in�the�existing�areas�and�the�incomes�like�the�GP�practices.��What�is�

lovely�to�see,�as�the�operators�get�established�and�as�the�tenants�get�established,�is�people�coming�together�

and�investing�things.��We�will�see�a�lot�of�invention.��Clearly,�as�you�have�heard,�there�is�a�very�willing�and�

experienced�incomer�here�in�West�Ham�and�it�is�going�to�invent�things.��Part�of�our�role�as�a�development�

corporation�is�simply�to�introduce�people�who�trust�us�to�each�other�and�say,�“Get�on�with�it”.��I�think�we�are�in�

for�an�exciting�time,�actually.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��OK.��Thank�you.��James,�you�wanted�to�talk�about�housing?�

�

James
Cleverly
AM:��Yes.��I�know,�really,�all�of�you�to�one�extent�or�another�have�spoken�about�housing.��

Mark,�you�have�been�quite�explicit�in�terms�of�the�numbers�that�you�think�will�be�catalysed�by�the�move�to�Old�

Oak�Common.��What�I�would�like�to�do�-�to�put�you�on�the�spot�first,�Mark,�if�I�could�-�is�just�to�explore�how�

you�feel�you�are�going�to�make�that�a�reality.��Saying�it�is�going�to�happen�and�saying�it�is�going�to�trigger�X�

amount�is�all�well�and�good,�but�you�are�not�planning�on�building�it�yourself.��How�do�you�give�guarantees�or�

how�can�you�give�us�a�confident�indication�of�the�numbers�that�you�have�been�talking�about?�

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��It�is�from�working�with�

the�stakeholders.��The�GLA�and�the�boroughs�will�be�the�key�people�within�this�and�there�will�obviously�be�

clear�planning�targets.�

�

That�is�not�to�say�that�the�club�will�not�be�interested�in�doing�some�development�itself�and,�again,�that�was�a�

model�that�was�replicated�from�Arsenal�where�the�club�did�do�some�development�and�then�did�sell�off�some�to�

other�developers.��The�club�itself�is�open-minded�but,�clearly,�we�are�a�football�club�first�and�foremost�and�not�

a�substantial�property�developer,�as�things�stand�today.�

�

In�terms�of�how�we�can�deliver�it,�there�have�to�be�first�initial�conversations�around�infrastructure�and�making�

the�site�able�to�be�right�for�housing�development.��As�the�site�stands�today,�there�is�very�limited�access�and�

there�are�issues�with�the�railways�and�disconnection.��There�are�small�pockets�of�little�island�sites.��First�and�

foremost,�it�needs�that�enabling�and�it�needs�that�infrastructure,�which�does�need�a�strategic�overview.��It�

would�be�very�difficult�to�deliver�any�of�the�infrastructure�that�is�needed�in�small,�piecemeal�developments.��

We�need�one�person�to�be�responsible�for�the�vision�and�the�holistic�view,�working�with,�as�I�say,�the�

authorities�and�the�key�boroughs�to�make�sure�that�is�delivered.�

�

In�terms�of�what�the�club�will�physically�deliver,�there�are�going�to�be�commitments�coming�out�of�the�planning�

process�and�there�will�be�financial�viability�issues.��We�want�to�deliver�the�housing�and�the�development�as�

quickly�as�we�can.��The�worst�model�for�a�stadium�is�building�a�stadium�with�nothing�really�around�it.��There�

has�to�be�that�joined-up,�consistent�development�to�come�in�a�systematic�and�joined-up�way.��Again,�it�is�very�

difficult�to�sit�here�today�and�say�exactly�how�that�is�going�to�happen�because�we�are�talking�a�good�number�

Page 37



 

of�years�in�the�future,�but�it�has�to�be�co-ordinated,�it�has�to�be�joined�up�and�there�will�be�an�overall�delivery�

plan�for�the�whole�area�which�has�to�be�--�

�

James
Cleverly
AM:��Have�you�looked�in�detail�at�the�Arsenal�model�of�delivering?��Is�there�something�that�

you�could�learn�from�that,�either�to�emulate�or�to�avoid?�

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��Yes,�to�emulate.��A�lot�

of�our�project�team�is�pretty�much�the�Arsenal�project�team.��I�hear�about�Arsenal�every�day,�to�be�honest.�

�

James
Cleverly
AM:��That�must�be�fun!�

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��I�think�Arsenal�did�do�

very�well.��They�have�a�fantastic�stadium�for�a�football�club�and�they�delivered�a�lot�of�housing�in�a�pretty�short�

space�of�time.��Over�3,000�houses�were�built�in�the�area�around�not�only�the�Emirates�but�also�Highbury.��

There�is�a�lot�that�we�can�really�gain�from�that.�

�

The�role�that�Islington�played�in�that�and�the�partnership�between�the�club�and�the�public�sector�was�really�

strong.��There�was�a�common�goal�of�what�the�desirable�outcomes�from�both�parties�were.��Actually,�that�was�

really�consistent�throughout�the�development�process.��Again,�we�would�look�to�try�to�replicate�that�with�our�

boroughs�and�with�the�GLA.�

�

James
Cleverly
AM:��Can�you�remind�me?��What�is�the�ownership�status�of�Loftus�Road?�

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��Loftus�Road�is�wholly�

owned�by�the�club.��The�club’s�majority�shareholders�are�a�consortium�of�Malaysian�businessmen,�

Tony�Fernandes�and�his�partner,�Kamarudin�Meranun,�who�set�up�and�created�AirAsia,�which�is�the�low-cost�

airline�in�Asia�and�a�very�successful�business�now�operating�in�a�number�of�different�countries�throughout�Asia.��

They�have�created�a�number�of�other�businesses�based�around�the�low-cost�model�in�terms�of�hotels,�money�

and�insurance,�very�similar�to�the�entrepreneurial�models�that�you�see�some�businesses�run�here.�

�

The�third�Malaysian�investor�is�Ruben�Gnanalingam,�whose�family�owns�Westports.��It�is�a�family�business,�

recently�floated,�which�is�the�largest�port�operator�in�Malaysia.��Our�fourth�shareholder�who�still�has�a�

significant�stake�is�the�Mittal�family.�

�

James
Cleverly
AM:��Obviously�you�are�going�to�have�a�tension�between�trying�to�maximise�income�from�any�

housing�development�that�might�go�on�at�Loftus�Road�or�any�other�areas�nearby�and�making�sure�you�actually�

deliver�affordable�housing�and�a�broader�community.�

�

Both�Joe�and�you,�Mark,�have�said�how�much�the�clubs�value�their�local�links.��How�are�you�going�to�make�sure�

that�the�housing�developments�that�go�on�either�around�the�old�site�or�around�the�new�site�do�not�just�create�

luxury�high-value�flats�that�will�be�completely�inaccessible�to�the�local�community?�

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��The�role�of�the�public�

sector�in�that�is�obviously�going�to�be�key�and�we�have�worked�very�closely�with�all�of�the�major�public�sector�

bodies�to�date�and�we�will�continue�to�do�that.��There�obviously�has�to�be�a�financial�viability�hurdle�that�you�

have�to�be�able�to�deliver.��However,�we�had�and�will�continue�to�have�a�full�range�of�conversations�and�be�

very�open�with�the�GLA,�Hammersmith�and�Fulham,�Brent�and�Ealing�about�that�and�making�sure�we�deliver�

the�appropriate�numbers�and�we�are�transparent�in�what�we�say�and�what�we�deliver.�

�

Page 38



 

James
Cleverly
AM:��Obviously,�although�you�are�on�a�sound�financial�footing�now,�which�I�know�has�not�

always�been�the�case�with�QPR�and�indeed�with�loads�of�clubs,�you�are�not�quite�in�the�realms�of�having�a�

£300�million,�multi,�all-singing,�all-dancing�facility�like�Manchester�City�is�able�to�put�forward.��Do�you�have�a�

particular�plan�or�aspiration�of�what�kind�of�community�facilities�could�be�embedded�in�the�Old�Oak�Common�

site�to�draw�in�people�from�the�local�community�from�the�people�who�perhaps�live�near�the�old�or�new�site?�

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��Yes.��We�are�working�

through�a�range�of�options�at�the�moment.��What�you�can�provide�with�the�stadium�is�an�obvious�place�to�

start.��I�mentioned�before�education�and�adult�education�and�spaces�that�the�community�can�come�and�use�for�

a�whole�range�of�different�activities�that�they�may�want�to�do,�which�is�an�extension�of�what�we�do�on�a�

limited�scale�within�our�constraints�of�Loftus�Road.��The�wider�community�facilities�that�we�would�look�to�

develop�would�very�much�come�out�of�the�discussion�process�with�the�community�groups�and�with�the�local�

authorities,�depending�on�what�the�need�is�in�the�area.��Clearly,�as�I�said�before,�there�will�be�a�need�for�

education,�health�and�other�places�that�the�community�may�go�to�and�can�utilise�for�activity.�

�

We�think�there�is�a�strong�draw�around�sport�and�providing�sport�facilities.��Again,�we�need�to�work�through�all�

the�financial�viability�around�that�and�what�can�be�delivered.��However,�one�of�the�interesting�things�is�that�the�

site�and�the�challenge�around�the�site�can�provide�significant�space�around�podiums�and�providing�under-cross�

space.��It�does�open�itself�up�to�be�able�to�provide�a�wide�range�of�sporting�activities.��We�are,�clearly,�a�

sporting�organisation�and�that�seems�an�obvious�place�to�start,�but�then�there�is�also�the�range�of�amenities�

that�that�mixed-use�community�will�want�to�have.��What�you�would�normally�expect�to�see�in�any�kind�of�

balanced�community,�we�can�expect�to�see�that�being�developed�as�part�of�it.�

�

James
Cleverly
AM:��Thank�you.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��One�quick�question�for�you�on�that.��How�did�you�come�up�with�the�figure�

of�24,000�new�homes?�

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��It�was�through�the�

details�of�the�masterplanning�framework.��There�were�figures�that�the�GLA�and�the�boroughs�had�previously�

discussed�in�terms�of�their�vision�for�the�wider�area.��There�were�homes�and�jobs�targets�as�part�of�the�

consultation�document�that�the�three�boroughs�and�the�GLA�released�last�June.��We�have�then�worked�very�

closely�with�them�to�look�at�what�their�ambition�was�and�to�make�sure�that�we�can�develop�a�masterplan�that�

would�be�able�to�deliver�on�that�vision.��It�is�a�combination�of�working�with�the�authorities�as�to�the�aspiration�

and�then�looking�at�a�detailed�masterplan�that�can�actually�deliver�that.��We�have�detailed�masterplanning�

behind�those�numbers.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��This�will�sound�more�insulting�than�it�is�meant�to�–���it�is�not�meant�to�sound�

insulting�at�all�-�but�it�was�not�on�the�back�of�a�fag�packet,�then,�and�you�just�went,�“24,000�sounds�good.��We�

will�go�for�that”?�

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��No.��We�have�detailed�

master-planning�and�we�are�working�up�all�of�that.��With�all�the�planning�authorities�and�the�planning�officers,�

it�has�been�very�much�a�two-way�process.��They�have�fed�into�that.��No,�there�is�absolutely�a�lot�of�detail�

behind�that.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��It�is�a�partnership�arrangement,�potentially,�with�you�and�the�boroughs�and�

the�GLA,�rather�than�simply�something�that�the�club�will�do�off�its�own�bat?�

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��Correct.�

Page 39



 

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��OK.��Thank�you.��It�is�Navin�next,�is�it�not?�

�

Navin
Shah
AM
(Deputy
Chair)��Yes.��We�have�heard�some�demonstration�of�partnership�working�between�

the�LLDC,�the�MDC�and�the�other�partners.��My�question�is�to�Paul.��What�lessons�have�you�learned�from�the�

running�of�the�MDC�at�the�Olympic�Park?��What�would�you�do�differently�if�you�were�establishing�it�now,�from�

the�experience�you�have�had?�

�

Dr
Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
of
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,
LLDC):��The�

general�point�I�would�make,�again,�is�that�whichever�part�of�London�you�are�thinking�about,�start�there�and�do�

not�start�with�us.��Start�now�and�not�with�us�then.��That�is,�figure�out�what�it�is�you�want�to�do.��Actually,�first�

of�all,�figure�out�who�it�is�who�wants�to�do�it.��It�is�about�building�relationships�from�the�start�between�the�GLA�

and�the�local�authorities,�essentially,�probably,�in�most�of�the�contexts�you�are�looking�forward�to,�and�then�

figuring�out�what�it�is�what�you�want�to�do�and�then�working�out�the�structure�that�works�best�for�you.�

�

Just�reflecting�on�the�LLDC,�we�were�born�out�of�a�very�different�kind�of�project.��It�had�a�national�focus�with�a�

lot�of�Government�investment.��It�was�a�London�project�as�the�London�Games.��It�had�a�very�strong�local�drive�

with�the�Park�spanning�four�boroughs�and�six�boroughs�with�an�intense�interest�in�it,�around�a�shared�national,�

London�and�local�ambition�to�regenerate�physically�and�in�terms�of�convergence.��We�started�off,�from�

memory,�as�the�OPLC.��We�were�a�company,�one�structure�that�worked.��Then,�the�drive�of�the�Localism�Act�

and�the�Government�still�investing�a�lot�of�money�but�wanting�to�express�that�locally�is�what�then�gave�birth�to�

the�MDC,�actually.��We�were�born�out�of�a�particular�set�of�national,�London�and�local�imperatives�which,�

gladly�and�happily,�coalesced,�with�money�coming�from�all�three�levels�and�a�political�drive�for�localism�rather�

than�a�national�drive.��That�is�what�gave�birth�to�the�MDC.�

�

What�was�the�lesson�within�that?��We�have�worked�very�hard�with�the�local�authorities�particularly�and�with�

GLA�colleagues�to�make�things�work.��That�has�been�very�interesting.��It�has�not�been�one-size-fits-all�with�the�

local�authorities.��Sometimes�it�has.��If�you�think�about�employment,�which�has�been�very�much�a�six-borough�

partnership�with�us�working�very�closely�together�to�drive�the�successes�in�local�jobs�and�apprenticeships�that�

we�have�talked�about,�it�was�very�much�a�broad�partnership.��On�the�stadium,�it�is�clearly�much�more�a�bipartite�

relationship�with�Newham�and�that�is�expressed�in�a�new�structure:�the�E20�Limited�Liability�Partnership.�

�

Up�in�Hackney,�it�has�been�very�much�a�bipartite�relationship�both�in�terms�of�the�future�of�the�present�

Broadcast�Centre,�which�is�the�venue�it�was�intensely�interested�in�because�it�wanted�to�see�it�brought�forward�

as�a�business�location�and�it�is�pretty�much�there�with�that,�but�also�with�what�happens�in�neighbouring�

Hackney�Wick.��Hackney�Wick,�which�is�just�outside�the�Park,�is�an�interesting�old�industrial�area�with�some�

residential�estates,�the�Trowbridge�Estate,�and�a�lot�of�very�interesting�small�businesses�there.��Hackney�is�very�

keen�-�as�we�are�-�that�Hackney�Wick�and�East�Wick,�which�is�the�new�neighbourhood�in�the�Park,�work�

together,�that�the�residential�neighbourhoods�work�together�and�that�the�new�business�location�of�Here�East�

and�the�existing�business�location�of�Hackney�Wick�and�Fish�Island�work�together.��There,�we�are�developing�a�

different�sort�of�relationship�with�Hackney,�which�will�probably�lead�to�them�having�a�long-term�stake�in�the�

bits�of�Hackney�Wick�that�we�are�currently�involved�with.�

�

It�is�about�building�sensitive�relationships,�no�doubt�having�our�ups�and�downs,�but�actually�having�different�

kinds�of�arrangements�that�suit�the�direction�we�want�to�go�in�in�the�future.��Does�that�help?��I�would�counsel�

against�saying�that�because�we�had�that�particular�kind�of�MDC�here,�you�should�do�the�same�again.��You�need�

to�think�very�carefully�about�who�the�players�are,�what�relationships�you�need�to�build�and�what�you�want�to�

do,�and�then�get�the�best�structure�in�today’s�circumstances.�

�

Page 40



 

Navin
Shah
AM
(Deputy
Chair)��Can�you�tell�us,�let�us�say,�one�thing�which�you�reckon�has�not�quite�

worked�well�or�could�be�developed�better?��We�are,�let�us�face�it,�pretty�much�at�a�stage�where�the�Mayor�is�

looking�at�another�MDC�for�a�huge�project�at�Old�Oak�Common.��I�think�it�is�important�to�see�how�we�can�learn�

from�what�we�have�already�tried�elsewhere.��That�is�why�I�think�it�is�very�relevant�and�important�if�there�are�

areas�or�an�area�where�you�reckon,�“No,�perhaps�we�could�have�done�this�better”.��It�is�a�question�of�learning�

lessons.��Is�there�anything�at�all?�

�

Dr
Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
of
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,
LLDC):��I�am�

always�reluctant�to�volunteer�things�that�I�think�have�not�worked�well�because�--�

�

Navin
Shah
AM
(Deputy
Chair)��Give�some�advice�to�the�Mayor�and�his�team.�

�

Dr
Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
of
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,
LLDC):��My�advice�

is�to�assess�the�situation.��I�am�really�not�aware�of�the�details�of�Old�Oak�Common�and�what�is�really�required.��

You�need�to�compare�what�we�have�had�with�that.��As�I�say,�we�are�in�a�very�different�world�now,�even�though�

it�is�only�two,�three�or�four�years�later.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��Kim,�you�were�smiling�wryly�then.�

�

Navin
Shah
AM
(Deputy
Chair)��Yes,�he�was.�

�

Dr
Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
of
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,
LLDC):��I�will�

leave�it�to�Kim�to�tell�us�whether�it�worked.�

�

Kim
Bromley-Derry
(Chief
Executive,
London
Borough
of
Newham):��In�the�first�instance,�the�thing�I�

would�say�is�that�form�should�follow�function.��There�was�an�absolute�purpose�for�the�arrangements�we�have�at�

the�moment�from�the�ODA�into�the�OPLC�and�into�the�LLDC.��There�was�a�joint�endeavour�and�a�joint�vision�to�

complete�something�and�complete�a�project.��It�worked�because�we�had�a�shared�endeavour�and�we�had�a�

shared�purpose.��It�has�not�always�been�easy�because�we�have�different�views,�as�do�our�other�local�authorities,�

in�terms�of�how�that�could�be�delivered�and�how�it�should�be�delivered.��However,�the�critical�thing�is�that�the�

solution�should�not�be�the�form�before�you�have�actually�decided�on�the�function�of�it.��That�is�one�lesson�for�

any�future�MDC�arrangement.��Make�it�bespoke�to�the�arrangement�and�ensure�you�have�the�partners�on�

board�with�delivering�that�shared�vision.��The�ups�and�downs,�then,�are�less�painful�because�you�actually�still�

want�the�same�goal�at�the�end�of�the�day.�

�

The�other�thing�I�would�say�in�terms�of�moving�forward�is�that�what�we�learned�in�the�early�days�was�to�avoid�

duplication�at�all�costs.��Do�not�have�lots�of�planning�teams.��Do�not�have�lots�of�licensing�teams.��The�

boroughs�very,�very�quickly�entered�into�a�joint�licensing�arrangement�as�one�authority�took�the�lead�on�behalf�

of�all�the�authorities.��That�is�something�that�I�would�absolutely�think�could�be�learned.��We�also�entered�into�

those�agreements�as�joint�authorities�with�one�authority�taking�the�lead�on�particular�aspects.�

�

Latterly,�I�think�the�other�missed�opportunity�and�something�we�should�pick�up�is�around�making�those�endure�

post-project.��Otherwise,�it�is�not�an�efficient�project�if�everyone�has�their�own�planners,�everyone�has�their�

own�licensing�officers�and�everyone�has�their�own�enforcement�officers.��One�of�the�lessons�learned�is�that�the�

more�shared�services�and�the�more�joint�arrangements�you�have�and�the�more�joint�arrangements�you�agree�at�

the�earliest�possible�opportunity�-�and�we�did�absolutely�agree�some�of�those�with�the�LLDC,�but�there�is�

probably�more�that�we�can�do�as�well�going�forward�-�it�then�creates�an�incredibly�strong�partnership.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��A�final�question�on�that.��The�Olympic�Stadium,�in�common�with�the�former�

Commonwealth�Stadium�in�Manchester,�has�an�unusual�level�of�public�sector�ownership�and�investment�in�the�

Page 41



 

actual�stadium�itself,�which�is�not�necessarily�typical�of�general�sports�stadium�development.��Do�you�think�that�

has�been�advantageous�in�terms�of�securing�the�kind�of�activity�and�the�kind�of�legacy�you�want?��There�are�

going�to�be�supplementary�questions�added�on�based�on�your�answer.�

�

Kim
Bromley-Derry
(Chief
Executive,
London
Borough
of
Newham):��Unless�we�had�committed�to�the�

£40�million�that�we�are�committed�to,�much�of�the�stadium-related�work�may�not�have�happened.��We�may�

well�have�been�into�the�original�legacy�project�because,�in�a�sense,�we�put�that�proposal�forward�back�in�

2009/10�whilst�we�still�had�the�original�legacy�arrangements�in�place�for�the�stadium.��Therefore,�we�made�an�

absolute�commitment�and,�obviously,�as�part�of�that�commitment�we�wanted�to�secure�all�the�subsequent�

legacy�arrangements�and�legacy�benefits.��Certainly,�that�is�one�of�the�main�rationales�for�our�£40�million�going�

into�that�stadium�project.��The�governance�arrangements�that�have�followed�have�all�been�about�making�sure�

we�can�support�the�local�people�and�those�legacy�arrangements.�

�

However,�to�be�fair�to�the�OPLC�and�then�the�LLDC,�they�absolutely�were�on�board�with�those,�as�were�West�

Ham�when�we�were�dealing�with�them.��Again,�it�goes�back.��There�was�a�shared�commitment�for�a�legacy.��

There�was�a�shared�commitment�about�what�that�legacy�should�look�like.��Those�agreements�were�made�at�the�

very,�very�early�stages�of�the�project.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��Does�the�public�sector�involvement�right�from�the�outset�and�throughout�

the�project�secure�the�legacy�or�make�it�easier�to�control�the�delivery�of�the�legacy?�

�

Kim
Bromley-Derry
(Chief
Executive,
London
Borough
of
Newham):��I�would�say�it�does.��We�have�an�

arrangement�for�the�next�103�years�where�we�are,�effectively,�with�the�LLDC�and�whatever�follows�the�LLDC,�

absolutely�there�to�ensure�that�the�local�community�gets�benefit�from�that�development,�whether�it�is�the�Park�

or�the�stadium.��I�would�see�it�more�as�a�partnership,�but�actually�I�think�in�all�the�developments�the�public�

sector�has�to�make�a�commitment�to�ensure�that�it�is�delivered,�whether�it�is�the�housing�benefits�that�you�

realise�or�whether�it�is�the�other�community�benefits�that�you�realise.�

�

Our�view�is�that�that�is�one�of�the�roles�of�the�public�sector:�to�ensure�the�benefits�to�the�community�of�any�

investments�or�to�work�collaboratively�with�private�investments�to�accelerate�and�enhance�those.��Certainly�

that�is�the�approach�we�take�and�I�am�sure�it�is�the�approach�most�other�authorities�and�the�GLA�would�want�

to�take�going�forward.��It�is�not�always�possible.��You�do�not�always�have�the�money.��However,�it�is�something�

that�should�always�be�your�starting�point.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��Mark,�the�key�difference�between�the�two�examples�that�I�have�just�cited�-�

the�Olympic�Park�and�the�Commonwealth�Stadium�in�Manchester�-�is�that�they�were�major�international�

showpiece�games�that�the�public�sector�had�to�put�a�lot�into�in�order�to�provide.��Your�proposed�scheme,�

clearly,�is�different.��Would�you�welcome�that�degree�of�public�sector�involvement�or�would�you�be�looking�for�

a�partnership�arrangement�that�did�not�involve�an�ownership�stake?�

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��It�is�not�something�

that�we�have�had�any�conversation�on�or�have�actively�considered.��I�certainly�agree�with�what�Kim�[Bromley-

Derry]�said�in�terms�of�the�private�sector/public�sector�partnership.��It�is�more�about�what�the�public�sector�can�

deliver�in�terms�of�infrastructure�or�making�sure�that�we�deliver�that�mix�of�housing.��We�are�absolutely�

committed�to�funding�and�delivering�a�private-sector�stadium�which�forms�a�catalyst�for�the�regeneration.��It�

would�not�be�an�active�request�from�us�that�we�would�need�public�sector�investment�to�deliver�a�stadium.��

However,�regeneration�as�a�whole�and�the�infrastructure�and�investment�needed�in�the�area�associated�with�

our�investment�in�the�stadium�is�what�we�would�see�as�the�catalyst�to�make�that�happen.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��Thank�you.��OK.��The�final�question�I�want�to�put�is�to�--�

Page 42



 

�

Murad
Qureshi
AM:��Could�I�just�ask�a�quick�question�on�the�back�of�that?�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��Quickly,�yes.�

�

Murad
Qureshi
AM:��Very�quickly,�just�on�the�proposed�MDC�in�Old�Oak�Common,�it�strikes�me�that�QPR�is�

in�a�rush.��Can�you�afford�to�wait�for�the�MDC�to�be�fully�functional?��It�is�probably�going�to�be�fully�functional�

in�the�next�term.��It�may�be�set�up�this�term.��It�sounds�to�me�like�one�of�the�reasons�you�are�pushing�it�quite�

strongly�is�that�you�do�need�it�sorted�now.�

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��We�would�like�to�get�

on�with�early�delivery.��We�think�that�is�something�that�will�benefit�the�area.��The�early�delivery�of�the�

regeneration�and�the�homes�would�be�of�benefit�all�around.��Yes,�clearly,�we�want�to�move�to�a�new�stadium�as�

early�as�would�be�possible.��In�terms�of�the�timeframe�around�the�MDC,�again,�it�would�be�difficult�for�me�to�

comment.�

�

Murad
Qureshi
AM:��Yes,�I�understand.�

�

Mark
Donnelly
(Chief
Operating
Officer,
Queen’s
Park
Rangers
Football
Club):��We�obviously�

understand�the�sort�of�timeframe.��One�thing�that�has�been�discussed�around�the�timeframe�will�come�in�

reasonably�quickly,�but�our�key�message�is�that�we�would�work�with�the�GLA,�Hammersmith�and�Fulham,�Brent�

and�Ealing.��Whatever�legal�framework�exists,�we�would�work�with�all�of�the�relevant�public�sector�stakeholders�

to�deliver�it.��It�is�a�complex�project.��It�is�a�big�project.��It�is�going�to�need�the�involvement�of�all�stakeholders�

to�ultimately�deliver�it.��It�is�going�to�need�that�collaboration�between�the�public�and�the�private�sectors.�

�

Murad
Qureshi
AM:��I�just�thought�the�timing�thing�was�worth�emphasising.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��It�certainly�was.��Thank�you�very�much,�Murad.��The�final�question�is�aimed�

at�Kim�and�Paul�[Brickell].��It�is�a�sort�of�sweeping-up�question,�really.��Sarah�Ebanja�[Chair,�Newlon�Group,�

and�independent�consultant],�who�was�Deputy�Chief�Executive�at�Islington�at�the�time�of�Arsenal’s�

redevelopment,�came�and�spoke�to�the�Committee�on�an�earlier�occasion.��She�mentioned�that�there�was�a�lack�

of�published�empirical�data�as�to�the�impact�of�stadium-led�development�and�the�impact�that�it�had�on�

regeneration�in�the�local�communities.�

�

Intuitively�and�vocally�everyone�that�we�have�spoken�to�has�said�that�it�is�very�positive�and�has�given�examples�

of�certain�things�that�have�been�done.��However,�given�there�is�nothing�empirical�that�we�can�find,�how�are�

you�both�going�to�be�measuring�the�impact�of�the�use�of�the�Olympic�Stadium�and�particularly�West�Ham’s�

tenancy�on�the�local�community�and�the�benefits�or�otherwise�of�it?�

�

Kim
Bromley-Derry
(Chief
Executive,
London
Borough
of
Newham):��The�first�part�of�the�answer�is�

quite�subtle�in�a�sense.��We�are�seeing�at�the�moment�5,000�or�6,000�properties�being�built�in�the�local�area�

plus�about�10,000�in�the�planning�process�at�the�moment.��The�subtlety�is�that�it�is�slightly�broader�than�the�

stadium.��Why�did�developers�want�to�develop�in�the�area?��It�was�because�of�the�amenities,�the�facilities�and�

the�transport�infrastructure�that�go�with�it�and�also�the�fact�that�it�is�an�attractive�place�to�live,�work�and�stay.��

The�stadium,�at�a�fairly�iconic�level,�actually�contributes�to�that�vision�of�the�area�and�it�would�be�less�visionary�

and�less�attractive�if�we�did�not�have�the�stadium�there.��On�one�level,�it�is�more�emotional.��There�is�an�

emotional�level�to�this�and�it�is�perhaps�more�subtle.�

�

The�other�side�of�it�is�that�absolutely�all�the�contractual�arrangements�we�have�both�with�the�tenants�and�with�

the�subsequent�operators�will�be�about�measuring�the�outputs.��For�example,�we�want�to�support�West�Ham�to�

Page 43



 

be�a�successful�business,�but�we�are�also�interested�in�outputs�such�as�the�jobs�that�are�directly�related�to�West�

Ham�in�terms�of�local�residents.��How�many�new�supporters�are�coming�from�the�local�area?��What�is�the�

engagement�with�schools�and�local�communities�and�the�numbers?��Those�are�things�that�we�already�monitor,�

actually,�in�terms�of�our�partnership,�but�they�are�certainly�really�important�to�us.�

�

It�is�also�true�for�all�the�other�stakeholders�in�the�stadium.��They�are�all�subject�to�those�agreements,�which�

allow�us�to�measure�the�outputs.��Down�the�line,�we�will�be�able�to�quickly�quantify�that�there�were�this�many�

new�jobs�and�how�many�related�to�local�residents.��How�many�new�people�have�attended�events�in�the�

stadium?��What�about�community�sport?��Have�we�been�able�to�increase�the�level�of�community�sport�in�the�

local�area?��What�is�the�causal�relationship�with�the�stadium?��They�are�all�built�into�the�performance�

framework�for�the�stadium�and�those�people�operating�the�stadium.��Therefore,�we�have�the�tangibles�as�well,�

but�inevitably�those�are�not�really�realised�until�the�stadium�is�operational.��We�also�have�them�and�the�LLDC�

has�constructed�those�arrangements�with�all�the�other�venues�in�the�Park�as�well,�which�is�a�really�important�

factor.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��Yes.��A�final�word�from�you,�Paul?�

�

Dr
Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
of
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,
LLDC):��Yes,�I�will�

start�by�answering�the�question�the�other�way�around.��Absolutely,�there�are�a�lot�of�things�we�will�measure�

and�count.��We�will�absolutely�do�all�that.��It�is�in�the�contractual�positions�and�so�forth.��We�are�used�to�doing�

it�and�it�will�give�us�a�certain�amount�of�information.�

�

However,�I�would�go�back�to�the�first�thing�I�said,�which�is�that�the�stadium�is�part�of�a�constellation�of�things�

that�are�happening�in�and�around�the�venues,�the�Park,�the�new�neighbourhoods.��Actually,�as�you�have�

already�said,�if�you�look�beyond�the�Park,�in�our�area�there�are�starts�onsite�in�Chobham�Farm�to�the�east�of�

the�Park�and�there�is�new�building�in�Stratford�High�Street.��That�is�what�is�coming�out�of�the�ground.��There�is�

Hackney�Wick,�the�Stratford�Town�centre,�et�cetera.��The�whole�Stratford/Hackney�focus�is�just�one�part�of�

what�is�happening�in�east�London�and�you�could�tell�another�story�about�the�Royals.�

�

The�real�target�and�the�sum�of�all�of�that�is�the�ambition�of�convergence�and�that�is�a�six-borough�set�of�

measures�which�are�about�the�higher-level�indicators�like�employment�rates,�education�attainment�and�

mortality�rates,�which�the�boroughs�and�the�GLA�will�continue�to�monitor�over�time.��You�hope�that�the�sum�

total�of�all�of�this�activity�continues�to�do�what�it�is�doing,�which�is�to�move�those�indicators�in�the�right�

direction.��The�match�between�what�you�can�measure�on�the�stadium�and�what�you�can�measure�as�a�high�level�

and�disaggregating�the�effect�of�the�stadium�on�all�of�that�will�be,�inevitably,�very�difficult,�actually.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):��We�will�keep�our�eyes�on�it.��Thank�you�very�much.�

�

Len
Duvall
AM:��Can�I�just�ask�a�very�quick�question�to�Paul?��Do�you�think�officers�in�the�GLA,�in�terms�of�

their�interaction�with�you,�learn�from�your�experiences�with�some�of�those�issues�and�do�you�think�it�gets�

transferred�when�they�discuss�some�of�these�issues�on�other�developments�and�other�issues?��I�take�your�point�

that�everywhere�is�different,�but�there�are�some�lessons�to�be�learned�and�vice-versa.��You�can�learn�something�

from�the�GLA.��Do�you�think�that�is�the�case?�

�

Dr
Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
of
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,
LLDC):��First�of�

all,�in�all�different�areas�of�the�GLA,�they�are�alert�to�what�we�are�trying�to�achieve.��They�understand�

convergence�and�they�understand�the�component�parts�and�we�talk�to�people�about�that�quite�a�lot.��They�are�

also�well�aware�of�the�approaches�that�we�have�taken,�sometimes�very�novel�approaches,�to�crack�issues�like�

apprenticeships�in�constructions.�

�

Page 44



 

I�do�get�the�impression�that�that�feeds�across�to�some�extent.��You�will�have�a�better�view�as�to�whether�you�

see�that�referenced�as�it�surfaces�in�your�world.��Certainly,�we�have�very�active�interaction�with�all�sorts�of�GLA�

officers�about�what�we�are�trying�to�achieve,�what�we�have�achieved�and�how�we�did�it.��I�would�hope�it�gets�

translated�across,�but�you�will�see�whether�it�pops�up,�I�suppose.��In�fact,�I�would�be�interested�to�know�

whether�you�see�the�fruits�of�what�we�have�learned�popping�up�in�other�areas.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
AM
(Chairman):���Thank�you.��That�concludes�the�discussion.�

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



 

                                                                      

City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk


 

Subject:�Summary
List
of
Actions
and
Action

Taken
by
the
Chairman
Under
Delegated

Authority
�
Report
to:
 Regeneration
Committee




Report
of:

Executive
Director
of
Secretariat 



Date:
26
November
2014�



This
report
will
be
considered
in
public

 





1.
 Summary



�
1.1 This�report�sets�out�the�actions�arising�from�previous�meetings�of�the�Regeneration�Committee.�





2.
 Recommendations
�


2.1 That
the
Committee
notes
the
completed
and
outstanding
actions
arising
from
previous


meetings
of
the
Committee.


2.2 That
the
Committee
notes
the
following
action
taken
by
the
Chairman
under
delegated


authority,
namely:


(a) The
letter
written
to
the
London
Legacy
Development
Corporation
(LLDC)
and
to


officers
at
the
GLA,
seeking
further
information
arising
from
the
discussion
by
the


Committee
at
its
meeting
on
16
September
2014
on
stadium-led
regeneration,


following
consultation
with
the
Deputy
Chair
and
Committee
Members
(the
letters


are
attached
as
Appendices
1
and
3
to
this
report
respectively);



(b) The
agreement
of
comments
on
the
London
Infrastructure
Plan
for
submission
to


the
London
Assembly’s
Planning
Committee,
following
consultation
with
the


Deputy
Chair
(the
submission
is
attached
as
Appendix
4
to
this
report);
and


(c) The
arrangements
for
a
site
visit
to
the
Old
Oak
Common
and
Park
Royal
site
on




12
November
2014,
following
consultation
with
the
Deputy
Chair.





Agenda Item 4

Page 47



        

Action
Arising
from
the
Committee
meeting
on
16
September
2014


Item
 Topic
 Status
 For
Action





5.
 Stadium-Led
Regeneration





The�Committee�agreed�to�delegate�authority�to�the�

Chairman,�in�consultation�with�the�Deputy�Chair�and�

Committee�Members,�to�write�to�the�London�Legacy�

Development�Corporation�(LLDC)�and�to�officers�at�the�

GLA,�seeking�further�information�arising�from�the�

discussion.�




�

�

The�Chairman�wrote�

to�the�Executive�

Director�of�

Regeneration�and�

Community�

Partnerships,�LLDC,�

on�2�October�2014.��

The�letter�is�attached�

as�Appendix
1.��Dr�

Brickell’s�response�is�

attached�as��

Appendix
2.�




The�Chairman�also�

wrote�to�the�Senior�

Manager�–�Planning�

Decisions,�GLA�on�2�

October�2014.��The�

letter�is�attached�as��

Appendix
3.��A�

response�is�awaited.���

�

�

�

Chairman�

6.
 Mayor’s
Regeneration
Fund





The�Committee�noted�the�delegated�action�taken�by�the�

Chairman�to�agree�the�Committee’s�report,�Out�of�the�

Ashes:�The�Mayor’s�Regeneration�Fund;�and�the�action�

taken�by�the�Chairman�to�send�a�letter�to�the�Mayor.��

�

�

The�letter�from�the�

Mayor�to�the�

Chairman�is�attached�

at�Appendix
4.�

�

�

7.


 


Regeneration
Committee
Work
Programme





The�Committee�also�agreed�to�delegate�authority�to�the�

Chairman,�in�consultation�with�the�Deputy�Chair,�to�

agree�comments�on�the�London�Infrastructure�Plan�for�

submission�to�the�London�Assembly’s�Planning�

Committee.��

�

�

�

The�Committee’s�

submission�to�the�

Planning�Committee�is�

attached�as��

Appendix
5.�

�






Page 48



        

Action
Arising
from
the
Committee
meeting
on
19
June
2014


Item
 Topic
 Status
 For
Action





5.
 Stadium-led
Regeneration


�

The�Committee�also�agreed�to�delegate�authority�to�the�

Chairman,�in�consultation�with�the�Deputy�Chair,�to�

agree�any�additional�site�visits�related�to�this�

investigation.�




�

�

Following�consultation�

with�the�Deputy�Chair,�

the�Chairman�agreed�

to�a�site�visit�to�the�

Old�Oak�Common�and�

Park�Royal�Site.��As�

the�Assembly�will�

soon�be�asked�to�take�

a�formal�decision�on�

the�proposed�Mayoral�

Development�

Corporation�for�that�

area,�the�Chairman�

opened�up�the�

invitation�to�attend�

this�site�visit�to�all�

Assembly�members.�

The�site�visit�took�

place�on�12�November�

2014.�

�

�





3.
 Legal
Implications



3.1� The�Committee�has�the�power�to�do�what�is�recommended�in�this�report.�

�

�
4.
 Financial
Implications




4.1 �� There�are�no�financial�implications�to�the�GLA�arising�from�this�report.�

�

�

�

Page 49



        

�

List
of
appendices
to
this
report:
�
�

Appendix�1�–�Letter�from�the�Chairman�to�the�Executive�Director�of�Regeneration�and�Community�

Partnerships,�LLDC,�dated�2�October�2014.�

�

Appendix�2�–�Response�to�Appendix�1�dated�22�October�2014.�

�

Appendix�3�–�Letter�from�the�Chairman�to�the�Senior�Manager�–�Planning�Decisions,�GLA,�dated�2�October�

2014.�

�

Appendix�4�–�Letter�from�the�Mayor�to�the�Chairman�regarding�the�Mayor’s�Regeneration�Fund,�dated�10�

November�2014.�

�

Appendix�5�–�The�Committee’s�comments�on�the�London�Infrastructure�Plan�as�submitted�to�the�Planning�

Committee.�
�
�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:��

Member�Delegated�Authority�Forms�531,�532�and�533.�

�

Contact�Officer:� Joanna�Brown�and�Teresa�Young,�Senior�Committee�Officers�

Telephone:� 020�7983�6559�

Email:� joanna.brown@london.gov.uk�and�teresa.young@london.gov.uk�

�

�

Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



�

�

Appendix 5 
�
Infrastructure�Plan�consultation:�Draft�Regeneration�Committee�submission�to�the�
Planning�Committee��

�
Introduction�
�
The�Planning�Committee�is�coordinating�the�Assembly’s�response�to�the�consultation�on�the�
London�Infrastructure�Plan�2050�(IP).�The�Regeneration�Committee�has�been�asked�to�
contribute�to�the�consultation�questions�relating�to�digital�connectivity.���
�
The�relevant�consultation�questions�are:�

�

• What�else�can�we�do�to�ensure�we�achieve�universal�digital�connectivity?���
�

• Are�you�able�to�suggest�examples�of�alternative�ways�of�providing�digital�connectivity�to�
local�areas�with�poor�or�no�broadband�provision?���

�
Draft�response�from�the�Regeneration�Committee��
�
The�Regeneration�Committee�has�considered�the�Mayor’s�objectives�for�improving�digital�
infrastructure�as�set�out�in�the�IP.�The�Committee’s�response�is�based�on�the�recommendations�
set�out�in�its�letter�of�March�2014�to�the�Mayor�regarding�digital�connectivity�in�the�London�
Plan.1�This�followed�evidence�the�Committee�received�at�its�meeting�in�January�2014�with�
expert�guests�from�the�communications�and�digital�sectors�and�London�government.��
�
We�welcome�the�Infrastructure�Plan’s�emphasis�on�improving�digital�infrastructure.�As�outlined�
in�the�IP,�London�lags�behind�other�major�centres.�The�Committee�heard�in�January�that�
London�was�ranked�sixth�from�bottom�in�a�recent�survey�of�broadband�provision�in�European�
major�cities,�and�that�failure�to�act�quickly�could�risk�London’s�competitiveness.�That�said,�we�
support�the�IP’s�emphasis�on�enhancing�digital�connectivity�(rather�than�a�narrow�focus�on�
broadband),�given�the�fast-moving�nature�of�connectivity�technology�which�will�require�London�
to�facilitate�investment�in�a�range�of�modes.�As�we�highlighted�in�our�letter�in�March,�improving�
a�range�of�digital�connectivity�modes�is�particularly�key�for�London’s�small�and�medium�
enterprises.�
�
We�broadly�support�the�measures�outlined�in�the�IP�to�enhance�digital�connectivity,�however�we�
would�like�to�see�a�number�of�changes�reflecting�the�priority�and�urgency�that�the�Mayor�must�
place�on�upgrading�digital�connectivity�as�London’s�essential�fourth�utility.��
�
We�back�the�Mayor’s�decision�to�establish�a�Connectivity�Advisory�Group�to�work�with�the�London�
Infrastructure�Delivery�Board�(LIDB).�We�that�think�the�Mayor’s�plans�for�the�Group�could�be�
strengthened�by�establishing�a�timetable�for�the�city-wide�mapping�exercise�proposed�in�the�Plan.�
Given�the�urgency�of�London’s�need�for�better�connectivity,�we�suggest�that�the�Advisory�Group�should�
be�established�in�early�2015�and�complete�the�mapping�exercise�by�the�end�of�December�2015.���
Furthermore,�we�would�encourage�the�Mayor�to�involve�Ofcom�as�a�key�stakeholder�in�the�
Connectivity�Advisory�Group.�As�set�out�in�the�Committee’s�letter�to�the�Mayor�in�March,�the�Mayor�
should�invite�the�regulator�to�examine�the�incentives�facing�suppliers,�and�to�investigate�the�scope�for�
addressing�any�factors�which�disincentivise�private�investment.���
�

�������������������������������������������������
1�Letter�from�the�Regeneration�Committee�to�the�Mayor,�4�March�2014�

Page 65



�

�

Equally,�we�would�like�to�see�the�Mayor�establish�a�lead�digital�champion�to�implement�the�
recommendations�of�the�Connectivity�Advisory�Group.�Currently,�it�is�unclear�who�is�responsible�
for�spearheading�improved�digital�connectivity.�The�IP�should�commit�the�Mayor�to�nominate�a�
Mayoral�lead�to�provide�accountability�for�delivering�the�step�change�in�digital�connectivity�
that�London�needs.��
�
The�Committee�welcomes�the�Mayor’s�objective�to�prioritise�digital�connectivity�in�new�
developments,�and�in�particular�in�Opportunity�Areas.�Gathering�evidence�in�January�2014,�the�
Committee�heard�that�new�developments�often�lack�effective�connectivity,�largely�because�
individual�sites�are�not�linked�to�arterial�broadband�infrastructure.�We�strongly�support�the�
Mayor’s�aim�to�charge�the�LIDB�explore�how�communications�providers�and�developers�can�
work�together�to�prioritise�digital�connectivity�at�an�early�stage�in�planning�Opportunity�Areas.��
�
�
�
�

Page 66



 

                                                                  

�
City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458


 

Subject:
The
London
Legacy
Development

Corporation

Report
to:
 Regeneration
Committee


Report
of:

Executive
Director
of
Secretariat


This
report
will
be
considered
in
public

�




1.
 Summary



�

1.1 This�report�proposes�that�the�Committee�

Corporation�(LLDC)�with�expert�guests�

LLDC.�





2.
 Recommendations�
�

2.1 That
the
Committee
notes
the
report


regarding
the
LLDC
and
regeneration
in



2.2 That
the
Committee
notes
the
summar
attached
as
Appendix
1
to







3.
 Background





3.1 As�part�of�its�2014/15�work�programme,�the�Committee�has�agreed�to�update�its�work�on�the�LLDC.

�

3.2� In�2013/14,�the�Committee�reviewed�the�work�of�the�LLDC�in�supporting�the�regeneration�of�the�

Olympic�Park�and�surrounding�area.�Following�this�work,�the�Committee�published�a�report�on�the�

organisation’s�progress�in�December�2013

that�the�organisation�had�made�positive�progress�in�a�number�of�areas,�but�that�there�were�a�number�

of�key�factors�that�would�be�critical�to�its�success�over�the�following�12�months.�These�

£8.5�million�revenue�gap,�which�the�Committee�called�on�

could�have�hindered�the�LLDC’s�progress.�

recommendations�to�the�Mayor�and�LLDC.

�

�

                                                 
1�The�weblink�to�the�Committee’s�report�is:�
https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Regeneration%20Committee%20report%20
%20LLDC%20One%20Year%20On_0.pdf�
�

                                                                     

City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk


The
London
Legacy
Development


Regeneration
Committee



Executive
Director
of
Secretariat� Date:
26




considered
in
public�

proposes�that�the�Committee�holds�a�discussion�on�the�London�Legacy�Development�

with�expert�guests�and�stakeholders,�as�part�of�its�update�on�the�

That
the
Committee
notes
the
report
as
background
to
a
discussion
with
invited
guests

the
LLDC
and
regeneration
in
and
around
the
Queen
Elizabeth
Olympic
Park

That
the
Committee
notes
the
summary
of
its
site
visit
on
15
October
to
this
report.


its�2014/15�work�programme,�the�Committee�has�agreed�to�update�its�work�on�the�LLDC.

reviewed�the�work�of�the�LLDC�in�supporting�the�regeneration�of�the�

Olympic�Park�and�surrounding�area.�Following�this�work,�the�Committee�published�a�report�on�the�

organisation’s�progress�in�December�2013:�One�Year�On�–�the�work�of�the�LLDC

that�the�organisation�had�made�positive�progress�in�a�number�of�areas,�but�that�there�were�a�number�

of�key�factors�that�would�be�critical�to�its�success�over�the�following�12�months.�These�

£8.5�million�revenue�gap,�which�the�Committee�called�on�the�Mayor�to�fill,�

could�have�hindered�the�LLDC’s�progress.�The�Committee�also�made�a�number�of�other�

recommendations�to�the�Mayor�and�LLDC.�

https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Regeneration%20Committee%20report%20-

 

The
London
Legacy
Development



November
2014


the�London�Legacy�Development�

update�on�the�work�of�the�

discussion
with
invited
guests


and
around
the
Queen
Elizabeth
Olympic
Park.


October
2014,
which
is


its�2014/15�work�programme,�the�Committee�has�agreed�to�update�its�work�on�the�LLDC.��

reviewed�the�work�of�the�LLDC�in�supporting�the�regeneration�of�the�

Olympic�Park�and�surrounding�area.�Following�this�work,�the�Committee�published�a�report�on�the�

ork�of�the�LLDC
1.�The�report�noted�

that�the�organisation�had�made�positive�progress�in�a�number�of�areas,�but�that�there�were�a�number�

of�key�factors�that�would�be�critical�to�its�success�over�the�following�12�months.�These�included�an�

fill,�which,�if�not�provided,�

The�Committee�also�made�a�number�of�other�

Agenda Item 5

Page 67



        

�

4.
 Issues
for
Consideration��

�

4.1 Members�committed�to�update�the�Committee’s�work�on�this�topic�in�this�Assembly�year.��To�

support�its�update,�the�Committee�held�a�site�visit�to�the�Queen�Elizabeth�Olympic�Park�on������������

15�October�2014.�Members�visited�the�ArcelorMittal�Orbit,�the�Olympic�Stadium,�and�the�Aquatics�

Centre.��A�summary�of�the�visit�is�provided�at�Appendix
1.�

�

4.2 The�following�guests�have�been�invited�to�the�Committee’s�meeting�on�26�November�2014:�

• David�Goldstone�MBE,�Chief�Executive,�LLDC;�

• Dr�Paul�Brickell,�Executive�Director�of�Regeneration�and�Community�Partnerships,�LLDC;�

• Lord�Andrew�Mawson�OBE,�Chair,�Regeneration�and�Communities�Committee,�LLDC;�

• Cllr�Guy�Nicholson,�Cabinet�Member�for�Regeneration,�LB�Hackney;�and��

• Sir�Robin�Wales,�The�Mayor�of�Newham�and�Chair�of�London’s�Growth�Boroughs.��

�

4.3 This�discussion�will�focus�on�the�work�of�the�LLDC,�and�it�will�also�examine�the�contribution�the�

organisation�is�making�to�supporting�wider�regeneration�of�the�surrounding�area,�and�convergence�–

between�the�outcomes�for�people�in�this�part�of�east�London�and�the�rest�of�London�–�in�particular.�

The�Committee’s�discussion�will�look�to�cover�the�following�issues:�

• Progress�on�transformation�of�the�Olympic�venues;��

• Revenue�funding�for�regeneration;�

• Housing�development�on�the�Olympic�Park�and�surrounding�area;��

• Progress�on�employment�and�skills�targets�at�the�Olympic�Park;�

• Proposals�for�a�higher�education�and�cultural�quarter�at�the�Stratford�Waterfront�site;�and�

• Progress�towards�convergence�goals�in�east�London.�

�

�

5.
 Legal
Implications




5.1 The�Committee�has�the�power�to�do�what�is�recommended�in�this�report.�





6.
 Financial
Implications

�

6.1 There�are�no�direct�financial�implications�arising�from�this�report.�
� �

Page 68



        

�

List
of
appendices
to
this
report:


�

Appendix�1�–�Summary�of�site�visit�to�the�Queen�Elizabeth�Olympic�Park�on�15�October�2014�

�

� �

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:��None�

�

Contact�Officer:� Jo�Sloman,�Scrutiny�Manager�

Telephone:� 020�7983�4942�

E-mail:� scrutiny@london.gov.uk��

�

Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 
�

Regeneration�Committee�site�visit�to�Queen�Elizabeth�Olympic�Park,�15�October�2014�
�

Attendees�
Assembly�Members�� Gareth�Bacon�AM�(Chairman),�Navin�Shah�AM�(Deputy�Chair),�James�Cleverly��

AM,�Len�Duvall��
�
Assembly�staff� Richard�Derecki,�Jo�Sloman,�Adam�Wildman,�Emma�Gray�
�
Visiting�� � Neale�Coleman�(Deputy�Chairman,�LLDC)��

Dr�Paul�Brickell�(Executive�Director,�Regeneration�and�Community�Partnerships)�
Mark�Robinson�(Head�of�External�Affairs,�LLDC)��
Roz�Collings�(Public�Affairs�Officer,�LLDC)�
Greg�Smith�(Project�Sponsor,�Olympic�Stadium,�LLDC)�

�
Overview�of�visit�
The�Committee�visited�the�Queen�Elizabeth�Olympic�Park�to�receive�an�update�on�progress�of�
transformation�works�for�the�post-Games�legacy�of�the�Park�and�venues.�The�Committee�visited�the�
ArcelorMittal�Orbit,�the�Olympic�Stadium,�and�the�Aquatics�Centre.�This�site�visit�was�held�in�advance�
of�the�Committee’s�meeting�with�the�LLDC�and�other�guests�on�26th�November�2014.���
�

Venues�and�locations��

�
Olympic�Stadium�

• The�LLDC�told�the�Committee�that�progress�on�the�stadium�transformation�is�on�schedule.�At�the�

time�of�the�Committee’s�visit,�the�roof�was�being�tethered�to�the�ground�and�circa�500�construction�
workers�were�on�site�for�the�stadium�transformation�works.�During�transformation,�the�athletics�

track�has�been�covered�with�a�membrane�and�1m-deep�concrete�to�prevent�damage.�Contractors�

cannot�work�on�the�ground�beneath�work�being�undertaken�on�certain�stages�of�the�roof�erection.�
Between�January�and�June�2015,�the�roof�will�be�clad�to�provide�good�acoustics�for�concerts.�The�

new�seating�will�be�installed�in�April�2015.�

• Responding�to�speculation�about�the�costs�of�the�roof�works,�the�LLDC�said�that�it�will�require�a�
little�more�than�the�contingency�funding�currently�available�in�the�stadium�budget.�The�stadium�

works�are�going�to�cost�more�due�to�structural�issues.�The�transformation�works�are�a�longer�project�

than�originally�planned�by�the�Olympic�Delivery�Authority�(original�plans�would�have�involved�
demolishing�the�entire�upper�bowl�leaving�a�25,000�athletics�only�Stadium),�and�therefore�the�

transformation�works�are�different�to�ensure�a�viable�multi�use�stadium.���

• The�lower�bowl�of�seating�will�hold�circa�20,500�spectators�during�athletics�and�football/other�pitch�
sports�modes.�In�athletics�mode,�the�new�aluminium�seating�will�sit�around�the�track.�In�football�

mode,�the�seats�will�be�pulled�forward�and�moved�across�the�track,�using�hydraulics�and�cranes.�29�

bridges�will�be�in�place�to�enable�spectators�to�walk�from�the�podium�to�the�lower�tier�seats.�
• The�field�of�play�will�host�rugby�as�well�as�football,�and�there�is�also�scope�for�cricket�and�US�sports.��

• The�first�part�of�the�stadium�transformation�works�are�due�to�be�completed�in�time�for�the�Rugby�

World�Cup�in�summer�2015.�The�LLDC�told�Members�that�some�preliminary�events�will�be�required�
to�test�the�venue.�

• The�stadium�operator�will�be�responsible�for�operating�the�‘halo’�surrounding�the�stadium,�which�will�

accommodate�food,�beverage,�and�retail�units.�

�

Page 71



Aquatics�Centre��

• The�Aquatics�Centre�was�handed�over�to�operator�Greenwich�Leisure�Limited�in�December�2013�and�

the�venue�opened�to�the�public�on�1�March�2014.�Since�then,�530,000�people�have�visited�the�
venue,�which�has�exceeded�forecasts.�The�venue�can�split�into�six�pools,�if�required�–�its�movable�

floors�allow�for�a�flexible�programme.�The�former�training�pool�(during�Games�time)�is�now�used�by�

schools�and�the�local�community.�A�boom�and�movable�floors�separates�the�two�pools.�
• The�centre�hosts:��

o A�Swim�School�programme,�used�by�2500�children�per�week;��

o A�learn�to�dive�programme�which�415�children�and�adults�use�on�a�weekly�basis�
o A�Diving�Academy,�which�300�schools�have�visited�to�date;�

o A�Training�section,�containing�a�12ft�dry�diving�pool,�trampoline�and�practice�diving�

boards;��
o An�on-site�crèche;�

o Audience�seating�for�2500�people;�

o A�community�access�gym�which�has�1800�members�to�date.�Membership�is�available�
from�£29.95�a�month,�rising�to�£45�a�month�for�an�all-inclusive�membership�deal.�

Members�can�access�any�GLL�gym.���

• Swimming�clubs�from�local�boroughs�and�others�can�book�out�swimming�lanes�in�the�evenings�and�
at�weekends.�

• The�Aquatics�Centre�hosted�a�FINA�Diving�World�Series�event�in�April�2014,�the�Invictus�Games�in�

summer�2014,�and�it�will�host�the�European�Championships�in�2016.��It�also�aims�to�host�galas�and�
other�large�events�in�2015.��

‘Olympicopolis’�

�

There�are�several�sites�near�the�Olympic�Stadium�which�have�been�earmarked�for�economic�uses�as�part�

of�the�Mayor’s�‘Olympicopolis’�vision.��

• The�Stratford�Waterfront�site�is�on�the�site�of�the�Gamestime�temporary�water�polo�venue.�
The�Victoria�and�Albert�Museum�(V&A)�is�looking�to�build�a�26,000m²�venue�at�the�end�of�the�

site�nearest�the�Aquatics�Centre.�Sadler’s�Wells�is�looking�to�build�a�600�-seater�dance�theatre�

where�it�can�host�choreography�and�a�hip�hop�school.�The�LLDC�is�in�discussion�with�other�
overseas�museum�operators.�It�is�also�in�advanced�discussions�with�London�College�of�Fashion,�

which�currently�operates�across�6�sites.�The�LLDC�plans�to�use�the�northern�end�of�the�

Waterfront�site�for�a�residential�scheme.�The�site�as�a�whole�is�expected�to�be�completed�in�
2023/24,�though�some�elements�should�be�ready�significantly�earlier.�An�international�design�

competition�has�been�launched�for�the�scheme.��

• An�area�to�the�south�of�the�ArcelorMittal�Orbit�(south�lawn)�is�intended�to�be�the�first�of�
two�sites�University�College�London�(UCL)�will�develop,�for�a�new�campus�which�when�fully�

built�out�would�provide�100,000�sqm�of�academic�and�ancillary�space.��Construction�could�

begin�on�initial�phases�of�the�project�in�2016/17,�for�occupation�in�2019/20.�A�UCL�campus�on�
this�part�of�the�site�is�likely�to�focus�on�creative�disciplines�such�as�technology,�engineering,�

and�design.�The�LLDC�has�developed�a�heads�of�terms�agreement�with�UCL,�and�it�is�expected�

to�develop�planning�proposals�in�2015.�The�LLDC�is�considering�building�the�university�campus�
development�itself,�and�UCL�may�build�any�residential�component�accompanying�the�scheme.��

• Some�government�funding�will�be�required�to�facilitate�both�the�construction�of�the�university�

and�cultural�institutions.�The�V&A�need�to�know�they�can�attract�enough�revenue�to�fund�the�
running�of�the�site.�The�LLDC�will�be�looking�to�progress�its�plans�after�the�Autumn�Statement�

(3�December�2014).��

Page 72



�

�

�
�

Other�issues�

�
Housing��

• Developer�Taylor�Wimpey�has�started�on�site�at�Chobham�Manor�and�sold�100�units.�75�per�

cent�of�the�units�planned�for�the�site�will�be�family�housing.�The�LLDC�told�the�Committee�that�
it�is�building�good�quality�houses�with�attractive�public�realm.�Several�of�the�units�are�houses�

with�adjoining�single�room�apartments,�which�will�be�suitable�for�families�wishing�to�live�with�

older�or�younger�family�members.��
• The�LLDC�is�generally�achieving�30�per�cent�affordable�housing.�It�is�also�providing�some�

housing�at�social�rents�as�it�has�rehousing�obligations�agreed�arising�from�Games�time�

relocations.��
• The�LLDC�is�holding�discussions�with�developers�for�residential�development�at�the�Sweetwater�

and�Eastwick�sites,�which�it�aims�to�deliver�in�the�mid-2020s.�The�next�phase�of�housing�will�be�

predominantly�apartments;�however,�there�are�plans�for�family�and�mews-style�housing�near�
Here�East.��

• On�the�neighbouring�International�Quarter�site�Lend�Lease�is�currently�constructing�two�tall�

office�buildings�for�the�Financial�Conduct�Authority�and�TfL�which�will�be�in�complete�in�2017�
providing�5,500�new�office�jobs.�Lend�Lease�are�also�building�a�residential�scheme�and�a�hotel.�

They�are�engaged�in�discussions�with�other�potential�tenants�for�the�International�Quarter�

development�which�could�eventually�provide�25,000-30,000�new�jobs.��
• The�LLDC�told�the�Committee�that�it�may�review�options�for�development�of�the�Pudding�Mill�

Lane�site�(the�site�of�the�fifth�neighbourhood�on�the�Queen�Elizabeth�Olympic�Park).�The�LLDC�

has�planning�permission�for�housing,�but�it�is�not�due�to�be�built�until�the�2020s,�and�therefore,�
it�is�in�the�early�stages�of�looking�at�possible�other�uses�that�would�contribute�value�to�the�long�

term�regeneration�of�the�area.�Such�uses�would�attract�other�housing�developments�in�other�

areas�of�the�Mayoral�Development�Corporation�area.��

Page 73



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



 

                                                                  

�

 

Subject:�Regeneration
Programme�

�

Report�to:� Regeneration�Committee�
�
Report�of:��Executive�Director�of
�
This�report�will�be�considered�
�
�
�
1.� Summary��
�
1.1 The�Committee�receives�a�report�monitoring�the�progress�of�its

�
�

2.� Recommendations�

�
2.1 That�the�Committee�agrees

�

2.2 That�the�Committee�agrees�to�use�

Smithfield�Market�and�the�Farringdon�area.

�

2.3 That�the�Committee�notes�the�records�of

Manchester�City�FC�(attached�as�Appendices

�

2.4 That�the�Committee�notes�the�summary�of�the�informal�meeting

Deputy�Chair�held�with�Cargiant�and�Millwall�FC

report�respectively).�
�
�

�

3.� Background��
�
3.1 At�the�Assembly’s�Annual�Meeting�on�14�May�2014,�the�Assembly�agreed�nine�slots

2014�and�March�2015�for�the�Regeneration�Committee,�which�will�be�used�for�meetings�and�site�

visits.�

�

3.2 The�Committee�receives�an�update�on�its�work�programme�at�each�
�

3.3 At�its�meeting�on�19�June�2014,�the�Committee�identified�its�initial�priorities�for�the�2014/15�

Assembly�year.�
�

3.4 On�21�October�2014,�the�Chairman�and�Deputy�Chairman�held�an�informal�meeting�to�discuss�

priorities�for�the�remainder�of�the�2014/15�Assembly�year.��
�

�

                                                                     

Regeneration�Committee�Work�

Committee��

Executive�Director�of�Secretariat� Date:�2

This�report�will�be�considered�in�public�

The�Committee�receives�a�report�monitoring�the�progress�of�its�work�programme�at�each�meeting

agrees�the�updated�work�programme�for�the�2014/15�Assembly�

That�the�Committee�agrees�to�use�the�meeting�slot�on�3�February�201

Smithfield�Market�and�the�Farringdon�area.�

That�the�Committee�notes�the�records�ofthe�site�visits�to�West�Ham�United�FC�and�

(attached�as�Appendices�1�and�2�to�this�report�respectively)

That�the�Committee�notes�the�summary�of�the�informal�meetings�the�

Cargiant�and�Millwall�FC�(attached�as�Appendices�3�and�4�to�this�

Assembly’s�Annual�Meeting�on�14�May�2014,�the�Assembly�agreed�nine�slots

2014�and�March�2015�for�the�Regeneration�Committee,�which�will�be�used�for�meetings�and�site�

The�Committee�receives�an�update�on�its�work�programme�at�each�meeting.

At�its�meeting�on�19�June�2014,�the�Committee�identified�its�initial�priorities�for�the�2014/15�

On�21�October�2014,�the�Chairman�and�Deputy�Chairman�held�an�informal�meeting�to�discuss�

priorities�for�the�remainder�of�the�2014/15�Assembly�year.���

 

Committee�Work�

26�November�2014�

work�programme�at�each�meeting.�����

work�programme�for�the�2014/15�Assembly�year.�

meeting�slot�on�3�February�2015�for�a�site�visit�to�

site�visits�to�West�Ham�United�FC�and�

1�and�2�to�this�report�respectively).��

the�Chairman�and�

(attached�as�Appendices�3�and�4�to�this�

Assembly’s�Annual�Meeting�on�14�May�2014,�the�Assembly�agreed�nine�slots�between�June�

2014�and�March�2015�for�the�Regeneration�Committee,�which�will�be�used�for�meetings�and�site�

meeting.�

At�its�meeting�on�19�June�2014,�the�Committee�identified�its�initial�priorities�for�the�2014/15�

On�21�October�2014,�the�Chairman�and�Deputy�Chairman�held�an�informal�meeting�to�discuss�

Agenda Item 6

Page 75



        

�

4.� Issues�for�Consideration��

�

The�Committee’s�work�programme�

4.1 The�topics�the�Committee�has�agreed�to�cover�this�year�are�set�out�below:�

�

• Stadium-led�regeneration:�an�investigation�into�the�impact�of�football�stadia�development�

on�local�regeneration.�The�project�examines�the�role�of�the�Mayor�and�local�authorities�in�

stadium-led�regeneration�schemes,�paying�particular�attention�to�the�use�of�the�Olympic�

Stadium,�and�proposed�development�schemes.��The�Committee�agreed�to�use�a�combination�

of�formal�meetings�and�site�visits�to�several�football�clubs/�grounds�to�gather�evidence�for�

the�investigation.�In�addition,�the�Committee�is�carrying�out�engagement�activities�to�gather�

views�on�the�impact�of�new�stadia�on�local�communities�in�London.�The�Committee�is�asked�

to�note�the�summaries�of�its�site�visits�(Appendices�1�and�2)�and�informal�meetings�

(Appendices�3�and�4)�in�connection�with�this�investigation.�

�

• Follow-up�on�the�London�Legacy�Development�Corporation�(LLDC):�The�Committee�

will�follow�up�its�December�2013�report�on�the�work�of�the�LLDC.�This�would�examine�the�

LLDC’s�budget�to�support�its�regeneration�activities�(and�progress�towards�becoming�self-

sustaining�by�2017/18),�its�progress�on�construction�of�homes�at�Chobham�Manor�and�

appointing�a�developer�for�Eastwick�and�Sweetwater,�and�new�transport�connections�along�

the�western�edge�of�the�Park.�The�LLDC�is�the�subject�of�today’s�main�discussion�item,�as�

noted�under�Item�5�on�this�agenda.�

�

• The�Royal�Docks�and�Enterprise�Zones:�the�Committee�will�arrange�a�site�visit�to�the�

Royal�Docks�for�its�slot�on�16�December�2014�to�be�briefed�about�plans�for�the�regeneration�

of�the�site,�and�partners�involved�in�the�development.�The�visit�would�give�the�Committee�an�

opportunity�to�hear�about�the�GLA’s�vision�for�the�Royal�Docks,�the�aims�of�the�Enterprise�

Zone,�and�its�effectiveness�to�date.�During�the�visit,�Members�would�seek�to�meet�with�a�

range�of�stakeholders�involved�in�the�development�of�the�Royal�Docks.�Following�the�site�

visit,�the�Committee�will�hold�a�meeting�to�discuss�the�Enterprise�Zone,�with�representatives�

of�the�GLA,�and�other�relevant�stakeholders.�The�meeting�will�cover�the�objectives�of�the�

Enterprise�Zone,�the�GLA’s�work�to�promote�it,�progress�to�date,�and�priorities�for�its�

development.�
�

• Smithfield�Market/�Farringdon,�and�Intensification�Areas:�The�Committee�plans�to�

visit�Smithfield�Market�in�Farringdon,�where�there�are�plans�for�regeneration�of�the�market�

building�and�surrounding�area.��It�is�proposed�that�this�site�visit�takes�place�on�the�

Committee’s�meeting�slot�on�3�February�2015�instead�of�a�committee�meeting.��Proposals�by�

the�site’s�leaseholders�to�convert�the�building�into�a�£160�million�office�and�retail�

development�were�rejected�by�the�Secretary�of�State�for�Communities�and�Local�Government�

in�July�2014,�following�two�public�enquiries�into�the�scheme.�The�Committee�could�visit�the�

market�to�receive�a�briefing�on�the�main�issues�raised�in�the�public�enquiries�into�Smithfield�

market�and�the�reasons�for�the�Secretary�of�State’s�decision�to�reject�the�planning�

application,�alternative�plans�for�the�market,�and�consultation�and�engagement�informing�

plans�the�redevelopment.�Furthermore,�the�Smithfield�and�Farringdon�area�is�designated�as�

an�Intensification�Area�in�the�London�Plan�(as�an�area�with�good�transport�links�which�could�

Page 76



        

benefit�from�further�development).�The�Committee�could�follow�this�visit�with�further�work�

on�regeneration�in�Intensification�Areas�in�the�2015/16�Assembly�year.� 

�

• Follow�up�on�the�Mayor’s�regeneration�funds:�the�Committee�plans�to�use�a�meeting�in�

2014/15�to�discuss�the�GLA’s�regeneration�funds.�In�this�session�Members�could�revisit�the�

work�the�Committee�carried�out�on�the�Outer�London�Fund�and�Mayor’s�Regeneration�Fund�

in�2013/14.�In�addition,�the�Committee�plans�to�consider�the�High�Street�Fund�(worth�up�to�

£9�million),�which�the�Mayor�launched�in�September�2014;�the�Growing�Places�Fund;�and�the�

New�Homes�Bonus.�

�

4.2 Further�to�informal�discussion�between�the�Chairman�and�Deputy�Chair,�the�proposed�schedule�for�

the�Committee’s�remaining�meetings�in�2014/15�Assembly�year�is�shown�below:��

�

Date� Proposed�Main�item�of�business�

Tuesday�16�December�2014� Royal�Docks�site�visit�(no�committee�meeting)�

Wednesday�7�January�2015� Enterprise�zones��

Tuesday�3�February�2015� Smithfield�Market/�Farringdon�site�visit�(no�committee�meeting)�

Tuesday�10�March�2015� The�Mayor’s�regeneration�funds��
�

�

�

Other�topics��

�

4.3 In�addition,�from�time�to�time�the�Committee�may�decide�to�hold�informal�meetings�with�

stakeholders�and�respond�to�consultations�that�are�relevant�to�the�Committee’s�work.�

�

Infrastructure�Plan�consultation�

4.4 The�Committee�contributed�to�the�Assembly’s�submission�to�the�consultation�on�the�Mayor’s�

Infrastructure�Plan.�The�Committee�responded�to�consultation�questions�relating�to�digital�

connectivity,�drawing�on�its�previous�work�on�this�topic.�The�Committee�submitted�its�response�to�

the�Planning�Committee,�which�coordinated�the�Assembly’s�response�to�the�consultation.�A�copy�of�

the�Committee’s�submission�is�attached�as�Appendix�4�to�Agenda�Item�4�(Summary�of�Action�and�

Action�taken�by�the�Chairman�under�delegated�authority).���

�

�

5.� Legal�Implications�
�

5.1� The�Committee�has�the�power�to�do�what�is�recommended�in�this�report.�

�

�

6.� Financial�Implications�
�

6.1� There�are�no�direct�financial�implications�arising�from�this�report.�

�

�
� �

Page 77



        

�

List�of�appendices�to�this�report:����

�

Appendix�1�–�Note�of�site�visit�to�West�Ham�United�FC�on�2�September�2014.�

�

Appendix�2�–�Note�of�site�visit�to�Manchester�City�FC�on�15�September�2014.�

�

Appendix�3�–�Summary�of�the�informal�meeting�between�the�Chairman,�Deputy�Chair�and�Cargiant�on��

30�September�2014�

�

Appendix�4�–�Summary�of�the�informal�meeting�between�the�Chairman,�Deputy�Chair�and�Millwall�FC�on��

2�October�2014.�

�

�

Local�Government�(Access�to�Information)�Act�1985��
List�of�Background�Papers:�None�

�

Contact�Officer:� Jo�Sloman,�Scrutiny�Manager�

Telephone:� 020�7983�4942�

E-mail:� scrutiny@london.gov.uk��

�

�

Page 78



Appendix 1 
�

Regeneration�Committee�site�visit�to�West�Ham�United�FC�at�the�Boleyn�Ground,�
Upton�Park�

02�September�2014�
�
Attendees�
Assembly�Members�� Gareth�Bacon�AM�(Chairman),�Navin�Shah�AM�(Deputy�Chair),�Murad�

Qureshi�AM�
�
Assembly�staff� Jo�Sloman,�Adam�Wildman,�Martha�Mingay��
�

Visiting�� � West�Ham�United�FC�

Karren�Brady�CBE,�Vice�Chairman��

Tara�Warren,�Marketing�and�Communications�Director��

Joseph�Lyons,�Head�of�Community,�West�Ham�United�Community�Sports�

Trust���

Sam�Allardyce,�Manager��

Sophie�Bradley,�Corporate�Communications��

Michael�Symons,�Corporate�Communications��

�

London�Borough�of�Newham��

Kim�Bromley-Derry,�Chief�Executive�

�
Overview�of�visit�
The�Committee�visited�West�Ham�United�at�the�Boleyn�Ground�to�receive�a�briefing�on�the�
Club’s�plans�to�move�to�the�Olympic�Stadium�in�2016�and�the�Club’s�work�in�the�community.��
The�Committee�also�heard�about�plans�for�the�conversion�of�the�Boleyn�Ground�for�housing�and�
retail.��
�
Discussion�topics��

�

West�Ham’s�move�to�the�Olympic�Stadium,�and�the�role�of�the�club�and�stadium�in�

local�regeneration�

• West�Ham’s�tenancy�at�the�Olympic�Stadium�will�create�720�jobs�through�a�combination�of�

full�and�part-time�roles.�75�per�cent�of�these�are�expected�to�go�to�local�people.��

• The�club�expressed�its�objective�for�the�Stadium�to�be�multi-purpose�and�used�continually�
commenting�that�“part�of�the�responsibility�of�being�in�the�stadium�is�sharing�it.”�West�

Ham’s�wider�Memorandum�of�Understanding�includes�a�commitment�to�sell�tickets�for�UK�

Athletics�events.�It�also�aims�to�integrate�usage�of�the�Stadium�with�the�wider�Queen�
Elizabeth�Olympic�Park,�by�participating�in�an�integrated�park-wide�ticket�scheme.��

• Being�at�the�Stadium,�West�Ham�expects�to�attract�broadcast�rights�and�some�limited�

naming�rights.�Other�benefits�include�new�infrastructure,�1�million�visitor�footfall�and�
prospective�customers�annually.�The�club�will�open�the�stadium�to�different�people�from�

different�cultures.��

Page 79



• A�marketing�destination�group�is�being�set�up�to�market�the�Olympic�Park;�this�will�share�

data�on�the�amounts�people�spend�locally�data,�and�enable�joint�marketing�activity.�This�
way,�the�club�can�get�a�good�idea�of�the�types�of�businesses�that�are�attracted�to�the�area.�

West�Ham�told�the�Committee�that�the�board�knows�how�to�make�the�destination�work.�

West�Ham�has�given�up�the�majority�share�venue�naming�rights�and�catering�at�the�Olympic�
Stadium,�but�the�stadium�gives�a�platform�to�generate�new�revenue�elsewhere.�

• Fans�are�mainly�positive�about�the�move;�there�is�only�a�small�percentage�that�was�not�in�

favour.�

The�regeneration�offer�to�local�communities�and�West�Ham�United�Community�Sports�

Trust�

• When�the�board�took�over�in�2010,�it�developed�6�core�values,�putting�the�community�at�the�
heart�of�the�club,�which�had�previously�been�siloed.�A�new�Community�Manager�started�in�

post,�with�the�aim�to�understand�the�needs�of�the�local�community.�The�club’s�intention�is�

that�the�most�vulnerable�members�of�the�community�(for�example,�children�in�care)�can�
benefit�from�the�club’s�community�schemes�from�age�7�through�to�graduation.�West�Ham�

also�needed�to�engage�with�the�community�to�move�into�the�stadium.�The�club�is�focussing�

on�engaging�with�local�Asian�communities.�The�club�did�an�equalities�assessment�of�the�local�
area;�it�did�not�want�to�see�a�Canary�Wharf�scenario,�where�longstanding�communities�have�

been�displaced.�

• The�club’s�upcoming�move�to�the�Olympic�Stadium�has�given�it�a�new�purpose.�The�club�
already�delivers�a�broad�range�of�programmes�and�the�capacity�of�the�new�stadium,�which�

will�act�as�a�hub�for�activity,�enhances�the�club’s�attraction�for�new�partners.�The�platform�at�

the�Olympic�Stadium�will�engage�people�to�see�matches.�At�Upton�Park�the�club�has�a�
dedicated�space�for�its�community�work�but�people�want�to�see�the�stadium.�A�school�will�be�

built�next�to�the�community�track�at�the�Olympic�Park.��

• Newham�council�noted�that�schools�outreach�is�an�important�part�of�the�club’s�work�locally.�
West�Ham�told�the�Committee�that�football�clubs�do�great�work,�but�they�reach�young�

people�because�of�football.�The�club�noted�that�through�football,�it�can�reach�kids�that�no-

one�else�can�reach:�“The�influence�of�football�cannot�be�overestimated;�it�can�be�an�
incredibly�powerful�force.”�It�added�that�not�all�local�authorities�grasp�the�benefits�that�

football�can�have.�West�Ham�gains�visibility�in�the�community�through�the�Trust’s�work��

• The�legacy�of�the�club’s�move�to�the�Olympic�Stadium�will�not�be�limited�to�Newham.�While�
the�club�has�an�obvious�relationship�with�Newham,�its�outreach�extends�beyond�(including�

to�places�such�as�Essex).�Approximately�£250,000�of�its�£1�million+�spend�is�allocated�to�

Newham�annually.�

West�Ham�United�Community�Sports�Trust�activities�

• Through�its�community�work,�WHUFC�will�be�the�one�of�only�a�handful�of�the�Premiership’s�

League�Green�Star-rated�clubs.�The�Trust�has�committed�to�spending�approximately�
£250,000�each�year�on�community�projects�in�the�borough�of�Newham.�In�the�last�3�years,�

the�turnover�of�the�club’s�community�programmes�has�risen�from�£0.5m�to�£1.3m.�It�has�

aspirations�to�expand�to�£1.5�million�over�the�next�two�football�seasons,�to�increase�
opportunities�provided�by�the�West�Ham�United�Community�Sports�Trust.�

• The�£1.3�million�the�Trust�spends�on�community�programmes�is�made�up�of�over�20�strands�

of�work.�Members�heard�that�at�the�Olympic�Stadium,�West�Ham�will�be�able�to�attract�more�
funding�for�the�Trust’s�community�work�(much�of�which�comes�through�match�funding).�The�

Trust�never�turns�down�a�discussion�with�a�potential�partner.�For�example,�to�attract�more�

Page 80



funding,�the�Trust�may�look�to�expand�its�Community�Prescription�Programme,�working�with�

the�local�clinical�commissioning�groups�on�issues�including�obesity�and�diabetes.�
• West�Ham�United�Sports�Trust�is�part�of�the�LLDC’s�Active�People�Active�Park�steering�

group�with�other�partners�in�the�Lea�Valley�(GLL�etc).�It�has�access�to�Premier�League�

funding�
• Football�clubs�have�agreements�between�themselves�about�which�clubs�engage�with�various�

local�authority�areas.�The�typical�route�for�engagement�with�councils�is�through�sport,�but�

the�club�is�looking�at�other�routes,�such�as�health�and�education.�
o The�Club�runs�a�learning�zone�for�young�people.�A�team�of�young�people�

representing�West�Ham�United�recently�won�a�competition�run�by�the�Premier�

League�Enterprise�Challenge.�
o There�is�a�partnership�between�the�local�authority�and�the�Community�Trust�

employment�scheme.��

• The�club�is�aiming�to�improve�social�mobility,�for�example,�through�apprenticeships.�Its�
apprenticeship�scheme�run�in�partnership�with�Leadership�Through�Sport�provides�

opportunities�for�students�to�move�into�blue�chip�companies.�Young�people�participating�in�

the�apprenticeship�scheme�are�from�backgrounds�where�they�might�typically�move�into�low-
skilled�jobs,�and�the�scheme�provides�the�opportunity�to�meet�professionals.�Students�study�

for�AAT�accountancy�exams.�Feedback�from�blue�chip�companies�is�that�West�Ham�is�helping�

such�organisations�improve�their�work�on�equality�and�diversity.�Applicants�come�through�an�
open�day�process�(30-40�people).�There�is�a�3:1�ratio�of�young�people�to�staff.�Young�

people�need�to�be�prepared�to�coach�others.�The�club�prepares�young�people�over�15�

months�to�be�fully�employable�so�that�they�reach�level�4�(graduate�level).�There�is�3�months’�
intensive�training�(1�day�a�week�at�West�Ham,�and�3�days�at�Newham�College).�A�young�

person�that�the�Committee�met�commented�“I�feel�lucky�to�be�part�of�[the�scheme].”�They�

had�accessed�the�scheme�through�their�support�worker.�

Regeneration�at�Upton�Park�

• There�are�low�levels�of�economic�activity�around�the�Boleyn�Ground.�This�is�partly�due�to�the�

recession�but�local�trade�has�drained�incrementally�over�20�years.�Several�businesses�around�
the�Boleyn�Ground�have�welcomed�the�club’s�announcement�to�move,�due�to�the�disruption�

caused�on�match�days.�On�match�days,�many�visitors�arrive�late,�having�already�eaten;�

limiting�the�amount�of�time�they�may�choose�to�spend�in�the�area.�
• WHUFC�has�appointed�developer�Galliard�to�develop�its�current�ground.�The�redevelopment�

will�provide�new�family�housing,�which�will�bring�new�residents�to�spend�their�money�locally.�

There�may�be�a�supermarket,�but�West�Ham�told�the�Committee�that�the�development�will�
not�be�dominated�by�it.�Local�residents�had�concerns�that�a�large�supermarket�would�drain�

the�area.�West�Ham�selected�the�Galliard�bid�because�of�its�commitment�to�legacy�and�

housing�even�though�it�was�not�the�most�lucrative�development�offer.�
• Alongside�the�redevelopment�of�the�Boleyn�Ground,�Newham�Council�will�be�completing�a�

road�scheme�on�Green�Street�to�support�regeneration�of�the�area.��

• While�there�is�little�to�do�around�the�current�stadium,�the�new�Stadium�will�create�‘dwell’�
time�for�visitors.�The�club�aims�to�create�a�place�at�the�new�stadium�which�attracts�whole�

families�to�spend�the�day.�The�club�has�engaged�with�small�businesses,�such�as�food�

businesses�and�local�community�and�supporters’�clubs�involved�in�the�local�match�day�
economy�and�it�is�encouraging�them�to�explore�opportunities�for�them�to�come�with�West�

Ham�to�the�new�stadium.�It�has�also�brokered�relationships�between�local�businesses�and�the�

LLDC,�to�explore�options�such�as�reduced�rents.�The�club�has�also�secured�agreement�with�
Galliard�to�engage�businesses�and�residents�around�the�Boleyn�Ground.���

Page 81



��

Page 82



Appendix 2 
�

Regeneration�Committee�site�visit�to�Manchester�City�FC�
15�September�2014�

�
Attendees�
Assembly�Members�� Gareth�Bacon�AM�(Chairman),�Navin�Shah�AM�(Deputy�Chair),�James�

Cleverly�AM,�Murad�Qureshi�AM�
�
Assembly�staff� Katie�Smith,�Jo�Sloman,�Adam�Wildman�
�

Visiting�� � Manchester�City�FC�

Pete�Bradshaw,�Head�of�Infrastructure�and�Corporate�Social�

Responsibility��

Andy�Ranger,�Project�Manager,�BAM�(contractor)�

�

Manchester�City�Council�

Anne�Taylor,�Regeneration�Manager�East��

Yawar�Abbas,�Principal�Events�Manager�

�

Overview�of�visit�
The�Committee�visited�Manchester�City�FC�to�see�the�City�Football�Academy�and�expansion�of�
the�Etihad�Stadium�in�east�Manchester,�both�of�which�are�currently�under�construction.�
Members�also�heard�from�Manchester�City�Council�officers�about�the�council’s�work�with�the�
football�club�on�the�regeneration�of�the�area.��
�
Discussion�topics��

�

Background�and�development�of�the�City�Football�Academy��

�

The�City�Football�Academy�site��

• The�City�Football�Academy�is�being�constructed�on�an�80-acre�site,�which�was�purchased�4�
years�ago�and�is�100�per�cent�owned�by�MCFC.�The�land�was�traditionally�occupied�by�heavy�

industry�and�dominated�by�chemical�works,�and�latterly�by�8�businesses�including�scrapyards�
and�window�glazing�companies.�In�the�site�remediation�process,�everything�found�on�the�site�

was�washed�and�reused.��

• MCFC�told�the�Committee�that�the�club�could�have�chosen�to�build�on�green�belt�land.�
When�looking�for�sites�for�a�new�training�ground,�the�club�looked�at�Macclesfield�but�it�

wanted�to�remain�in�Manchester�where�the�club’s�heritage�lies.�The�club�first�began�

discussing�a�‘street�to�stadium’�concept�in�1974�and�it�is�now�being�realised.�MCFC�told�the�
Committee�that�this�is�the�first�time�training�facilities�have�been�built�in�sequence.�One�side�

of�the�site�is�for�community�football�and�leisure,�while�the�other�side�is�the�academy,�so�that�

community�participants�can�see�what’s�happening�at�the�club.�In�turn,�the�academy�looks�
onto�the�first�team.��

• The�academy�campus�will�be�connected�to�the�Etihad�Stadium�via�a�new�footbridge�opening�
in�October.�A�new�tram�stop�also�connects�the�site.��

Page 83



• The�development�scheme�promotes�sustainability:�it�reuses�rainwater;�the�club�has�built�a�
CHP�energy�centre;�and�it�is�looking�at�developing�a�hydrogen�centre�in�a�few�years.�2,000�
trees�have�been�planted,�contributing�to�biodiversity�in�the�area.�

The�Academy�facilities�

• There�are�7�new�pitches;�6�designated�for�the�first�team�and�1�for�the�youth�team.�The�
Academy�includes�a�7,000�capacity�arena�which�will�host�women’s�football�and�youth�games�

(the�club�has�formally�re-launched�its�women’s�team).�The�academy�also�includes�3�new�

indoor�pitches.�The�site�aims�to�be�fully�operational�by�the�end�of�2014.�
• There�are�currently�48�scholars�on�the�MCFC�Academy�programme.�Some�students�enter�the�
training�scheme�via�scouts�across�the�North�West.�Candidates�take�part�in�trial�days�and�

coaches�assess�their�skills�over�a�week.�Six�open�days�are�held�per�year.�Training�can�take�
several�years.�The�club�is�responsible�for�young�people’s�education�up�until�age�19.�

• The�indoor�training�centre�will�be�handed�over�to�1st�team�training�in�October.�New�buildings�
are�being�erected�for�the�first�and�youth�teams,�each�with�residential�accommodation�on�the�
top.�The�team�will�use�the�residential�accommodation�the�night�before�matches.�An�energy�

centre�is�located�next�door.�

• To�the�east,�there�will�be�a�new�HQ�to�include�the�group’s�offices�and�a�media�centre.�MCFC�
has�several�sister�clubs;�New�York�City�(acquired�in�January�2013),�Melbourne�City�(in�which�

it�has�a�minor�stake),�and�Yokohoma�(in�which�it�also�has�a�minority�stake).��

• 5�acres�of�the�site�has�been�donated�to�the�city�council�for�community�use.�A�new�sixth�form�
college�has�been�very�successful.�A�new�high�school�–�the�first�in�the�area�–�opened�5�years�

ago.�The�club�also�contributed�to�financing�a�new�leisure�centre.�There�is�one�community�

pitch�and�the�arena�is�open�to�schools.�The�EIS�(English�Institute�of�Sport)�will�be�for�elite�
sports�funded�through�the�UK�Sport�Lottery.��

Wider�benefits�of�the�scheme��

• The�club�tries�to�ensure�that�suppliers�are�procured�locally;�a�minimum�84�per�cent�of�goods�
and�services�are�procured�from�within�the�M60�corridor.�

• 68�apprentices�are�employed�on�the�site;�90�per�cent�of�whom�have�long-term�job�prospects�
going�forward.�70�per�cent�are�to�be�employed�locally.��

The�Etihad�stadium�and�surrounding�area��

• The�stadium�is�being�expanded�by�18�per�cent,�with�new�seating�under�construction�at�the�
South�Stand.�

• In�the�last�year�the�club�has�opened�‘City�Square’�(providing�places�to�eat),�and�the�concept�
has�been�highly�successful.�

• An�athletics�track�near�the�stadium�is�used�by�school�groups�and�regional�clubs.�In�June�and�
July�it�is�in�full�use�for�sports�days.�A�challenge�with�the�athletics�track�is�that�there�are�more�

stadia�than�events.�Originally,�it�had�250�seats,�and�it�was�converted�to�hold�6,000.�The�

council�has�struggled�in�recent�years�to�fill�the�seats.�The�venue�has�potential,�but�it�has�only�
hosted�one�annual�major�event�(the�Paralympic�World�Cup�2005�-�2012).�The�track�was�

unsuccessful�in�its�bid�for�the�Diamond�League�in�2011.��

• There�are�plans�for�further�development�around�the�stadium�and�academy.�The�land�around�
the�stadium�is�owned�by�a�joint�venture�company,�while�12�acres�belongs�to�other�

landowners.�The�area�immediately�around�the�stadium�is�unlikely�to�be�residential�(like�

Wembley),�but�it�is�more�likely�to�be�commercial�(like�that�planned�at�Stratford).�To�the�

Page 84



south�of�the�site,�there�is�agreement�for�a�retail�development.�To�the�north�of�the�site�there�

are�25�acres�designated�for�a�leisure�destination�containing�hotels�and�retail.�To�the�west�of�
the�site,�separate�discussions�are�underway�on�a�market�rental�housing-led�regeneration�

scheme�funded�by�the�Abu�Dhabi�United�Group.�This�will�extend�from�the�eastern�edge�of�

the�city.��
• MCFC�has�commercial�objectives�to�attract�hotels,�retail,�exhibition�space�etc.�Over�the�past�
10�years�this�has�been�a�challenge,�and�at�the�moment�there�is�only�one�store.�The�club�told�

Members�that�the�area�needs�to�become�a�destination�with�family�entertainment�and�places�
to�eat.�Ideas�include�a�covered�theme�park�or�a�covered�beach.�

Long-term�regeneration�and�partnership�working�with�Manchester�City�Council�

• The�new�Metrolink�tram�stop�provides�much�improved�connections�to�the�city,�but�building�
it�was�a�long�and�complex�process.�Officers�noted�that�expansion�of�the�tram�system�has�

taken�place�against�the�odds.�The�tram�was�originally�designed�for�the�Games;�the�proposal�

was�re-initiated�in�2009,�and�it�opened�in�2013.�It�has�been�funded�through�a�combination�
of�funding�from�the�council�and�DfT.�

• MCFC�is�about�to�issue�a�50-year�travel�plan.�It�is�also�considering�installing�cycle�routes�
alongside�the�road.�Most�of�the�city�is�accessible�by�tram.�10�years�ago�the�city�had�a�good�
tram�system,�but�it�was�only�available�in�some�areas.�It�is�a�radial�system;�Manchester�now�

needs�a�route�equivalent�to�the�Circle�Line.�The�council�noted�that�it�is�working�on�improving�

cross-city�connections.��
• The�council�told�the�Committee�that�the�regeneration�of�east�Manchester�has�been�part�of�a�
long-term�strategy�over�the�past�12�years.�In�recent�years,�the�council�has�delivered�1,000�

homes�in�the�area�(out�of�6,000�across�the�city);�a�mix�of�homes�for�affordable�rent�and�sale.�
Development�of�the�area�has�to�be�a�long�term�project�and�the�site�is�continuously�dynamic.�

The�club�and�council�had�an�agreement�to�look�at�the�site’s�long-term�viability.�In�the�2000s,�

a�super�casino�bid�failed.�The�partners�now�have�to�look�at�the�long-term�benefits�of�
developing�the�area,�and�at�making�the�wider�site�fully�accessible.�The�single�biggest�local�

demand�was�for�a�high�school,�and�a�school�for�900�pupils�has�now�been�delivered.��

• The�scheme�has�mostly�been�aspirational,�but�its�development�has�been�evolutionary.�There�
was�a�broad�masterplan�(for�example,�for�a�housing�zone),�but�it�has�not�been�rigid.�In�view�

of�the�economic�climate,�their�strategy�looked�to�protecting�the�existing�investment.�Trust�in�

local�politicians�and�public�leaders�was�critical�to�the�partnership;�the�club�noted�that�the�
council’s�leadership�was�second�to�none,�without�which�the�club�would�not�have�invested.��

• MCFC�leases�the�stadium�from�the�council.�The�club�had�strict�planning�obligations�to�
provide�community�facilities/�access�to�the�stadium.�Local�people�did�not�want�access�to�
these,�and�MCFC�had�to�respond�to�other�demands.�It�provides�4,500�hours�of�community�

use�at�the�Etihad�Stadium�annually.�The�community�will�also�have�some�access�to�the�

Academy�site.�
• The�council’s�lease�agreement�with�the�club�changed�3�years�ago.�Rent�was�based�on�
occupation�of�seats�and�car�parking�spaces.�It�changed�to�become�a�fixed�rental�agreement,�

plus�a�percentage�share�of�naming�rights.�This�allows�the�club�to�plan�its�business�and�it�
provides�a�guarantee�for�the�council.��

• The�council�has�engaged�schools�within�walking�distance�to�encourage�them�to�use�the�
facilities�at�the�site.�MCFC�has�an�outreach�team,�working�on�issues�such�as�sport�and�health.�
The�club’s�wellbeing�scheme�is�available�free�of�charge�and�reaches�500,000�people;�one�of�

the�largest�in�the�country.�It�also�helps�people�engage�in�other�sports.��

• The�club’s�‘front�door’�is�important;�it�provides�a�welcoming�opportunity,�and�the�Academy�
site�must�be�the�same.�MCFC�recalled�the�‘sport�for�all’�objective�in�the�1970s�to�tackle�the�

Page 85



85�per�cent�of�people�not�involved�in�sport.�This�is�still�the�same�now,�with�people�thinking�

sport�is�not�for�them,�and�it�is�a�big�legacy�consideration�for�the�partners.�The�council�has�
had�to�tackle�local�perceptions�about�elite�sport.�It�held�open�days�and�opened�venues�such�

as�the�velodrome.�

Impact�on�the�local�community��

• MCFC�employs�30�apprentices�corporately.�They�are�employed�in�both�administration�and�
construction�roles,�with�the�aim�to�provide�apprentices�jobs�at�the�club�afterwards.�

• The�club�aimed�to�build�a�world-leading�Academy�within�its�community�(having�made�the�
active�decision�to�be�based�there�rather�than�8�miles�out�of�the�town�where�it�is�now).�Most�

people�in�east�Manchester�know�someone�who�is�employed�at�the�club.��

• MCFC�looked�4-6�years�ahead�at�the�skills�it�would�need,�for�example,�hotel�managers,�and�
finance�professionals.�Promoting�its�roles�to�the�local�job�market,�the�club�highlights�the�fact�

that�the�running�of�the�first�team�relies�on�400�jobs.�MCFC�has�also�required�skills�for�lesser-

known�roles�(water�technologists,�for�example);�it�went�into�schools�to�spread�the�message.�
It�found�that�job�centres�could�often�only�offer�a�limited�range�of�skills.�The�club�worked�

with�JCP�and�other�partners�to�make�these�jobs�attractive.��

• The�club�designated�a�community�wall�as�part�of�its�planning�permission,�which�was�
designed�by�15-year�olds�from�a�local�school.�It�was�built�by�robots.�Both�students�involved�

in�the�project�are�now�studying�engineering.��

Consultation�with�the�community��

• For�the�academy�development,�MCFC�agreed�a�consultation�boundary�with�the�council.�
Every�house�was�invited�to�participate.�The�club�hosted�an�exhibition�attracting�24,000�

visitors.�4,000�came�from�the�local�area�and�the�club�took�on�their�views.�Issues�arose�about�
traffic�around�the�academy,�and�environmental�issues,�such�as�trees.�There�was�high�interest�

in�the�jobs.�The�club’s�webpage�provides�updates�on�the�development�and�community�forum�

meets�monthly,�with�representatives�of�community�organisations�and�businesses.�
• MCFC�observed�that�football�does�not�generally�cause�problems�for�the�local�community,�
but�concerts�can�lead�to�complaints.�Visitors�can�get�lost�if�they�are�not�used�to�the�local�

area�(for�example,�parking�in�the�wrong�area).�The�stadium�typically�hosts�6�acts,�mostly�in�
June.��

�

Page 86



Appendix 3 
�

Note�of�informal�meeting�between�Regeneration�Committee�Chairman�and�Deputy�Chair�
with�Cargiant��

�
Tuesday�30�September�2014�

�
Introduction�
Gareth�Bacon�AM,�Chairman�of�the�Regeneration�Committee,�and�Navin�Shah�AM,�Deputy�Chair,�
met�with�Tony�Mendes�and�Geoff�Warren�(Cargiant),�Kate�Ives�(First�Base)�and�Hugh�Bullock�
(Gerald�Eve)�to�hear�about�Cargiant’s�plans�for�regeneration�of�the�site�Cargiant�owns�at�Old�Oak�
Common.�
�
Discussion�summary�
�
Cargiant�and�plans�for�relocation�
�
Cargiant�is�currently�located�on�a�47-acre�site�at�Old�Oak�Common,�which�contains�a�holding�area�
and�processing�plant.�40,000�cars�pass�through�its�mechanical�centre�annually�and�the�company�
sells�40�per�cent�of�its�stock�every�week.��
�
The�company�generates�high�profits,�is�growing,�and�has�significant�aspirations�to�expand;�
including�to�cities�outside�London�(Birmingham�and�Bristol).�Cargiant�has�a�need�for�greater�
supply�on�the�shop�floor�and�the�company�has�potential�to�create�24-hour�operations.�It�trialled�
this�prior�to�the�recession,�but�then�shrunk�its�operations�in�order�to�ensure�the�business�remained�
robust.��
�
Cargiant�is�working�to�relocate�the�business.�It�has�significantly�high�levels�of�local�employment�
and�the�company�wants�to�bring�its�staff�to�a�new�site�in�the�local�area.�Cargiant�told�Members�
that�the�company�would�not�have�embarked�on�relocation�if�QPR�had�not�proposed�its�plan�to�
move�to�Old�Oak�Common�however,�Cargiant�would�have�looked�to�move�at�some�point.�When�
Cargiant�first�heard�about�plans�for�the�regeneration�of�OOC,�it�calculated�that�it�would�have�cost�
at�least�£1bn�to�compulsory�purchase�the�business.�
�
Cargiant�had�initially�worked�with�QPR�(and�Anthony�Spencer)�to�relocate�onto�the�Guinness�site,�
but�a�suitable�site�was�not�found.�Cargiant�realised�that�QPR�would�be�unable�to�help,�and�
Cargiant�became�unconvinced�that�the�club�would�secure�sufficient�funding�for�the�move.�There�is�
a�‘chicken�and�egg’�scenario;�the�company�cannot�relocate�without�a�credible�regeneration�plan.���
�
The�company�told�Members�that�it�is�pursuing�its�own�plans�to�acquire�and�to�build�a�new�plant�
that�would�accommodate�the�business.�These�plans�are�progressing�well:�Cargiant�ideally�requires�
around�100�acres�but�this�is�not�possible�in�London.�It�currently�owns�33�acres�for�its�own�
operations�with�plans�to�intensify�its�current�site�use;�a�further�12�acres�are�owned�and�let�out�but�
earmarked�for�future�expansion;�and�it�has�recently�purchased�a�further�2�acres�now�incorporated�
into�daily�use.��
�
For�relocation,�it�cannot�build�a�multi-storey�building�for�car�processing�and�sales;�the�plant�needs�
a�ground�floor�single�level�facility,�and�cannot�condense�the�business.�It�would�also�have�to�work�
with�other�businesses,�such�as�EMR,�which�have�very�expensive�relocation�costs.�Cargiant�needs�to�
have�discussions�with�all�the�boroughs�about�relocation;�it�has�spoken�to�Ealing�and�Brent,�but�it�is�
more�difficult�in�Hammersmith�and�Fulham,�as�there�is�not�space�in�the�borough.�As�part�of�its�
relocation�plans,�Cargiant�has�approached�the�GLA�for�assistance�(eg.�with�a�potential�site�
managed�by�Segro).�When�it�came�to�a�proposed�acquisition,�Segro�had�already�started�building,�
so�the�GLA�advised�that�this�site�was�not�an�option.�

Page 87



�
�
Car�Giant’s�plans�for�regeneration�at�Old�Oak�Common�(OOC)�
�
Cargiant�has�assembled�a�professional�team�–�including�Lipton�Rogers�and�First�Base�–�and�drawn�
up�masterplans�for�the�area.�The�company�emphasised�that�it�is�not�looking�at�the�area�owned�by�
Cargiant�in�isolation;�the�company�aims�to�work�at�scale�on�regeneration�and�it�believes�place-
making�and�viable�communities�are�central.��
�
Members�heard�that�Cargiant�has�developed�a�residential-led�mixed-use�plan�for�development.�
The�company�has�met�with�Sir�Edward�Lister,�Deputy�Mayor�and�held�preliminary�meetings�with�
boroughs.�Cargiant’s�plans�are�in�the�early�phases,�but�the�company�plans�to�deliver�8,500�homes�
on�its�land.�It�will�be�looking�to�initiate�planning�and�consultation�with�communities�early�2015.��
�
Arguments�against�a�stadium-led�regeneration�scheme��
�
Cargiant�has�worked�with�the�organisation�Quod�to�produce�a�comparative�analysis�on�the�costs�
and�benefits�of�a�stadium.�This�research�shows�that�a�residential-led�scheme�creates�more�jobs�
than�a�stadium-led�regeneration�scheme.�The�new�jobs�a�residential�scheme�would�create�would�
not�be�zero-hours�contracts.�
�
Cargiant�questioned�why�a�stadium�was�being�proposed�when�there�is�need�for�housing�
intensification�(based�on�the�claim�that�a�stadium�would�occupy�around�20�per�cent�of�the�site).�
The�company�argue�that�the�interests�of�QPR’s�18,000�match�day�fans�have�to�be�weighed�up�
against�the�12�million�people�living�within�reach�of�Old�Oak�Common�in�north�London.�
�
Cargiant�told�Members�that�if�there�were�to�be�a�stadium�on�the�land�it�owns,�around�3,000�homes�
would�be�taken�out�of�the�equation.�(Cargiant�told�the�Committee�that�QPR�would�only�be�able�to�
deliver�300�homes�at�the�Loftus�Road�site.�Therefore,�a�new�stadium�has�opportunity�costs�for�
housing).��
�
Furthermore,�Cargiant�noted�that�if�the�aim�is�to�bring�forward�housing�in�the�area,�a�stadium�is�
not�needed�to�act�as�a�catalyst�for�regeneration.�The�area�already�benefits�from�plans�to�build�
Crossrail�and�HS2,�and�the�construction�of�Westfield.�Cargiant�believes�that�these�factors�
themselves�are�catalysts�enough,�and�the�essential�ingredients�for�regeneration�are�in�place�at�Old�
Oak�Common.�The�company�also�drew�distinctions�between�Old�Oak�Common�and�other�sites�
where�stadium-led�regeneration�has�taken�place.�For�example,�in�Manchester,�there�was�a�lot�of�
contaminated�land,�whereas�this�is�not�the�case�at�Old�Oak�Common.�
�
Cargiant�observed�that�opportunity�costs�arise�from�a�stadium-led�plan�for�Old�Oak�Common,�and�
that�if�a�stadium�scheme�was�logical�and�viable,�Cargiant�would�do�it.�The�company�challenged�
foregone�conclusions�about�the�use�of�public�land�for�public�benefit,�noting�that�there�needs�to�be�
a�consensus.�Decision-makers�need�to�ask�if�there�would�be�compelling�public�and�community�
benefits�which�would�offset�the�harm�of�QPR�being�at�Old�Oak�Common�(because�Cargiant�argues�
that�public�investment�is�already�present�in�the�form�of�investment�in�transport).�Cargiant�believes�
that�the�utility�of�the�land�must�be�maximised�to�achieve�the�GLA’s�housing�requirement.�There�is�
finite�land�in�areas�of�high�public�transport�accessibility�across�London,�which�must�be�used�
intelligently.�Cargiant�believes�housing�is�London’s�biggest�intergenerational�need;�if�housing�is�
not�optimised�on�a�site�such�as�this,�it�questions�how�London�will�deliver�the�1.2�million�homes�it�
requires.�The�speed�at�which�new�residential�development�is�required�means�that�there�cannot�be�
any�hindering�factors�(recognising�that�not�everyone�wants�to�live�by�a�stadium).�
�
Cargiant�also�told�Members�that�the�only�way�for�QPR�to�move�to�Old�Oak�Common�is�through�a�
Compulsory�Purchase�Order�(CPO).�Also,�Cargiant�would�have�to�close�at�Old�Oak�Common,�to�

Page 88



prepare�the�site�for�development,�because�QPR’s�timeframe�is�different�to�that�of�Cargiant.�
Cargiant�believes�the�CPO�value�for�the�OOC�site�would�be�very�high,�and�that�subsidised�land�
would�be�required�to�make�the�project�happen.�Subsidy�would�have�to�be�higher�from�a�stadium�
scheme�than�for�a�residential-led�scheme�(for�housing,�roads,�schools,�and�social�infrastructure,�for�
example),�as�the�stadium�takes�up�land�that�would�be�used�for�social�infrastructure.�The�company�
could�not�envisage�there�being�no�land�subsidy�issues�for�a�stadium�at�Old�Oak�Common,�given�
that�there�are�at�Tottenham,�and�in�that�scenario,�the�club�own�the�land�and�have�a�residential�
scheme.��
�
Cargiant�staying�locally�would�retain�local�jobs.�The�business�has�looked�at�moving�further�away,�
but�the�nature�of�the�business�means�that�this�is�not�feasible.�There�is�very�little�commercial�space�
available�in�the�immediate�area,�therefore�it�will�have�to�relocate.�Cargiant�argued�that�QPR�could�
buy�industrial�land�elsewhere�for�a�stadium;�the�benefit�of�the�Cargiant�site�is�its�housing�potential.��
�
Cargiant�expressed�scepticism�about�the�benefits�that�a�stadium�can�bring,�observing�that�a�
stadium�is�only�open�28�days�a�year.�Shops�and�cafes�may�benefit,�but�the�company�questioned�
how�staff�are�occupied�when�the�stadium�is�not�open.�The�jobs�created�around�a�residential�
scheme�would�include�road�infrastructure�and�cleaning,�and�be�sustainable�and�long�term.�By�
contrast,�stadium�jobs�would�include�cutting�grass�and�catering.�Cargiant�cited�the�failed�attempt�
to�open�Croydon�arena.�Even�when�all�components�for�the�scheme�were�in�place,�following�
discussions�over�a�10-year�period,�the�scheme�did�not�receive�planning�permission�or�a�confirmed�
CPO.��
�
Other�issues����
�
Cargiant�also�suggested�that�a�stadium�scheme�is�not�feasible�in�the�timeframe�QPR�has�proposed.�
In�comparison,�Cargiant’s�plans�are�not�reliant�on�an�expensive�CPO�process,�and�it�has�no�debt�on�
the�land.��
�
Cargiant�told�Members�that�consultation�is�very�challenging.�The�company�would�be�starting�its�
consultation�later�because�it�spent�6�months�working�with�QPR.�Members�heard�that�Cargiant�
does�not�want�to�confuse�local�communities;�therefore�it�needs�to�think�about�how�it�approaches�
the�community�and�the�company�will�have�a�dialogue�with�officers�to�set�up�a�consultation�
strategy.�Cargiant�noted�that�an�initial�consultation�phase�would�become�live�in�the�next�few�
weeks.�
�

Page 89



Page 90

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4 
�

Note�of�informal�meeting�between�Regeneration�Committee�Chairman�and�Deputy�Chair�
with�Millwall�FC�

�
Thursday�2�October�2014�

�
Introduction�
Gareth�Bacon�AM,�Chairman�of�the�Regeneration�Committee,�and�Navin�Shah�AM,�Deputy�Chair,�
met�with�Andy�Ambler,�Chief�Executive�of�Millwall�Football�Club,�Andrew�Barrow,�Senior�Adviser�to�
Millwall�Football�Club,�and�Matthew�Black,�Senior�Director�CBRE�UK�to�hold�an�informal�meeting�
to�discuss�Millwall�FC’s�proposals�for�regeneration�activity�around�the�club’s�stadium,�The�Den.��
�
Discussion�summary�
�
Millwall�FC�
�
Millwall�FC�(MFC)’s�majority�shareholder�and�principal�funder�is�Chestnut�Hill�Ventures,�based�in�
the�US.�Since�2005,�the�club�has�been�looking�to�develop�the�area�around�the�stadium.�
�
The�club�has�received�investment�in�excess�of�£30�million�over�the�past�7-8�years,�through�a�
combination�of�equity�and�debt�funding.�This�model�is�unsustainable;�therefore�the�club�needs�to�
be�future-proofed.��
�
Millwall�FC’s�ambitions�for�regeneration�around�the�stadium�
�
MFC�told�the�Chairman�and�Deputy�Chair�that�it�needs�to�look�at�the�future�beyond�its�current�
owners.�Football�is�volatile,�and�the�club�could�move�between�League�One�and�the�Premiership.�
Millwall�FC�needs�to�create�some�non-football�income-generating�assets�in�order�to�be�a�
sustainable�business.���
�
MFC�told�Members�that�it�welcomed�the�regeneration�plans�for�the�Surrey�Canal�Triangle�which�
would�be�good�for�both�the�club�and�the�community.�The�stadium�is�under-utilised�outside�match�
days;�part�of�the�reason�the�club�makes�annual�losses.�If�the�club�achieved�promotion�into�the�
Premiership,�the�plan�is�to�increase�The�Den�to�a�26,000-seater�stadium.��
�
MFC�was�named�as�being�at�the�centre�of�LB�Lewisham’s�plans�for�the�Surrey�Canal�Triangle.�The�
club�has�ambitions�to�redevelop�the�land�around�the�stadium,�including�that�leased�by�Millwall�
Community�Trust�(which�was�set�up�as�a�separate�charity�28�years�ago,�and�leases�its�premises�
from�LB�Lewisham).�The�club�told�Members�that�the�Millwall�Community�Trust’s�close�links�to�the�
football�club�(the�Millwall�brand)�give�it�access�to�football-related�funding.���
�
Millwall�FC�has�a�long�leasehold�interest�of�the�stadium�and�some�land�around�its�borders.�Millwall�
FC�appointed�an�architect�to�draw�up�plans�in�accordance�with�requirements�for�planning�
permission.�MFC�told�the�Committee�that�it�is�not�concerned�who�develops�the�land,�but�the�club�
needs�to�benefit�economically�from�the�development;�for�example,�through�a�hotel�and�other�
leisure�related�elements�which�could�operate�in�partnership�with�catering�and�conference�facilities�
at�the�stadium..�MFC�said�that�plans�for�an�underground�car�park�were�unnecessary:�the�above�
ground�car�park�is�adequate.�
�
�
� �

Page 91



�
Current�proposals�for�the�regeneration�scheme��
�
The�club�told�the�Committee�it�would�like�to�develop�the�area�it�currently�manages�(it�does�not�
have�ambitions�to�develop�the�whole�Surrey�Canal�Triangle),�but�it�cannot�do�so,�as�the�council�has�
agreed�to�sell�the�freehold�of�the�land�occupied�by�MFC’s�car�park�to�developer�Renewal�and�
intends�to�use�its�compulsory�purchase�powers�to�acquire�MFC’s�leasehold�interests�in�that�land�
with�a�view�to�on-selling�them�to�Renewal.�MFC�told�Members�that�Renewal�already�owns�
significant�land�but�still�requires�additional�land�to�facilitate�delivery.�Members�heard�that�Renewal�
has�outstanding�options�on�other�plots,�and�requires�some�land�currently�occupied�by�the�club.�
Renewal�would�need�to�relocate�existing�tenants�to�progress�its�plans.�The�club�supported�
Renewal’s�application�for�outline�planning�permission,�and�its�subsequent�section�106�agreement,�
for�development�of�the�Surrey�Canal�Triangle�area.��
�
Millwall�FC�told�Members�that�it�has�two�main�concerns�about�Renewal’s�plans.�The�first�concerns�
the�potential�loss�of�value�accruing�to�the�club.�MFC�is�concerned�about�the�council’s�plans�to�
acquire�its�own�land�from�MFC�through�a�CPO�under�the�Renewal�scheme.�MFC�told�Members�the�
CPO�price�would�be�too�low�compared�to�MFC�developing�the�land�(a�lease�was�granted�to�MFC�to�
allow�the�club�to�move�from�the�Old�Den�to�the�New�Den�21�years�ago).�Millwall�FC’s�valuations�
are�higher�than�those�of�Renewal.�Secondly,�the�club�has�concerns�about�match�day�safety.�The�
MFC�scheme�would�allow�the�stadium�to�continue�to�operate�without�problems,�but�the�club�
believes�that�there�is�not�enough�detail�in�the�Renewal�scheme�to�show�what�impact�the�
development�would�have�on�matches�(the�development�is�in�close�proximity�to�the�stadium).�MFC�
would�like�to�see�viability�figures�for�the�Renewal�scheme,�and�it�would�like�input�into�the�design�
and�to�secure�some�economic�benefit�from�the�developments.��
�
Impact�on�MFC’s�future�plans�
�
The�club�told�the�Committee�that�there�is�little�difference�between�the�club’s�plans�and�those�of�
Renewal;�the�main�difference�being�that�under�MFC’s�plans,�the�club�would�host�the�Community�
Trust�in��its�proposed�new�development�adjoining�the�stadium.�Under�its�proposals,�MFC�is�
offering�free�offices�and�a�sports�centre�to�the�Community�Trust,�whereas�the�Trust�would�have�to�
pay�rent�under�the�Renewal�scheme.�It�is�also�concerned�that�the�Renewal�scheme�will�mean�the�
Community�Trust�loses�some�of�its�profile.�
�
MFC�is�concerned�about�proposals�for�the�Community�Sports�Centre�put�forward�by�LB�Lewisham�
and�Renewal,�suggesting�that�there�are�questions�around�the�scheme’s�viability�and�funding�which�
will�impact�on�whether�it�will�happen.�If�it�does�not�happen,�MFC�is�concerned�that�the�Millwall�
Community�Trust�could�be�left�without�a�base,�along�with�other�local�businesses,�and�it�is�
concerned�about�what�legacy�there�would�be�for�buildings�vacated�as�part�of�the�proposed�
scheme.�
�
Delays�to�the�regeneration�scheme��
�
MFC�believes�intervention�is�required�to�progress�the�regeneration�planned�for�the�area.�The�club�
would�like�the�Mayor�to�appoint�a�broker�to�instruct�the�parties�to�find�a�solution.�MFC�told�the�
Committee�its�plans�could�move�quickly,�but�if�the�club�was�to�develop�the�area�around�its�
stadium,�it�would�need�to�be�sure�that�the�rest�of�the�proposed�development�of�the�Surrey�Canal�
Triangle�was�proceeding,�otherwise�MFC�could�be�left�with�an�isolated�new�development�of�little�
value�(phasing�is�important).��
�
�

Page 92


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interests
	3 Minutes
	Minutes - Appendix 1 - Transcript of Q&A on Stadium-led Regeneration

	4 Summary List of Actions and Action Taken by the Chairman Under Delegated Authority
	Appendix 1  - letter from Chairman to Dr Paul Brickell LLDC
	Appendix 2 - letter from Dr Paul Brickell, LLDC to Chairman of Regeneration Committee
	Appendix 3 - letter to Colin Wilson re Regeneration Committee 16 September 2014
	Appendix 4 - letter from the Mayor to Chairman re Mayor's Regeneration Fund
	Appendix 5 - Infrastructure Plan

	5 The London Legacy Development Corporation
	Final summary - Regeneration Committee LLDC site visit 15.10.14

	6 Regeneration Committee Work Programme
	Appendix 1 - Regeneration Committee West Ham site visit 020914
	Appendix 2 - Regeneration Committee MCFC site visit 150914
	Appendix 3 - Informal meeting Car Giant 30 September 2014
	Appendix 4 - Informal meeting Millwall FC 2 October 2014


